A SPECIAL CALLED MEETING WILL BE
CONDUCTED BY THE JASPER COUNTY
COUNCIL.

Meeting Date: Monday, August 25, 2025, AT 10AM

Place: Council Chambers, Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney
Government Bldg.
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

Watch In Person or Live via YouTube at:
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHm_ggXCJIA

For more information, call 843-717-3696. Instructions may also be found
at the Jasper County website www.jaspercountysc.gov



https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936
Monday, August 25, 2025

Agenda

10:00AM

1. Call to Order by Chairman Kemp

Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.

In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the
meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council
Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, and a copy of the agenda was provided to the
local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting notification.

2. Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.
(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons:

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim —
Class Action Regarding Ultra Processed Foods--Litigation; Litigation Update; Southern Health Partners
Inc.; Tax Map #s 087-00-05-009, 087-00-05-008, 063-27-02-002, and 063-16-14-001

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE DISCUSSION
SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND COUNCIL MAY
RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION AGENDA ITEMS.
PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES AND ACTIONS TAKEN BASED ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN EXECUTIVE
SESSION.

Return to Open Session

o 2.1 Action coming out of Executive Session

3. Pledge to the Flag and Invocation

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Approval of the minutes of 04.28.2025

1
Agenda —08.25.2025



6. Jim Iwanicki and Kate Schaefer: Presentation of Transportation Sales Tax Programs: Roads and Greenbelt

7. Andrew Fulghum = Public Hearing and consideration of a Resolution #R-2025-49 To Authorize the Jasper
County Administrator to Execute a Surrender of Premises, Equipment Use, Transfer and Transition
Agreement with its First Addendum by and between Jasper County, Jasper County Sheriff, and Jasper
Animal Rescue Mission Regarding Animal Services and Related Matters.

8. Chairman Kemp — Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-53 a resolution of the Jasper County Council
Declaring the Hardeeville District Appointed Position at the County Airport Commission to be Vacant.

9. Chairman Kemp — Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-54 a resolution of the Jasper County Council
Declaring the Jasper County At-Large Appointed Position at the Lowcountry Council of Governments to
be Vacant.

10. Chairman Kemp — Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-55 a resolution of the Jasper County Council to
Appoint Mr. Chad Scott to fill the Hardeeville District Appointed Position at the County Airport
Commission.

11. Chairman Kemp — Consideration of the 3" Reading of Ordinance #0-2025-19 to amend and add a New
Subsection to the Jasper County SC Code of Ordinances, Chapter 26 Taxation, Article 1 in General (1°
Reading 07.21.2025; Public Hearing and 2" Reading 07.21.2025)

12. Chairman Kemp - Consideration of Resolution #R-2025-56 a Resolution of the Jasper County Council
for Tri-Share.

**Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive session.

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities, please contact the Jasper
County ADA & Civil Rights Coordinator, Tisha Williams in person at 358 Third Avenue, Ridgeland, South
Carolina, by telephone at (843) 717-3690 or via email at jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.gov no later than 48
hours prior to the scheduled meeting.

2
Agenda —08.25.2025


mailto:jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.gov

Agenda
ltem #5



JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL
SPECIAL CALLED WORKSHOP

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg
358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936

Monday, April 28, 2025
Minutes

Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Councilman Chris VanGeison and Councilman Joe Arzillo
Absent: Vice Chairman Joey Rowell

Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, David Tedder, County
Attorney, Kimberly Burgess, Chief Russell Wells, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.

1. Call to Order of the Jasper County Council Workshop by Chairman Kemp.

The Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act was read as follows: In accordance
with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the
meeting agenda were posted at least 24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a
publicly accessible place, on the county website, and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news
media and all person’s or organizations requesting notification.

The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman VanGeison. Chairman Kemp
turned the meeting over to Mr. Fulghum.

Workshop on the Capital Improvement and Investment Plan:

Mr. Fulghum noted that they were there to discuss the Capital Improvement and Investment Plan. He mentioned
that this was an effort that the County started in 2022. He noted it came on the heels of them realizing that they
manage internally a lot of the facility improvements and construction projects that they had in front of them. He
said prior to solicit setting and selecting a firm to be their construction manner manager that county staff handled
the projects. They went through project management for each project with each division director or department
head applicable to the project. He noted that since things were more complex with the grant proposal paperwork,
restrictions and requirements it was so much more stringent than in the past. He noted that currently that the
construction world was so much different, and they had been encountering a lot of change orders. They researched
and reviewed the different types of deliveries for facility projects and landed on construction management at risk.
He said they solicited proposals and ended up hiring M. B. Kahn, who currently serves as the County’s Construction
Manager.

Mr. Fulghum introduced Chris Hance of M.B. Kahn who was present. He noted that Mr. Hance worked with the
county staff developing the projects and priorities along with Jim Iwanicki who serves as the County's Engineer and
Director of Engineering Services Department. Mr. Fulghum noted that he would like Council to hear from Chris for
A review of the county successes to date and then look at the most immediate needs that the county has. He noted
that this would give them priority guidance from the council and that then they would talk about financing and how
they had finance projects to date. He also noted they would discuss what type of financing was available for the

Minutes — 04.28.2025



different projects going forward and whether they need to work with a consolidated effort to do a borrowing plan
to do more projects at one time. Chris reviewed his presentation on the capital improvements and investment plan
update for fiscal year 2025 he covered an introduction, plan development, project summary of every project
evaluated and budgeted for the current fiscal year. Project details and photos of each of the following projects were
provided:

e Farmers Produce Market

e Ridgeland Claude Dean Airport

e 112 Weathersby Drive

e Jasper County Courthouse

e Pratt Memorial Library

e New Fire Rescue Station #31

e Detention Center - Miscellaneous Renovations
e Sheriff's Office

e Emergency Services

e Clementa C. Pinckney Building

e 252 Russell St.

e Ridgeland Graded School

e Department of Social Services

e Board of Election Supervisors

e Detention Center - Additions / Renovations
e Ridgeland Claude Dean Airport/FBO

e Jasper Animal Rescue Mission

Chris also provided final reminders and recommendations to the council. Council discussed these projects, and the
provided listing of potential county priorities for the council to consider. The different types of financing that were
available for the different projects going forward were discussed as well as the consideration for a consolidated
effort to do a borrowing plan to do multiple projects at one time. Mr. Fulghum discussed the budget and the Capital
Budget for the County. A copy of the presentation is attached as Attachment “A”.

Motion to adjourn: Councilman Arzillo
Second: Councilman VanGeison

Vote: Unanimous

The motion passed.

For more information on this topic or workshop please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmlogX05cKAsHm ggXCJIA .

Respectfully submitted:

Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council

John A. Kemp, Chairman

Minutes — 04.28.2025


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA

Capital Improvements and Investment Plan UPDATE, FY 2025

Jasper County, SC
January 28, 2025

|<AHN Construction




\

| Craig Floyd,

Project Executive i Business Development +* Director of Preconstruction Preconstruction Manager

iy — ~ -
T ‘-,.'.:i‘»’:.‘»'- 2

Margaret Rush, Shane Stevens, Chris Hance, PE

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Introduction

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



|

1

INntr

Capital Improvement and Investment Plan Goal

» Qutline the projected infrastructure improvement

needs of Jasper County
« Long-term investments into facilities
* Non-routine

« Assist in the planning and budgeting process

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Plan Development

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



. L Lias :
\ 2. » g 3 ' 1 3
it e WG

Plan Developmen

|

1

* Meetings and interviews
* Tours of the facilities

« Budget evaluations (project vs. construction cost)

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Project Summary

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



. |
L

. 4 { A ‘ ' 8 . ‘. ':.:,

Approved mmar

PROJECT FROPOSED SCOPE BUDGET

COMPLETID PROJECTS

FARRER'S FRODUCE MARRET 50 O

e L R S T L T e R |
Ftwisay S0 sl oieil fanvgn ridurrad o P Doty

FDGELARND-CUALIDE DEAN AN T APTICH EXPARSON £33, 030,050

Meoyes e cisd srpanoer of S 4 Eikes) nunaay i0eon D Erorvreds o

A one page summary of D vy e p
every project undertaken | " T s e

JASFER COUNTY COURTHOUSE RENOVATIONS 57 50,20

following the original i e watoss st e
Capital Plan_ APPROVEDAN.PROGRESS PROJECTS

PRATT MEMORIAL LIBRARY RENCWVATION B TE0L000

Coeipalites 00l Pl Maridfimp, ol s oshirion g mlinid omnabein s fmiyert WYeales
S A ngoip. Compieion sobedhuled For bieled S0
HEW FIRE-RESCAIE STATHOM 31 (OO0EaW HATCHIE ) ST.E0.000

D baw begur for F fwrey 4-bary e efdfion. i slespeng ouasrien iz scoormme-
Zaiw [l i eeeve e CocesedticTes epaan Sl pemrurenet i oagoing

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.




1

.

7.3 : & A 'u.

Project Summar

A summary of every oG oo oo i

FROPOGEDR PROJECTS

project evaluated and R R s Gl .

Brai il Wi P donbetny Piwaldp jaygevm 28 5006 will oo cqfe mdes

budgeted for the current |: sswcoomsmerson:

LT R T S e R ey e S |

- 1 EMERGHERCY SENVCES BUL DIRG ik by |
Isca year- Fiteenics risasediboe B P o il Sesbin] iyeroa 1 E SO0 mar wie aogrmies

4 CLEMEMNTAC PINCHEMEY QOVERMMENT BUM DHNG 54 I - 15 2l
Fesowmbors by e warbeg fesbdy (sree 13 No0a e oy apraden
5 X AUERELL 5T FORMER LAW DFFICE N RMGELAND (R | 5o

PriyeaTy Pesvhaiid iy Tub ety @ WO Aptcaiieyil & svioks buifesi i
ekl e i) HVAL ol

& N2 WEATHERSEY IHonE—Addiconal Remralona % 1 S0 SaTS0H
Frareis [ fhnypef ek g ot sl | o corrp=lp ppeewn) o (Ve Sergine asp
Mwiiey finid. Pl pvsiepiiss Seid 3 B isdwTiermd Doed' o Ailey fuspiin

F RIMGELANDE GRADED SCHOOL BUILDeNG L1 . b1

Ediion for oficw dappror. 2 O anc sdapdsw w-une of e srobeg apece
[agperan 1 TRl miS ol apgredes

%  DEPARTNENT OF BTl SERWICES 748 5105
by PR K P oAb fardny fapgemos 10 M0 e ol apprete e
¥ OFFICE FOR BOWRD OF ELECTION SUPERNISORS L] ' 1.5

Rarcamicytn i e sty My (apgera 10 000w wih oie copaden

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.




>
]
14

: ' , ‘ o d \
‘ ; k-\’u.‘

Project Summar

FHOPOSED SO0E BLIGET

A summary of every

PROFOSED PROJECTE {CONT |

prOject evaluatEd and 10 JASFER COUNTY DETENTION CENTER- Adgitions. sng Fsnowiions R BHM

Agicierwin Foh el Moniliy] GRecs sakstoniey] MagEiis Lol B RN
17 EEiaf den] Aeade@la vt K Pal soiiles) S i LT SO el i o

budgeted for the current o

18 HEW COMSOLIDATED REGIOMAL DETEMTION CERTER TBD L=
M v s bl bt Gl L sarew vl sunbmy S b el el

fiscal year. st

12 RIDGELAND-CLAUDE DEAN MRPORT TERMMALFBO TR fakl

M e’ fealideny] [Rerems 7 AT e muerienacs shormges aaenE F RRT
13 JASPFEN ANIWAL RESCUE BHSSION 1 vl - Sim

Donuinamion of @ = ey on P emieg sie of 2480 M e o coniingensd
e S o) = ica ooy ShaniT Office fsoilfy

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.




Project Detail and Photos

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Farmers Produce I\/Iarket

APPROVED WORK AUTHORIZATION: $900,000

Work authorization included the following:

+ Construction Costs » Fumnishings Allowance
+ Site Development » Technology Allowance
+ Design Fees = Contingency

+ [Inspection & Permit Fees

JASP Y
o 0 OUNTYTY iHl\\‘l..\?i'.ahllul\‘n.

= Tl

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., In



R TR S g, I
mers Produce Market O
R

|

Far

\SP )
J PER ¢ OUNTY 1\ﬂ\\'l-\ﬁllut:-lilnv

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



it

: ol
!'.k\'u‘.

Rldgeland Claude Dean Alrport

APPROVED WORK AUTHORIZATION: $3,000,000

Work authorization included the following:

Construction Costs

Site Development
Design Fees

Inspection & Permit Fees




?
W . o
: T ( . ’ < f ? .‘ i :
3 ‘ ' o .‘ ‘\: | 4 s \ } " -‘_‘/ ,W "";, 8 . 13 c .
- : R E . . . ol v o
A 5 | o Bl p 4“?"" #"J-.

/4 R ﬁ!\ V4 L A It

“
13

2 T {i
Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



A

112 Weathersby Drive

APPROVED WORK AUTHORIZATION: $205,210

Work authorization included the following:

» Construction Costs
+ Contingency
+ Inspection & Permit Fees

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



6 ¥ "(;‘; - ' § 1 R wr s 7 | oR Co
: 3 \ ] v . "l' [ St 1€. Qo
. A ﬁ" A M B | ' : : . ."... »""‘
/ »
f./\

1

112 Weathersby Drive =

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



."— r ' ‘
"‘," ’ ! W ,!-:'.."

‘l: '. ,‘;-,‘; \: .!' | g‘\ \"‘ g 1 s
Jasper Count

Courthouse

APPROVED WORK AUTHORIZATION: $750,000

Budget includes the following:

+ Construction Cosis
+ [Inspection & Permit Fees
« Contingency

‘l“l
REITITA

M. B. Kahn Construction CD;, Inc.




) 2" 4 " '. riih ,"‘ o :

‘1 b LA '.9.. ": ’ :1 } \ "'o: ; W s-[' o : ' qR Cogs
¥ SN 3 L0 RilS a8t .
Jasper Count Courthouse %\ﬁ

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Pratt Memorial

{1

Liébrar‘

APPROVED WORK AUTHORIZATION: $4,750,000

Work authorization included the following:

« Construction Costs « Furnishings Allowance
« Site Development « Technology Allowance
« Design Fees « Contingency

« Inspection & Permit Fees

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



. Y Vs - k. b - ""1*. TS . " 1’.. ) -'
e A e ol & . T By, X T # o v
e "-. ' P ; 4 . 3 " & " -
, 2R "13,,’"“( e 30 Tt X - iﬁ‘ -~ 3
» ' -

3

W

"N g = A :

! 3 . ™ : v '

e i R Y 5

' . \ X 2 - > \ Al - [ £ S 32 Oy
! ’ ‘~ . : '°.~‘ 5 s ol | #
= ) | &\'u ‘.‘ 4\ ) ?9

Pratt Memorial Librar D

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



TR LS

i - [ ﬁ-“ (R .__:\ . | ":7

New Fire-Rescue Station 31

APPROVED WORK AUTHORIZATION: $7,830,000

New fire-rescue station 31 with site development

Work authorization includes the following:

« Construction Cosls « Furnishings Allowance
« Site Development « Technology Allowance
+ Design Fees « Contingency

» Inspection & Permit Fees

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



3

111

-".ﬂ

-

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., In



TOTAL BUDGET:

Budget includes the following.

Construction Cosls

Site Development
Design Fees

Inspection & Permit Fees

Furnishings Allowance
Technology Allowance
Contingency
Assumes design starf
early 2025

- - el
M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



4 ;.‘!. \
S | k A 'u.'\

S'heriff’s Office

TOTAL BUDGET: $18M — $20M

New sheriff's office (approx. 24,500sf) with site procurement/development

Budget includes the following:

Construction Costs

. « Furnishings Allowance
« Site Development « Technology Allowance
« Land Purchase (5 acres) « Contingency

« Design Fees « Assumes design star
« [Inspection & Permif Fees early 2025

M. B. Kahn Construction Co.,



!

]

Ve 3 77.. ‘" ' A A
er N, . Y A : " g n & P
6. : o, . . ’ R
- - .‘l . *
A ; 4 .
- Rihd L SRR IS

Emergency Services

TOTAL BUDGET: $1M — $2M

Exterior renovations to the existing building (approx. 16,000sf) with site upgrades

Budget includes the following:

« Construction Cosls « Contingency

« Site Development + Assumes design starl
» Design Fees early 2026

» Inspection & Permit Fees

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



‘ ’ YRR “:4

lementa C. Pinckne

TOTAL BUDGET: $4.2M — $5.2M

Renovations to the existing facility (approx. 19,200sf) with site upgrades

Budget includes the following:

« Construction Costs « Contingency

« Site Development « Assumes design start
» Design Fees early 2025

« [Inspection & Permit Fees




|

]

" ST T e
| :

Street

252 Russell

TOTAL BUDGET: $300k — $500k

Minor renovations and repairs to the existing 5,000 sf structure

Budget includes the following:

Construction Cosis » Technology Allowance
Design Fees « Contingency
Inspection & Permit Fees + Assumes design start
Furnishings Allowance early 2025

L m—

N. B-. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Uit

: oy
!'.k\'u‘.

Rldeland Graded School

TOTAL BUDGET: $8M — $9M

Addition for offices (approx. 2,300sf) and adaptive re-use of the exisling space (approx. 11,700sf)
with site upgrades

Budget includes the following:

+ Construction Cosits « Contingency

+ Site Development » Assumes design start
« Design Fees early 2026

+ Inspection & Permit Fees

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



ji

1

i
GBS ) AR

. e . J [ St
Vs Ly Y 3 s

%,
>

R &Lt o) on SRR i it
epartment of Social Services

TOTAL BUDGET: $2.4M — $3.5M

Major renovations to the existing facility (approx. 12,200sf) with site upgrades

Budget includes the following:

s Construction Cosls « Contingency

« Site Development + Assumes design slart late
« Design Fees 2026

» [Inspection & Permit Fees

- |

- - e
"

- A ﬂ B S

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



“ TRAN &:4‘ \\ ot .. "r:

e HE

.
1 _

Board of Election Supervisors

TOTAL BUDGET: $2.4M — $3.5M

Renovations to the existing facility (approx. 10,000sf) with site upgrades

Budget includes the following:

» Construction Costs « Furnishings Allowance
« Site Development « Technology Allowance
+« Design Fees « Contingency

+ [nspection & Permit Fees « Assumes design start

early 2026

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



N

, ' ‘." b LAk ﬁ'i\ VT . ‘. ’
Detention Center- Additions/Renovations

TOTAL BUDGET: $32M — $34M

Additions including housing space, intake/booking, magistrate court, etc. (approx. 37,300sf) and ren-
ovations to the existing facility (approx. 33,500sf) with site upgrades

Budget includes the following:
Construction Costs

. « Furnishings Allowance
« Site Development « Technology Allowance
» Design Fees « Contingency

L ] -

Inspection & Permit Fees Assumes design start

early 2025

- - el
M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



N

v d
S | & A ‘u.:

Rldgeland -Claude Dean Alrport/FBO

TOTAL BUDGET: $7.5M — $9M

New terminal building (approx. 7,850sf) and storage hangar (approx. 1,650sf) with site development

Budget includes the following:

Construction Costs

. «  Furnishings Allowance
« Site Development « Technology Allowance
« Design Fees « Contingency

« [Inspection & Permit Fees « Assumes design start

early 2025

W

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



' i N
= .k\'u‘.

Jasper Anlmal Rescue Mission

TOTAL BUDGET: $11M — $12M

Budget includes the following:

Construction Costs

. « Furnishings Allowance

+» Site Development » Technology Allowance

+« Design Fees +« Contingency

« Inspection & Permit Fees « Assumes design start
garly 2025

M. B. Kahn Gonstr‘uctlom Co., Inc.



» '
v 'g. \‘» - \ | "'I'l- . 1y & g5

# | ﬁ:‘\ S 1 .". RS p—_ s ' ?-J,
asper Animal Rescue Mission %/&k

J

JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION
DURNG CONSYFUC-’K}%' PHASE
62025

= ‘{‘ 2SI SRS »
"!]c'k ‘3f- 'f

- -

TENFO

..‘/ ‘ot * M LALNDSY

> 2 WITHN LIMITS OF §
JARN

NEW JATM
FACAITY
SIZE, LAYOUT
LOCATION: TRD

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Conclusion

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



‘! . »
iA :

1

onclusion

Final Reminders and Recommendations
» Major capital needs are listed in this report
» Annual or regular updates

» Open communication with the Public

Thank you for the opportunity and we look
forward working with you on these exciting
projects!

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



S A
2. 9
14

§i

B e
3 . Y .
‘:‘ \ \-" b‘

Where to begin?

1

Potential County Priorities
1. Jasper County Detention Center
New Sheriff's Department

Emergency Services Building

SO

Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.



Questions?

M. B. Kahn like to extend special appreciation for the opportunity and the input from the following:

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL JASPER COUNTY STAFF

Andrew Fulghum, County Administrator

John Kemp, Chairperson

William Rowell, Vice Chairperson Donald Hipp, Director, Detention Center

I MEtirs SaidlsE. Council VBT Kimberly Burgess, Director, Administrative Services Division

A e e N ey T Danny Lucas, Director, Development Services Division
Joseph Arzillo A T et bae James Iwanicki, Director, Engineering Services Division
Wanda Simmons, Clerk to County Council Russell Wells, Director, Emergency Services Division/ Fire Chief

Tisha Williams, Administrative Assistant, Administrator's Office

M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.




Agenda
ltem #6



Jasper County Engineering Services

James M Iwanicki, P.E. P.O. BOX 1244 = Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936
Director of Engineering Services Phone (843) 726-7740 = FAX (843) 726-7743

JIwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov

August 18, 2025

MEMO:
TO: Andrew Fulghum, County Administrator
1% Sales Tax Advisory Committee

FROM: Jim Iwanicki ﬂm

RE: Jasper County Update 1% Sales Tax Update (Roadway)

August 18, 2025, Update:

Jasper County advertised a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) on March 17, 2025, with a due date
of March 17, 2025, for a Program Manager for the Transportation Sales Tax Program. Four
RFQs were received. The RFQs were scored by a committee consisting of The City of
Hardeeville, The Town of Ridgeland, The Jasper County School System, and Kim Burgess,
Jasper County’s Director of Administrative Services. Jim Iwanicki recused himself from the
scoring because of his working relationships with some of the proposers. The team
recommended Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC (Consultant) as the most qualified
proposer. This information was shared with the Transportation Sales Tax Advisory Committee,
and they supported the selection of the Consultant as the most qualified proposer.

Kim Burgess, David Tedder and Jim Iwanicki met with the Consultant and negotiated the
attached contract. The contract reflects the items of work described in the RFQ and additional
items identified and agreed upon by both parties that should be included to provide the required
Program Management.

The Consultant’s compensation will be on an hourly fee basis, and a lump sum for the early-
known deliverables, as described in Exhibits D and E of the Contract. The hourly rate schedule
and fee proposal has a not-to-exceed limit of eight million nine hundred eighty-five thousand
dollars ($8,985,000.00). Individual Task Orders may be executed as part of this contract for
specified projects and tasks, in which the Consultant shall be compensated in accordance with
mutually agreed upon Task Orders for which the specific scope, schedule and fee for each job
order will be individually negotiated. The fee represents about 2.4% of the $376 million
program during the first 5 years. The total not to exceed fee for the first five years if pro-rated to
remain constant over 15 years would be 7.1% of the Transportation Program. As laid out in the
RFQ the first few years will require more administrative effort to get the program activated and it

Page 1 of 2


mailto:JIwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov

is expected that the fees for the years beyond year 5 will be a lessor percentage of the program
thus bringing the overall program management fee closer to 6% over the 15 years. As a
comparison, similar scoped program management fees in other counties were Richland County
6.5%, Horry County 5.5%, and York County 5.0%.

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Transportation Sales Tax Advisory Committee
support and recommend the following to County Council:

Approve the contract with Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC for the
Program Management of the Transportation Sales Tax Program for a not-to-exceed
limit of eight million nine hundred eighty-five thousand dollars ($8,985,000.00).
Individual Task Orders may also be executed as part of this contract for specified
projects and tasks, in which the Consultant shall be compensated in accordance with
mutually agreed upon Task Orders for which the specific scope, schedule and fee for
each job order will be individually negotiated.

Attachments:

Contract

Contract Exhibits*

Consultants Letter Dated August 5, 2025, to Jim Iwanicki

*Notes: Exhibit B-1 Original RFQ
Exhibit B-2 Consultants Proposal

Page 2 of 2



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
BETWEEN
Jasper County, South Carolina
AND
Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC

THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO ARBITRATION PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE ANN. §15-48-10

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of , 2025, by Infrastructure
Consulting & Engineering, LLC located at 110 Midlands Court, West Columbia, SC 29169, (CONSULTANT),
and Jasper County located at 358 Third Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936, (COUNTY).

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that the work to be performed is within its particular area of expertise, is
qualified to perform such services, and shall be fully responsible for means and methods used in performing its
work (WORK). COUNTY relies upon such representations.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.1. Scope. CONSULTANT will provide WORK as described in Exhibit A, “Scope of Services,” (SCOPE)

to be negotiated and mutually agreed upon by both parties and made a part of this AGREEMENT. WORK
described under the SCOPE shall be completed by CONSULTANT as directed by COUNTY.

1.2. Independent Contractor. Nothing in this AGREEMENT creates a relationship between COUNTY or its
affiliates and CONSULTANT, except that of an independent contractor.

1.3. Ownership of Documents.

1.3.1. CONSULTANT agrees that all reports, drawings, studies, specifications, estimates, maps,
computations, test results, and other data (DOCUMENTS) prepared by or for CONSULTANT
under this AGREEMENT are “work for hire” and shall be delivered to, become, and remain the
property of COUNTY upon completion of, and payment for, the WORK.

1.3.2. COUNTY agrees that CONSULTANT shall have the right to retain one or more copies of
DOCUMENTS. COUNTY shall have the right to use DOCUMENTS without restriction,
limitation, or additional compensation to CONSULTANT.

1.3.3.  CONSULTANT shall not incur any liability for use or re-use of its DOCUMENTS on an
extension of this project or on another project where such use or re-use is without
CONSULTANT’S written consent.

1.4. Electronic Data.
1.4.1. The parties recognize that drawings, specifications, three-dimensional modeling (such as CAD
drawings, MS Office files, and Building Information Models), and other DOCUMENTS may be

transmitted among COUNTY, CONSULTANT, and others by electronic media as an alternative
to paper hard copies (collectively “Electronic Data”).

1 of 9



1.5.

2.1.

2.2.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

1.4.2. The transmitting party specifically disclaims all warranties, expressed or implied, including, but
not limited to, implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. However,
transmission of Electronic Data shall not invalidate or negate any duties pursuant to the applicable
standard of care with respect to the creation of Electronic Data unless such data is materially
changed or altered after it is transmitted, and the transmitting party did not participate in such
change or alteration.

1.4.3. CONSULTANT acknowledges that differences may exist between Electronic Data and hard-copy
DOCUMENTS. In the event of a conflict between hard-copy DOCUMENTS and Electronic Data,
signed or sealed hard-copy DOCUMENTS shall govern.

1.4.4. CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify and hold COUNTY harmless for all claims arising from the
use of Electronic Data by CONSULTANT or any third party authorized by CONSULTANT.

CONSULTANT shall comply with the terms contained in Exhibit F: Mandatory Federal Provisions if the
project involves Federal funds.

ARTICLE IT - COUNTY

COUNTY shall designate a person to act with authority on COUNTY's behalf and respond in a timely
manner to submissions by CONSULTANT.

COUNTY shall furnish information or services required by this AGREEMENT with reasonable
promptness. COUNTY shall also furnish any other information or services under the COUNTY’s control
and relevant to the CONSULTANT’s performance of the WORK with reasonable promptness after
receiving a written request for such information or services.

ARTICLE III - CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion,
and the coordination of all designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services furnished by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT.

Taxes/Fees. CONSULTANT shall pay all taxes imposed by any federal, state, or local taxing authority
on: (a) all fees, costs and other compensation paid by COUNTY to CONSULTANT pursuant to this
AGREEMENT; and (b) all payroll and compensation sums paid by CONSULTANT to
CONSULTANT’s employees and (c) all other taxes, fees, and charges levied against CONSULTANT on
account of this AGREEMENT.

Qualification of CONSULTANT’s Personnel. Persons assigned by CONSULTANT to the WORK shall
be duly qualified, experienced, and have a thorough knowledge of federal, state, and local regulations and
policies regarding their respective disciplines. CONSULTANT shall not replace any member of
CONSULTANT’s team designated in the SCOPE that remains in CONSULTANT’s employ without the
approval of COUNTY, which approval by COUNTY shall not be unreasonably withheld.
CONSULTANT shall notify COUNTY immediately in writing if a member of CONSULTANT’s team
designated in the SCOPE leaves CONSULTANT’s employ. The CONSULTANT shall replace any
member of CONSULTANT’s team designated in the SCOPE to which COUNTY reasonably objects.

2 of 9



3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

CONSULTANT represents that (a) WORK will be performed in a manner consistent with the care and
skill ordinarily exercised by other professionals practicing in the same locality and providing similar
services on projects of similar size, complexity and conditions; and (b) in conformance with the SCOPE
and all work orders.

Time for Performance.

3.5.1.

3.5.2.

3.5.3.

Time limits stated in the SCOPE and Exhibit C, “Program Schedule”, are of the essence to the
AGREEMENT.

CONSULTANT shall provide a status report to COUNTY on a regular basis or with each invoice
submittal detailing the progress of the WORK, including whether (a) the WORK is proceeding
according to the time limits stated in the SCOPE; and (b) items exist which require resolution so
as not to jeopardize CONSULTANT’s ability to meet SCOPE time limits.

CONSULTANT will provide deliverables continuously and diligently, providing sufficient
personnel, material, and equipment to meet project schedules and milestones, including the use of
overtime if appropriate. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all damages incurred by
COUNTY due to delays caused by CONSULTANT.

Audit:/Access to Records.

3.6.1.

3.6.2.

CONSULTANT shall maintain books, records, logs, and other documents pertinent to the WORK
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and industry practices. COUNTY,
other applicable agencies, or any of their duly appointed representatives shall have access to any
of this information for the purposes of examination, audit, excerpts, and transcriptions.

Records described above shall be maintained and made available during the performance under this
AGREEMENT and for a period of three years after COUNTY makes final payment with all other
pending matters closed.

Indemnification.

3.7.1.

3.7.2.

3.7.3.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless COUNTY, their officers and employees, from
liability of any nature or kind, including costs and expenses (including but not limited to reasonable
attorney’s fees), for liability for damages resulting, in whole or in part, from negligent acts, errors,
omissions, or misconduct of CONSULTANT or any person or organization for whom
CONSULTANT may be responsible including, but not limited to, CONSULTANT’s
subcontractors.

Approval by COUNTY or other agencies of drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and
incidental engineering work or materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve
CONSULTANT of responsibility for its WORK. CONSULTANT shall remain liable for all
errors and omissions regardless of any approvals by COUNTY.

The rights provided herein are nonexclusive and are in addition to any rights the parties may have
at law or equity.

CONSULTANT agrees to perform all WORK in compliance with all applicable laws.

3 0f9



4.1.

4.2.

5.1.

5.2.

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

7.1.

ARTICLE IV — CHANGES TO THE WORK

Change Order: A document signed by COUNTY authorizing an addition, deletion, or revision in the
WORK or an adjustment in the SCOPE price or time limits, or other revision to the AGREEMENT,
issued on or after the Effective Date of the AGREEMENT.

CONSULTANT recognizes and acknowledges that, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this
contract, CONSULTANT shall not be paid for any Change Order WORK not duly authorized by the
COUNTY.

ARTICLE V - PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
COUNTY shall pay CONSULTANT for WORK as follows:

Fee:

CONSULTANT’s compensation will be on an hourly fee basis, and a lump sum for the early known
deliverables, as described in Exhibits D and E, the hourly rate schedule and Fee Proposal, with a total
not-to-exceed limit of Eight million, Nine hundred and Eighty-Five thousand dollars and 00/100
($8,985,000.00). Individual Task Orders may be executed under this contract for specified projects
and tasks, in which the CONSULTANT shall be compensated in accordance with mutually agreed
upon Task Orders for which the specific scope, schedule and fee for each job order will be individually
negotiated.

Invoices must be submitted to COUNTY by the 25th of each month to be included in that month’s invoice
to COUNTY. CONSULTANT agrees that COUNTY shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT for
WORK covered by any invoice if CONSULTANT submits the invoice more than one hundred eighty
(180) days after the date CONSULTANT renders the services, or more than ninety (90) days after this
AGREEMENT terminates, whichever is earlier. Payment for services will be remitted to CONSULTANT
within thirty (30) days after COUNTY’s receipt of CONSULTANT s invoice.

ARTICLE VI - PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

CONSULTANT agrees that it will be solely and continuously responsible for all of its activities and those
of its employees or agents on the site where the WORK will be performed with respect to safety.

CONSULTANT will provide, at its own expense, all personal protective clothing and equipment required

for its employees to perform their work in a safe manner and in compliance with all applicable COUNTY
-specific and occupational health and safety standards.

CONSULTANT agrees that COUNTY may take whatever actions deemed necessary in its sole discretion
to mitigate any damage to persons and/or property in an emergency situation related to the project or this
AGREEMENT. To the extent CONSULTANT has caused or contributed to such situation,
CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify COUNTY for all costs incurred.

ARTICLE VII - INSURANCE

CONSULTANT shall, during the performance of this AGREEMENT and for an one-year period
thereafter, secure and maintain the following insurance at its own expense:

1. Errors and Omissions - Professional Liability

4 of 9



7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

$1,000,000 per Claim and Aggregate
$100,000 or less Deductible

2. General Liability - to include coverage for premises, operations, independent contractors, blanket
contractual liability, products completed operations, and personal injury.

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence
$2,000,000 Aggregate

3. Automobile Liability — Any Auto Owned, Non-owned, and Hired
$1,000,000 Limit
4. Excess Liability

$1,000,000 Occurrence Form
$1,000,000 Aggregate

5. Workers Compensation - Statutory
Employers Liability

$500,000 Each Accident
$500,000 Policy Limit
$500,000 Each Employee

Add COUNTY as additional insured for ongoing and completed operations for General Liability,
Automobile Liability and Excess Liability (Umbrella).

For all of the above, furnish certificates prior to commencement of work. The certificate holder (and
additional insured) should read as follows:

Jasper County

Attention: Finance Department
358 Third Avenue

Ridgeland, SC 29936

The Certificate of Insurance shall expressly state that if there is any material change in coverage
(cancellation, expiration, or exclusion of a specifically required coverage such as completed operations)
that the certificate holder, Jasper County, will receive at least 30 days’ prior written notice by either a
reliable carrier such as FedEx, UPS and alike or by USPS mail using the service of “Return Receipt
Requested”.

The insurance companies providing coverage must be rated “A-" or better by A. M. Best’s most recent
edition and be admitted and licensed in the CONSULTANT s state of domicile. Any exceptions to these
requirements must be referred to the COUNTY for prior approval.

To the maximum extent permitted by law, all insurance policies with the exception of Errors and Omissions
maintained hereunder shall provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of COUNTY.

50f9



7.7.

8.1

8.2.

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

The foregoing requirements are not intended to limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations assumed by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT.

ARTICLE VIII - TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
Termination.

8.1.1. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by COUNTY at any time for the convenience of the
COUNTY by written notice to the CONSULTANT specifying the termination date.
CONSULTANT shall be paid for WORK completed through the termination date.

8.1.2. COUNTY shall give written notice if CONSULTANT fails to perform its WORK in accordance
with the appropriate standard of care, fails to providle WORK in accordance with required
schedule, becomes insolvent or files for any form of bankruptcy protection, or is in breach of any
material obligations under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT must cure any such default
within seven (7) days of notice.

8.1.3. If CONSULTANT does not cure the default within the seven (7) days, then COUNTY may
terminate this AGREEMENT for cause and may take over the WORK and prosecute same to
completion by contract or otherwise, deduct such costs for completion from payments paid or
payable to CONSULTANT, and recover from CONSULTANT any shortfall.

8.1.4. If COUNTY should terminate CONSULTANT for cause, and it should thereafter appear by
adjudication or otherwise that such a termination was improper, the termination for default will be
converted to a termination for the convenience of COUNTY and payment will be made
accordingly. In no event shall COUNTY be obligated to compensate CONSULTANT for any
termination expenses or damages.

8.1.5. Any contract entered into by the COUNTY shall be subject to cancellation without damages or
further obligation when funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support
continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal period or appropriated year.

Suspension. COUNTY may, without cause, order CONSULTANT in writing to suspend, delay or
interrupt the WORK, in whole or in part for such period of time as COUNTY may determine. The WORK
fees and time may be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by suspension, delay, or interruption.

ARTICLE IX — CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

The parties agree to attempt to resolve all claims or disputes arising from or related to this AGREEMENT
at a meeting between the senior representatives of each party within five (5) business days of receipt by
either party of a notice and description of the dispute.

If the dispute is not settled under clause 9.1, the parties shall agree to mediate the dispute in compliance
with the SC Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) rules. The parties shall mutually agree upon the

selection of a mediator and bear the costs of the mediation equally.

Unless provided to the contrary herein CONSULTANT shall continue to perform the WORK and
COUNTY shall continue to pay undisputed amounts to CONSULTANT, pending the final resolution of

6 of 9



94.

9.5.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

10.9.

10.10.

any dispute or disagreement between COUNTY and CONSULTANT.

Neither party shall be liable to the other for any special, indirect, punitive, consequential damages including
but not limited to loss of profits, loss of use, loss of revenue, loss of capital, loss of goodwill, or any other
incidental or consequential damages arising out of the WORK.

This AGREEMENT is governed by the laws of the state of South Carolina. The venue for any ADR or
litigation shall be Jasper County.

ARTICLE X - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Assignment: CONSULTANT acknowledges that its services are unique and personal; therefore, its rights
under this AGREEMENT may not be assigned or its duties or obligations delegated without the express
written consent of COUNTY, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Amendment: This AGREEMENT may not be changed, altered, or amended in any way except in writing
signed by a duly authorized representative of each party.

Severability: If any provision or portion of a provision of this AGREEMENT is declared void or
unenforceable, or limited in its application or effect, all other provisions and unaffected portions thereof
shall remain fully enforceable; and the parties shall use their best efforts to negotiate a valid and enforceable
modification to this AGREEMENT to address any matters affected.

Headings: The headings of the Exhibits, Sections, Schedules, and Attachments contained in this
AGREEMENT are for convenience only and shall not expand, limit, or change the provisions thereof.

Interpretation - This AGREEMENT shall be interpreted under and governed by the laws of the state in
which the project is located.

Waiver - The failure of the parties to this AGREEMENT to enforce the provisions of this AGREEMENT,
or to exercise any option provided herein, shall not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions nor in
any way to affect the validity of this AGREEMENT or any part thereof nor the right of the parties to
enforce each and every provision thereafter.

Publication, Publicity and Confidentiality - Articles, papers, bulletins, reports, or other materials reporting
the plans, progress, analyses, or results and findings of the work conducted under this AGREEMENT shall
not be presented publicly nor published without prior approval in writing from COUNTY. Additionally,
representatives of the CONSULTANT are expressly prohibited from releasing any information to the
media or any other person about any matter pertaining to this AGREEMENT. Such information is to come
from COUNTY. CONSULTANT acknowledges that COUNTY is a political subdivision of the State of
South Carolina, and is subject to the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, S.C. Code 30-4-10 ef seq.

Drug Free Workplace - In accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as amended, and as a
condition precedent to the execution of this AGREEMENT, the undersigned certifies that
CONSULTANT will maintain a drug-free workplace.

Entire Agreement: This AGREEMENT, together with the attached Exhibits constitutes the entire
agreement between COUNTY and CONSULTANT and supersedes all prior written or oral
understandings.

Force Majeure: Neither Party shall be liable for any failure or delay in performance under this

7 of 9



AGREEMENT caused by events beyond the impacted party’s reasonable control; including, without
limitation: (a) acts of God; (b) flood, fire, earthquake, or explosion; (c) war, terrorist acts, riot or other civil
unrest; (d) government order, law, or actions; (¢) embargoes or blockades; (f) national or regional
emergency; (g) strikes, labor stoppages, or other industrial disturbances; and (h) epidemics or pandemics.
The impacted Party shall promptly give notice of the force majeure event to the other Party and shall use
diligent efforts to ensure the effects are minimized. The Impacted Party shall resume the performance of its
obligations as soon as reasonably practicable after the removal of the cause.

(SIGNATURE PAGE BELOW)

8 of 9



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this AGREEMENT as of the date
first above written. The signatories attest that each holds the requisite authority to bind their respective parties.

Jasper County, South Carolina

BY:

NAME:

TITLE:

Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LL.C

BY:

NAME:

TITLE:

Exhibits:

Exhibit A: Scope of Services

Exhibit B-1: Request For Qualifications

Exhibit B-2: ICE Statement Of Qualifications

Exhibit C: Program Schedule

Exhibit D: Fee Proposal

Exhibit E: Hourly Rates

Exhibit F: Mandatory Federal Provisions (if working on federally funded projects)

9 0of 9



]EINFRASTR UCTURE
CONSULTING & ENGINEERING

Jim Iwanicki, P.E.
Engineering Services Director
Jasper County, SC

623 Live Oak Road

P.O. Box 1244

Ridgeland, SC 29936

Date: August 5, 2025

Subject:

Fee Justification for Program Management Services — Jasper County Transportation Sales Tax
Program

Overview of Program Scope and Fee Context

The approved $376 million Transportation Sales Tax Program will fund approximately 16 major
transportation infrastructure projects over the next 10 to 15 years, involving significant planning,
design coordination, permitting, right-of-way acquisition, public engagement, utility
coordination, construction, and inspection responsibilities. ICE will serve as the County’s trusted
advisor and implementation partner to ensure these projects are delivered on time, within
budget, and in compliance with federal, state, and local standards.

The proposed $8.95 million not-to-exceed fee reflects a fair and appropriate investment in
professional program management services and equates to approximately 2.4% of the total
program value, a percentage well within industry norms for similar sales tax programs in other
counties across South Carolina and the Southeast.

Breakdown of Key Services Included
ICE’s scope of services includes the following core components over the first five years:

Program Management and Administration
e Program startup, scheduling, staffing, budgeting, and reporting
e Develop Program plans and guidance documents
e Ongoing coordination with County staff, elected officials, and the Advisory Committee
e Monthly progress reports and annual program performance assessments

Public Engagement and Communication
e Development and maintenance of a program website and project map
e Creation of public outreach materials and social media content
e Coordination of public meetings, stakeholder engagement, and Council presentations

Financial Oversight and Funding Strategy
e Development and maintenance of the program cash flow model
e Budget tracking, invoice reviews, and financial reporting

181 Bluffton Road, Suite C-102 | Bluffton, SC 29910 | 843-485-3560 (P) | www.ice-eng.com

An Equal Opportunity Employer



]EINFRASTR UCTURE
CONSULTING & ENGINEERING

e Assistance with matching funds, grants, and leveraging opportunities

Project Planning and Design Oversight

e Development of scopes, schedules, and cost estimates for individual projects

e Procure services of design firms

e Coordination with design consultants and technical review of submittals
e Conceptual design and engineering feasibility assessments where required

Fee Structure and Staffing

Below is the estimated "Not to Exceed" (NTE) fee for Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering
(ICE) to provide program management services for Jasper County's 15-year, $376M
transportation sales tax program (2025-2030). The $8.95 million estimate is based on estimated
hours for key personnel, including a dedicated Program Manager (PM) at a rate of $260/hour and

support staff such as Project Engineers,

Public Engagement Specialists,

Construction

Coordinators, and Administrative Support, all billed at competitive industry-standard rates.

ICE has structured the team to provide maximum value and flexibility to the County while
maintaining a lean and responsive staff footprint.

Fee Estimate Summary (Years 2025-2030)

Task Description Estimated Hours Estimated Fee
Task 1 Project Management 14,900 $3,000,000
Task 2 Program & Financial Management 4,715 $950,000
Task 3 Planning, Scoping & Concept Design 9,900 $2,000,000
Task 4 Utility Coordination 2,860 $600,000
Task 5 Construction Administration 3,036 $700,000
Task 6 ROW Acquisition Services 2000 + unit costs $700,000

Subtotal = $7,950,000

Early Deliverables = $250,000

Greenbelt Initiatives (Unknowns) = $700,000
Reimbursable Expenses = $85,000

TOTAL ESTIMATED N.T.E. FEE (Years 1-5) = $8,985,000

Breakdown by Task
Task 1: Project Management Services
e Scope: Design firm procurement, IGA/LPA coordination, design oversight, cost estimating,
bid management, public outreach.
e Effort: High ongoing effort
e Fee: $3,000,000

181 Bluffton Road, Suite C-102 | Bluffton, SC 29910 | 843-485-3560 (P) | www.ice-eng.com

An Equal Opportunity Employer




]EIHFRASTR UCTURE
CONSULTING & ENGINEERING

Task 2: Program & Financial Management
e Scope: Program plans, master schedule, financial forecasting, public involvement,
FOIA/grants.
e Effort: Intensive in Year 1 (setup), then 120 hrs/month.
e Fee: $950,000

Task 3: Project Planning & Conceptual Design
e Scope: Feasibility, environmental screening, cost-risk analysis, planning reports for 6
priority projects and 5 intersection projects.
e Effort: 800 hrs/project (top 6 priority projects and 5 intersection projects by 2030).
e Fee: $2,000,000

Task 4: Utility Coordination
e Scope: Utility conflict resolution, SUE coordination, relocation agreements.
e Effort: Varies by project. 40 hrs/project/month during design/ROW phases.
e Fee: $600,000

Task 5: Construction Administration
e Scope: Constructability reviews, attend construction meetings, document control,
monthly status reports
e Effort: Varies by project
e Fee: $700,000

Task 6: ROW Acquisition Services
e Scope: Title searches, appraisals ($1,500/parcel), negotiations ($200/hr), relocation
support.
e Effort: 60 hrs/project + unit costs. Assumes 200 parcels acquired in 5 years.
e Fee: $700,000

Total 5-Year NTE Fee: $8,985,000
Annual Average: $1.79M/year
Percent of Total Program: 2.4%

The estimate assumes:
e Full program ramp-up in Year 1 and continued active delivery in Years 2-5
e Strategic use of ICE personnel to reduce reliance on higher-cost specialty consultants
e Efficient use of time and budget through proactive management and prioritization

Other Key Assumptions:
e Program Duration: 15 years total, but fees estimated for first 5 years (2025-2030) as
requested, and assuming 12 project are activated in first 5 years.
e Project Phasing: 16 projects staggered over 15 years. Years 1-5 focus on planning, design,
ROW, and early construction for 6 priority projects and 5 intersection projects.

181 Bluffton Road, Suite C-102 | Bluffton, SC 29910 | 843-485-3560 (P) | www.ice-eng.com

An Equal Opportunity Employer



]EINFRASTR UCTURE
CONSULTING & ENGINEERING

e 2025 Hourly Rates: (direct labor X 3.0, blended for unit rate and escalated at 2.5%
annually)

e ROW Costs: Based on industry standards for South Carolina (appraisals, title searches,
negotiations). Non-hourly unit costs included.

e Greenbeltinvolvement, scope volatility and unforeseen complexities (e.g., environmental
delays, ROW disputes) is an unknown.

e Task Weighting: Higher effort in early years for program setup, planning, and ROW.

Comparison to Other Counties
Fee comparisons from other South Carolina counties with similar sales tax programs support the
reasonableness of this proposed fee:
e Charleston County (2022): $2.1 billion program, 1.1% PM fee over first phase
e York County (2017): $277 million program, 1.5% PM fee
e Berkeley County (2019): $587 million program, ~1.3% for program and construction
oversight combined

At 2.4% of Jasper County’s $376 million program, ICE’s proposed fee is below the industry
average of 3-6% for full program management and consistent with regional norms and reflects
the relative scale, geographic complexity, and required support functions for a successful
program.

Conclusion

The proposed fee is a reasonable, necessary, and competitive cost to ensure professional delivery
of one of Jasper County’s most significant public infrastructure investments. ICE is committed to
full transparency, continuous accountability, and delivering high-value services that maximize
every dollar of the sales tax funding entrusted to this program.

We look forward to serving as your long-term partner and delivering these important projects
for the citizens of Jasper County.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffrey S. Buckalew, PE
Program Manager
Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering

181 Bluffton Road, Suite C-102 | Bluffton, SC 29910 | 843-485-3560 (P) | www.ice-eng.com

An Equal Opportunity Employer



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES
For Program Management

Jasper County Transportation Sales Tax Program

PURPOSE and BACKGROUND

Jasper County voters passed a transportation sales tax referendum in November 2024. The County is
contracting with Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering to provide program and financial management,
project management, project planning, scoping, conceptual design, utility coordination, preliminary right-
of-way coordination, and construction administration for the Transportation Projects and for civil site
improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives identified in the referendum. The Sales Tax
Program is described in Exhibit B-1, the Request for Qualifications. The Statement of Qualifications as
submitted by Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering on April 30, 2025 is attached as Exhibit B-2. This
was the basis for selection and outlines the qualifications, personnel and work approach as Program
Manager. The following conditions apply to program management consulting firm:

¢ Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering is excluded from working as the design engineer for any
specific project design contract awarded through the sales tax program.

¢ Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering is eligible to perform construction management and CEl
services for projects under the sales tax program.

Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering (CONSULTANT) has been selected to provide Program
Management Services to Jasper County (COUNTY) in support of the 2024 Transportation Sales Tax Program.
The following shall serve as the initial scope of services to support the County in managing the Program
and may be amended as mutually agreed upon by both parties.

PROJECTS

The CONSULTANT shall provide the following services to aid Jasper County with the management and
implementation of the following 16 approved projects:

1. S-442 (Argent Boulevard) (from US 278 to SC 170): 4-lane divided or 5-lane widening with multi-
use paths on both sides for approximately 3.8 miles and would be coordinated with the SC 170
Widening and Access Management project ($57,000,000).

2. US 278 Corridor Phase 1 (Beaufort County Line to Argent Blvd): 6-lane road widening for
approximate 1 mile ($15,000,000).

3. US 278 Corridor Phase 2 (Argent Blvd to 1-95): 6-lane road widening for approximately 4.75 miles
(with two bridges, approx. 360 LF and 90 LF) ($50,000,000).

4. SC 46/SC 170/SC 315 Intersection Improvements and Widening: assume 1 mile widening with
intersection improvements at SC 46 and SC 170 to potentially combine into 1 intersection
($30,000,000).




5. US 17/US 321 Intersection Improvement: skewed intersection in Hardeeville and may contain
complicated right of way acquisition, assumes existing bridge over railroad can remain
(54,000,000).

6. US 17 Widening (SC 315 to SC 170): 4-lane divided widening for approximately 2 miles
(524,000,000).

7. SC 315 Widening from SC 170/SC 46 intersection to US 17: 4-lane/5-lane widening for
approximately 6 miles ($41,500,000).

8. SC 336 Intersection Improvements (Grahamville Rd to SC 336): potential realignment of SC 336
for approximately 0.3 mile and potential for complicated R/W acquisition: ($5,000,000).

9. 1-95 Exit 18 Interchange with US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road Improvements: Upgraded
interchange included with SCDOT [-95 project from MM 8 to MM 21. Project would include road
improvements to US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road ($12,000,000).

10. 1-95 Exit 22 Connector (US 278 to Bees Creek Road): new road with potential new bridge over I-
95, dependent upon alighnment and SCDOT'’s improvements for Exit 22 for approximate 3 miles:
($36,000,000).

11. Glover Road (Bees Creek Road (S-13) to SC 462): Dirt road and paved road improvement —assume
2 lanes with R/W purchase for future widening ($26,000,000).

12. US 278/SC 652 (Calf Pen Bay Road) Intersection Improvement: A traditional intersection
improvement on US 278 has been installed with left turn lane and right turn onto SC 652, but
improvements were not incorporated on SC 652. Turn lanes with improved intersection

realignment should be considered or a roundabout should be installed as this could be a key
intersection for traffic calming for entrance to Ridgeland: ($2,000,000).

13. SC 462 (SC 170 to Snake Road): 4-lane divided or 5-lane widening for approximately 3 miles and
safety improvements for approximately 5 miles ($56,000,000).

14. US 17/Mackay Point Road Intersection: Realignment of 5-27-37 to eliminate skewed intersection
with Mackay Point Road and may involve improved access management on US 17, dependent on
coordination with SCDOT, assume 0.6-mile realignment and intersection improvement:
(55,000,000).

15. US 321/SC 336 Intersection Improvement: skewed intersection in Tillman ($2,500,000).

16. Reconstruction of Levy Road: ($10,000,000).

Greenbelt Initiatives: $94,000,000 for financing greenbelt initiatives (including but not limited to,
purchasing property for conservation, purchasing conservation easements, creating passive greenspace,
creating active greenspace, protecting natural resources, protecting agricultural or heritage landscapes,
and protecting scenic corridors).

Management of the Greenbelt Initiatives is NOT part of the Consultant’s scope, except for the civil site
improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiative projects.

Jasper County officials have determined the preliminary unofficial top roadway priorities to be as follows:

1. S-442 (Argent Boulevard) (from US 278 to SC 170): 4-lane divided or 5-lane widening with multi-
use paths on both sides for approximately 3.8 miles and would be coordinated with the SC 170
Widening and Access Management project ($57,000,000).




2. US 278 Corridor Phase 1 (Beaufort County Line to Argent Blvd): 6-lane road widening for
approximate 1 mile ($15,000,000).

3. US 278 Corridor Phase 2 (Argent Blvd to 1-95): 6-lane road widening for approximately 4.75 miles
with two bridges (approx. 360 LF and 90 LF) ($50,000,000).

4. 1-95 Exit 18 Interchange with US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road Improvements: Upgraded
interchange included with SCDOT [-95 project from MM 8 to MM 21. Project would include road
improvements to US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road ($12,000,000).

5. Reconstruction of Levy Road: ($10,000,000).

6. SC 336 Intersection Improvements (Grahamville Rd to SC 336): potential realignment of SC 336
for approximately 0.3 mile and potential for complicated R/W acquisition: ($5,000,000).

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The CONSULTANT shall provide the following services to aid Jasper County with the management and
implementation of the

1. Task 1 - Project Management Services

a. Assist the County in obtaining Local Public Agency (LPA) status with South Carolina Department of
Transportation (SCDOT). Act as an extension of County staff and provide the needed services to
the County for compliance with SCDOT LPA procedures for projects involving state and/or federal
funds.

b. Coordinate, manage, and review project plans, technical reports, specifications, and estimates
prepared by project design consultants providing professional services to the County, for
consistency with contract budgets, schedules, scope of work, design criteria, and applicable
standards. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

c. Project cost estimates will be reviewed, vetted and updated annually to keep pace with market
trends.

d. Prepare independent cost estimates for professional services for each project and assist the
County with scope, schedule, and fee negotiations with project design consultants, also to include
the civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

e. Review project design consultant invoices for accuracy, compliance with contract terms, and
progress of the work. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt
Initiatives.

f. Conduct meetings, monitor design progress, and keep the County informed of each project’s
status. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

g. Coordinate with municipalities, environmental agencies, and other project stakeholders as
applicable to secure necessary approvals and permits prior to the construction letting. This shall
include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

h. Ensure that all necessary permits and environmental approvals are obtained prior to letting a
project for construction. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt
Initiatives.

i. Ensure that all rights and easements necessary for the project are acquired prior to the
construction letting. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt
Initiatives.



Ensure that all utility coordination activities necessary to facilitate project construction have been
performed prior to the construction letting. This shall include civil site improvements associated
with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Perform technical, constructability, and maintainability reviews, including life cycle costs,
accessibility, equipment clearances, etc. prior to the construction letting. This shall include civil
site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Responsible for overseeing the preparation of construction bid documents by the project design
consultants, including the review of plans, specifications, estimates of quantities, bid schedules
invitations to bid or request for proposals that shall comply with the County procurement code.
This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

. Conduct pre-bid meetings, review bids, and advise the County through selection and contract

award process. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.
Coordinate and/or conduct value engineering studies and recommendations as may be requested
to reduce construction costs. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the
Greenbelt Initiatives.

Review and maintain project related correspondence and files. This shall include civil site
improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Perform public outreach activities including public meeting facilitation, mailer and handout design,
coordinate response to public comments and meetings, or as required. This shall include civil site
improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Task 2 — Program and Financial Management

a.

Provide a written monthly Program Status Report for County staff and Council, due by 12:01p.m.
local time on the 15th of each month.

Attend all meetings associated with the program as directed by the County.

Prepare a Program Management Plan that will serve as the playbook for the entire sales tax
program. This document will outline governance, communication protocols, public information
and reporting strategies, risk management strategies, quality control measures, and every aspect
of program execution.

Prepare a Master Program Schedule that sequences all projects over the 15-year period, using
logical priorities, dependencies, and funding flows. The master schedule shall integrate individual
critical path method project schedules into a program-wide Gantt chart that clearly shows and
tracks critical tasks and deadlines a for the design, right of way acquisition, permitting, and
construction for all projects within the program and the timeline for Greenbelt
acquisitions/improvements. This will be updated quarterly and as projects progress.

Develop and maintain a Program Financial Plan to forecast Program revenues, project
expenditures, and cash balances. The financial plan shall be in accordance with the CIP and the
Consultant will participate in the County’s annual CIP planning process. Revenue and cash reports
will be County derived and maintained.

Provide quarterly financial reports to include revenues, encumbrances, and expenditures, due 30
days after the end of the quarter, using data provided by the County Finance Department.
Develop and implement a Public Involvement Plan which shall include a Program website, strategic
use of social media, holding public meetings as requested to provide accurate, up to date project



information to the citizens of Jasper County. This shall include civil site improvements associated
with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Develop and manage a dedicated Program Website, hosted and maintained by the Consultant with
a link to/from the County’s web site, to display program information, project updates, interactive
maps, timelines, and financial summaries, FAQ as well as an option for citizens to ask question or
provide input.

Develop and implement a project Data Management System that provides readily accessible,
complete, and well-organized files for each project.

Provide the County with recommendations for the timing and amount of bond issuances, based
upon the Program Financial Plan.

Review and recommend methods to maximize efficiency and achieve economies of scale in the
procurement of projects.

Develop consistent design criteria, standards, and specifications for use on projects developed by
the Program where needed due to no available or applicable SCDOT design criteria or SCDOT
standard specifications.

. Investigate, recommend, and pursue upon direction form the County, available Grant
Opportunities on behalf of the County.

Develop and implement a public involvement program which should include, at a minimum, a
Program website hosted and maintained by the Consultant with a link to the County’s web site,
and use of social media to provide accurate, up to date project information to the citizens of Jasper
County. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Assist with document production related to Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests and other
requests for information as applicable.

Assist with the development of encroachment permits, intergovernmental agreements (IGA),
memorandums of understanding (MOU), memorandums of agreement (MOA) and financial
participation agreement (FPA) to facilitate coordination with the SCDOT, South Carolina State
Infrastructure Bank (SCSIB) and other applicable parties as needed.

Determine a method to evaluate project risk and cost, conduct risk analysis as needed, and make
recommendations based on analysis. (Risk analysis per SOQ)

Conduct bid analysis/evaluation of bids or prepare cost estimates for comparison when
appropriate. Provide construction cost estimate when requested.

3. Task 3 — Project Planning, Scoping, and Conceptual Design

Establish the scope of improvements, cost estimates, and baseline cost-loaded schedules for each project
including the following subtasks. This shall include the civil site improvements associated with the
Greenbelt Initiatives.

A. Development of Conceptual Project Design

o Perform feasibility and initial constructability review of a conceptual design and scope of
each project. Provide baseline costs and schedule, to include design, right-of-way,
construction, utility coordination, utility relocation, and permitting.



The conceptual designs shall be developed in accordance with the South Carolina
Department of Transportation (SCDOT) Highway Design Manual and the American
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) “A Policy on
Geometric Design of Highways and Streets”.

Conceptual designs shall be developed on aerial photography and available GIS. Design
features to be illustrated shall include the proposed roadway typical sections, roadway
alignments, lane configurations, auxiliary intersection turn lanes, and bicycle &
pedestrian facilities. The conceptual designs shall be presented on color roll-plots for
coordination with project stakeholders and on 11” x 17” size sheets for incorporation into
a project planning report.

Work to minimize impacts to private property, buildings, cultural features (churches,
cemeteries, parks, etc.), major utilities, and natural resources in the development of the
project conceptual designs. COUNTY GIS property lines shall be referenced into the
conceptual design to estimate right of way impacts for each project. Impacts on buildings
and cultural features shall be estimated from aerial photography and a project field
review.

Perform an environmental screening to determine the presence of likely hazardous
material sites, threatened and endangered species, historical/cultural resources,
floodplains, and jurisdictional wetlands within the project area. The presence of these
environmental constraints will be determined through a windshield survey and database
searches.

Identify the expected permits and NEPA compliant environmental document (Categorical
Exclusion, Environmental Assessment, or Environmental Impact Statement) required for
each project based on conceptual design and environmental screening.

Baseline Cost Estimates and Schedules

o

Prepare a cost estimate for each project based on the conceptual project design. Project
cost estimates shall represent the total cost of project development and include the
following typical project costs:

e Engineering services (planning and design),
¢ Right of way acquisition (land and services),
e Wetland mitigation,

e Utility relocation (utilities with prior rights),
e Construction,

¢ Construction engineering & inspection.

Appropriate factors shall be applied in coordination with the COUNTY to provide for
contingency within each project budget to address unforeseen conditions.

Baseline schedules to be developed for each project shall include the project phases of
planning and design, right of way acquisition, environmental permitting, utility
coordination, construction procurement, and construction. Cost estimates associated



with each of these project phases shall be used to create a cost loaded schedule for
purposes of program financial planning.

o Evaluate projects through a cost-risk analysis to identify risks to the project scope or
schedule which may significantly impact project cost. A cost-risk workshop will be
conducted for each project to engage subject matter experts in a review of the projects
to identify potential risks based on their experience with transportation project
development in the area. The project cost estimate will be refined to account for the
magnitude and likelihood of each identified risk.

C. Environmental Overview

o Prepare a Project Planning Report for each project to present the conceptual design,
environmental overview, utility overview, cost estimate, and schedule. The reports shall
contain the following information:

e Draft Purpose and Need Statement,

e Project Description,

o Design Criteria,

e Conceptual Design,

e Project Location and Length,

e Environmental Constraints

e Identify the Required NEPA Environmental Document,
e |dentify the Required Environmental Permits,
e Utility Information

e Cost Estimate

e Schedule

o These reports will be submitted to the County and SCDOT (if applicable) for review and
comment. All comments will be addressed as applicable in a comment response matrix
and revised final reports will be provided to the County.

D. Plan Review

o For projects on SCDOT roadways or within SCDOT ROW, the consultant shall conduct a
cursory review prior to submittal to SCDOT. The review will ensure that plans satisfy
SCDOT requirements and foreseeable errors are addressed. Detailed review of design
and/or calculations will not be required.

o For projects in the County or municipal system (not encroaching into SCDOT rights of
way), the consultant will act as the County reviewer and will review for design,
calculation, adherence to appropriate standards and specifications, and constructability.

o If plans require submittal to County planning or other departments for review, then the
Consultant will facilitate those submittals and communicate as needed.

4. Task 4 — Utility Coordination Services



Prepare a Utility Coordination Plan for the Program, to guide the procedures for an ongoing
process from conception to construction, to include Proactive Conflict Identification, Collaboration
& Communication, Data-Driven Decisions, Risk Assessments and Mitigation Strategies, &
Contingency Planning and Budgeting, Regular Joint Meetings, and Legal Rights and Contractual
Agreements.

Notify all known utility owners in the area of the projects and identify those utilities with existing
and proposed facilities in the project areas.

Facilitate and act as intermediary between project design team and utility representatives.

Hold regular joint utility meetings with utilizes once initial projects begin design phase.

Arrange for Project Design teams to employ Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) to establish utility
locations and identify conflicts .

Obtain letters of “no-conflict” for those utilities which are not impacted.

Coordinate with utility owner(s) and designer(s) to develop relocation plans for those conflicts
which cannot be eliminated.

Review all utility owners’ relocation plans to ensure that relocations proposed by one owner do
not conflict with another’s relocation.

Establish prior rights of occupancy.

Obtain no-cost letters from those utility owners without prior rights or develop utility agreements
with those owners who can document their prior rights.

Evaluate the feasibility of in-contract utility relocation and develop necessary agreements in
coordination with the utility owner.

Develop Contractual Provisions and Incentives:

e (Clear Utility Relocation Clauses: Incorporate explicit clauses in construction contracts that
clearly define responsibilities for utility coordination, relocation, and unexpected discoveries.

¢ In utility agreements consider incentives for early relocation and penalties for unreasonable
delays.

. Monitor the progress of utility relocation and incorporate utility relocation schedules into the
overall project schedule and master program schedule.

This shall include Utility Coordination Services for civil site improvements associated with the
Greenbelt Initiatives.

Task 5 — Program Construction Administration

Constructability reviews of plans and specifications prepared for projects prior to construction
letting.

Attend pre-construction conferences, routine construction coordination meetings, etc.

Reviewing and maintaining records of plans, specifications, shop drawings, revisions,
correspondence, warranties, etc.

Monitor each construction project and prepare monthly status reports.

Evaluating and recommending actions related to progress payments, change requests, claims,
disputes, etc.

Performing project close-out activities.



h.

Fostering and maintaining a positive public image related to construction operations by proper
interaction with the public and media, maintenance of traffic, attention to safety, permit
compliance, etc.

This shall include Construction Administration for civil site improvements associated with the
Greenbelt Initiatives.

6. Task 6 - Right of way Acquisition Services

The CONSULTANT will perform Right-of-Way Acquisition Phase Services for the COUNTY on the
Transportation Sales Tax projects on an as needed basis.

The Right-of-Way Services include the following items:

The CONSULTANT may be required to:

Prepare a Right of Way Acquisition Plan for the Program, to supplement the applicable procedures
and policies outlined in the SCDOT Right-of-Way Acquisition Manuals, as may be warranted for
identifying easement and right of way needs, procurement of appraisals and title research,
property owner contact, and other necessary tasks as requested by the County.

Provide Right-of-Way services to coordinate, plan, direct, and control R-O-W activities necessary
to legally acquire and record R-O-W needed for construction, ensuring that all R-O-W acquired for
federally assisted projects complies with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-646), as amended; and that all R-O-W acquired for
state assisted projects complies with Titles 57 and 28 of the S. C. Code of Laws, as amended; and
that all Right-of-Way acquired complies with all other applicable laws, ordinances, regulations,
policies, etc.

Forecast and estimate Right-of-Way acquisition schedules and Right-of-Way cash flow
expenditures and timelines for acquisition.

The following services will be performed on an as-needed basis for the individual projects, and scopes and
fees will be provided to the COUNTY for each Right-of-Way Acquisition assignment.

PoooyYw

Perform title search and provide title opinions for parcels requiring acquisition.

Provide appraisal cost estimates for acquisitions, by a South Carolina licensed appraiser.

Procure or perform appraisals and review the appraisals provided by others.

Negotiate acquisitions, providing a translator when necessary.

Litigation is not included in the scope of services and will be provided through the Jasper County
Attorney's Office.



EARLY KNOWN DELIVERABLES BY THE CONSULTANT

No. Task Deliverable Description Due Date
(Calendar Days after NTP)
1 2.c. Program Management Plan 120
2 2.d. Master Program Schedule 90
3 2.e. Program Financial Plan 90
4 2.8. Public Involvement Plan 60
5 2.h. Program Web Site Development and Startup 60
6 2.i. Data Management Plan / System 60
7 2.1. Design Criteria and Standards 60
8 2.9. Risk Analysis Method 60
9 4.a. Utility Coordination Plan 60
10 6.a. R/W Acquisition Plan 90
SCHEDULE

The CONSULTANT shall provide these services for a period of five (5) years as shown in Exhibit C - Schedule
and may be amended during that as mutually agreed to add services. This agreement may be extended
at the end of five years by mutual agreement between the COUNTY and the CONSULTANT.

FEE

Program Management Services (Tasks 1 - 6) shall be invoiced on an hourly fee basis, and a lump sum for
the early known deliverables, not-to-exceed $8,985,000.00 over the five year term of the contract.
Individual Task Orders may be executed under this contract for specified projects and tasks. The
CONSULTANT shall be compensated in accordance with mutually agreed upon Task Orders for which the
specific scope, schedule and fee for each job order will be individually negotiated.



EXHIBIT B-1

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)
RFQ #2025 -03

Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax
Program

Advertised: March 17, 2025
RFQ Due: April 30, 2025



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

. GENERAL INFORMATION
Jasper County is soliciting responses from qualified engineering firms (“Offerors” or
“Contractors”) licensed in South Carolina to provide Program Management and Civil
Engineering related professional services as further described herein.

RFQ MUST BE PHYSICALLY RECEIVED, AS INDICATED BELOW, BY 3:00PM ON
Wednesday, April 30, 2025.

Issue Request for Qualifications (RFQ) March 17, 2025
Pre-Submittal Conference April 9, 2025, 1 pm
Deadline for Inquires April 11, 2025, 1 pm
Response to Inquiries April 16, 2025
Deadline for Submitting Proposal April 30, 2025, 1 pm

1. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
1. Pre-Submittal Conference

The County will conduct an in-person Non-Mandatory Pre-Submittal conference as
part of this process to provide additional project information and expound upon
potential questions. This conference will be held on Wednesday, April 9, 2025 at
1:00 PMin Jasper County, Clementa Pinckney Government Building, County Council
Chambers, Third Floor, 358 Third Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936.

Attendance is not mandatory, all interested firms are strongly encouraged to attend.

Any questions regarding this project must be submitted in writing via email no later
than Friday April 11, 2025, by 1:00 PM. Questions should be emailed to
jiwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov. All submitted questions will be addressed and
posted on Jasper County’s Bids and Solicitations Web Page
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/services/bids-and-solicitations and the Jasper
County Vendor Registry website/ April 16, 2025.

2. Proposal Opening Location
The Proposals will be publicly opened at the Jasper County, Clementa Pinckney
Government Building, County Council Chambers, Third Floor, 358 Third Avenue,
Ridgeland, SC 29936. Proposals will be opened on the due date, Wednesday,
April 30, 2025 at 1:00 pm. Only the names of Offerors will be provided at the
opening. No other information will be shared at that time. All Offerors or their
representatives are invited to attend the proposal opening.

Page | 2


mailto:jiwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/services/bids-and-solicitations/
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/services/bids-and-solicitations/

3.

Page | 3

Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Submittals

Jasper County is hereby issuing this Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to firms that
have the capability and interest in undertaking and performing the scope of work
described in this RFQ. The RFQ is being publicly advertised in accordance with
Jasper County procurement guidelines. Each firm responding to this solicitation is
officially a RESPONDENT or PROPOSER. Each respondent must submit a sealed
package containing original and eight (8) copies of the RFQ. In a separate sealed
package original and two (2) copies of the Fee Schedule. All submissions will be
logged in and date and time stamped.

Printed submittals must be clearly labeled on the outside of the envelope with the
following wording:

a. Forthe RFQ:

JASPER COUNTY RFQ #2025 - 03 March 17, 2025 RFQ DOCUMENTS
b. Forthe Fee Schedule:

JASPER COUNTY RFQ #2025 - 03 March 17, 2025 Fee SCHEDULE

All late submittals will be rejected. Jasper County, South Carolina is not responsible
for late submissions caused by delays in mail delivery or a delay in any other
method of delivery. Print size shall be 12 pt. font minimum, on 8% by 11 paper,
double-sided and must include all of the information required in this RFQ. Provide a
cover page that includes: Company Name, Address, Point of Contact (Email
Address and Phone Number, and Date of Submission.

SUBMITTALS SHALL NOT EXCEED A TOTAL OF 75 PAGES. A PAGE IS
CONSIDERED TO BE ONE SIDE OF A SHEET OF PAPER IF PRINTED. EXCEEDING
THE PAGE LIMIT IS GROUNDS FOR REJECTION OF THE SUBMITTAL. The following
WILL NOT be counted as pages:

Front and/or back cover pages of your Qualifications document

Table of Contents for your Qualifications document

Section Dividers for your Qualifications document

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE document

Fee Schedule/Proposal - Submitted Separately from the Qualifications

© 200D

If you have any questions on the above page limit information email
iiwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov .


mailto:iiwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov

Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

4. Proposed Procurement Timeline

Release date for RFQ March 17, 2025
Pre-Submittal Conference April 9, 2025
Final Date to Receive Written Questions April 11, 2025
Addenda to Answer Questions April 16, 2025
RFQ Closing Date April 30, 2025
Completion of Selection Committee Review and May 21, 2025
Recommendation

Jasper County Council June 2, 2025
Execution of Contract June 16, 2025

5. Sealed and Marked

If sent by mail, or hand-delivered, original signed Proposals shall be submitted in a
sealed package, clearly marked on the outside of the package with RFP #2025 -3
PROGRAM MANAGER and addressed to:

Kimberly Burgess, Procurement Officer

Director, Administrative Services Division Jasper County
358 Third Avenue, Suite 304

P.O.Box 1149

Ridgeland, SC 29936

Itis the proposer’s sole responsibility to deliver the proposal to the Jasper County
Administrative Services Division Procurement Office for receipt on or before the due
date and time indicated. If a Proposal is delivered by U.S. Mail, the Proposer shall
be responsible for its timely delivery to the Procurement Office. Proposals delayed
by mail shall not be considered and shall be rejected. Proposals may be mailed to
the Procurement Office and accepted if the signed Proposal forms and required
submittals are mailed and received prior to the due date and time. Proposals
submitted via email will not be accepted. All submissions will be logged in and date
and time stamped. Any Qualifications received after the date and time specified
will be logged and date and time stamped as "late" and will remain unopened.

andreturned-unopenedtotherespondent:

Page |4



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

6. Legal Name and Signature
Proposals shall clearly indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of
the Proposer. Proposals shall be manually signed above the printed name and title
of signer on the Affidavit of Compliance page. The signer shall have the authority to
submit Proposals on behalf of the Proposer. Failure to properly sign the Proposals
form shall invalidate the Proposals and it shall not be considered for award.

7. Clarification and Addenda
Each Proposer shall examine REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS documents. The
Administrative Services Division, Procurement Officer shall not be responsible
for interpretations or clarifications of Project Scope.

All inquiries or suggestions, concerning interpretation, clarification, or
additional information pertaining to the Project Scope shall be made in writing
or through email to:

Jim Iwanicki, Engineering Services Director
Jasper County

623 Live Oak Drive

P.O. Box 1244

Ridgeland, SC 29936
iiwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov

Any inquiries or suggestions, concerning clarification of the REQUEST FOR
QUALIFICATIONS (excluding Project Scope) shall be made through the
Procurement Officer in writing or through email to:

Kimberly Burgess, Procurement Officer
Director, Administrative Services Jasper County
358 Third Avenue, Suite 304

P.O. Box 1149

Ridgeland, SC 29936
kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov

8. Responsive and Responsible Proposals
To be responsive, the proposal shall conform in all material respects to the
requirements set forth in the REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS. To be responsible,
the proposal shall perform fully the requirements, experience, reliability, capacity,
and equipment that will ensure good faith performance.

9. Reserved Rights
Jasper County reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary
to make the determination of the proposer’s responsiveness and responsibility.

Page | 5


mailto:jiwanicki@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page | 6

Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Applicable Law

All applicable laws and regulations of the United States of America, the State of
South Carolina and Jasper County will apply to any resulting agreement, contract, or
purchase.

Right to Protest
Appeals and remedies are provided for in the Jasper County Purchasing and
Contracting Ordinance, Article V, Jasper County Code of Ordinances.

Contract Forms

Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a
Proposal shall be on forms either supplied by or approved by the Jasper County
Procurement Officer.

Forms, Alternates, Variances

Proposals must be submitted on the attached REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS
forms, although additional information may be attached. The Offerors must indicate
any variance from the requested scope of services and/or terms and conditions, on
the RFQ Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Offerors must fully comply with the
requested Scope of Services, terms and conditions. Alternate Proposals may or may
not be considered at the sole discretion of Jasper County.

Proposal Prices

Provide an Hourly Rate Schedule for each billable title within the firm, mark-up
costs for subconsultants, vendors, and suppliers, etc.., and a schedule of
reimbursable costs and rates. Each item must be proposed separately, and no attempt
is to be made to tie any item(s) in with any other item or items.

Descriptive Information

All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the product/work covered by
this REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS are to be new and of suitable grade for the
purpose intended.

Deviations to Scope of Work and Requirements
Any deviation from the scope of work as written and accepted by the County may be
grounds for termination of the Contract.



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Quality

If any work product delivered does not meet applicable scope of work, or if the work
product does not meet industry standard performance and professionalism, the
Contractor shall redo the work at no expense to Jasper County. Contractor shall
refund to the County any money which has been paid to the Contractor for any work
not redone to meet industry standards and professionalism. The Contractor shall be
responsible for attorney fees in the event the Contractor defaults and court action is
required.

The County reserves the right to reject any or all materials/equipment if, in its
judgement, the item reflects unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or
shipping damages.

17. Regulations
It shall be the responsibility of the Consultant to ensure compliance with Federal,
State of South Carolina, and County laws, rules, regulations, or other requirements,
as may apply.

18. Termination of Award
Failure of the Consultant to satisfy the requirements of Jasper County shall be
reason for termination of the award. Any Proposal may be rejected in whole orin
part for good cause when in the best interest of the County.

19. Royalties and Patents
The successful Consultant shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or
process in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Consultant shall
defend all suits or claims for infringement of any patentright and shall hold the
County harmless from loss on account or cost and attorney’s fees incurred.

20. Inspection and Acceptance

No item(s) received by the County pursuant to this contract shall be deemed
accepted until the County has had reasonable opportunity to inspect the
item(s). Any item(s) discovered defective, or which do not conform to any
warranty of the seller upon inspection may be returned at the seller’s expense
for full credit or replacement.

If later, defects are discovered which were not ascertainable upon the initial
inspection, the item(s) may also be returned at the Seller’s expense for full
credit or replacement. The County’s return of defective items shall not exclude
any other legal, equitable or contractual remedies the County may have.

Page |7



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

lll. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.

Exceptions to Specification

Offerors taking exception to any part or section of the specifications shall indicate
such exceptions on the Affidavit of Compliance Form and continuation page(s), if
necessary. Failure to indicate exceptions shall be interpreted as the Proposer’s
intent to fully comply with the specifications as written.

Evaluation of Proposals

Any Purchase Order or Purchase Sales Agreement resulting from this REQUEST FOR
QUALIFICATIONS shall be awarded to the PROPOSER providing the best proposal as
determined by Jasper County, South Carolina.

AWARD WILL NOT BE MADE ON THE BASIS OF PRICE.

The committee will have representatives from the County, City of Hardeeville, Town
of Ridgeland, and Jasper County School District.

Responses will be evaluated using the following criteria:

A. Qualifications, Abilities, and Experience of Key Personnel (35%) - Each firm
will be evaluated on the experience and qualifications of the key personnel that
will be assigned to the Program Management Team.

B. Experience of the Firm and References (35%) - Each firm shall be evaluated on
its demonstrated capabilities and experience to provide the desired services.
Review will include but not be limited to past performance on similar types of
work, quality of work, and adherence to schedules and other related factors.
History of working with municipalities and other local governments will also be
considered. Review will include review of any subcontractors specified in
Offeror’s submittal as well.

C. Succession Planning (20%) - Each firm will be evaluated on its ability to provide
quality service during a change in the Project Team’s key personnel.

D. Proposal Quality (10%) - Each firm will be evaluated on how the RFQ was put
together and the readability of the document.

After initial scoring of the above criteria, the County reserves the right to select a
short list of finalists for a presentation/interview. Results of the interview process
shall factor into the final scoring for contract award.

Page | 8



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

3. Award
Each factor of the evaluation will be considered relative to obtaining the most effective
plan consistent with the needs of the County.

Product Liability Insurance
The successful proposal will supply proof of professional liability insurance and workers
compensation.

IV. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Page | 9

. Project Purpose

Jasper County voters passed a transportation sales tax referendum thatpassed in
November 2024. The County seek proposals from firms qualified to provide program
and financial management, project management, project planning, scoping,
conceptual design, utility coordination, and preliminary right-of-way coordination for
Transportation Projects forthe proposed 2024 1% Transportation Sales and Use Tax
and for civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives identified
in this RFQ. The sales tax program is included as an attachment. Responses to the
solicitation for Program Management should be consider the following:

The firm selected for Program Management will be excluded from working as the
design engineer for any design contract awarded through the sales tax program.
Selected Program Manager may be able to perform construction management
and CEl services for projects under the sales tax program.

Scope of Work

Task 1-Project Management Services

Assist the County in obtaining Local Public Agency (LPA) status with South
Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT).

Act as an extension of County staff and provide all the needed services to the
County to comply with SCDOT’s LPA requirements.

Coordinate, manage, and review project plans, technical reports, specifications,

and estimates prepared by consultants providing professional services to the

County for consistency with contract budgets, schedules, scope of work, design

criteria, and applicable standards. This would include civil site improvements

associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Prepare independent estimates for professional services and assist the County

with scope and fee negotiations with project design consultants also to include

civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Review project design consultant invoices for accuracy, compliance with



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

contract terms, and progress of the work. This would include civil site
improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Conduct meetings, monitor design progress, and keep the County informed of
each project’s status. This would include civil site improvements associated with
the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Ensure compliance with SCDOT LPA procedures for projects involving state
and/or federal funds.

Ensure that all necessary permits and environmental approvals are obtained prior
to letting a project for construction. This would include civil site improvements
associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Ensure that all rights and easements necessary for the project are acquired prior
to the construction letting. This would include civil site improvement associated
with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Ensure that all utility coordination activities necessary to facilitate project
construction have been performed prior to the construction letting. This would
include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.
Responsible for overseeing the preparation of construction bid documents. This
would include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.
Conduct pre-bid meetings, review bids, and advise the County through selection
and contract award. This would include civil site improvements associated with
the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Review and maintain project related correspondence and files. This would
include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.
Coordinate value engineering studies and recommendations. This would include
civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Perform technical, constructability, and maintainability reviews, including life
cycle costs, accessibility, equipment clearances, etc. This would include civil
site improvement associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Coordinate with municipalities, environmental agencies, and other project
stakeholders as applicable to secure necessary approvals and permits. This
would include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.
Perform public outreach activities including public meeting facilitation, mailer
and handout design, coordinate response to public comments and meetings, or
as required. This would include civil site improvements associated with the
Greenbelt Initiatives.

Task 2 - Program & Financial Management

Page |10

Provide a written monthly Program Status Report for County staff and Council due
by 12:01p.m. local time on the 15™ of each month.

Attend all meetings associated with the program as directed by the County.
Provide quarterly financial reports to include revenues, encumbrances, and
expenditures.



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Develop and maintain a Program Financial Plan to forecast Program revenues,
project expenditures, and cash balances. The financial plan shall be in
accordance withthe CIP and the Consultant will participate in the County’s annual
CIP planning process. Revenue and cash reports will be County driven and
maintained.

Provide the County with recommendations for the timing and amount of bond
issuances based upon the Program Financial Plan.

Develop and maintain cost loaded schedules for the design, right of way
acquisition, permitting, and construction for all projects within the program.
Develop and implement a project filing system that provides readily accessible,
complete, and well-organized files.

Review and recommend methods to maximize efficiency and achieve economies
of scale in the procurement of projects.

Develop consistent design criteria, standards, and specifications for use on
projects developed by the Program.

Investigate and pursue available grant opportunities on behalf of the County.
Develop and implement a public involvement program which should include, at a
minimum, a Program website hosted and maintained by the Consultant with a
link to the County’s web site, and use of social media to provide accurate, up to
date project information to the citizens of Jasper County. This would include civil
site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Assist with document production related to Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)
requests and other requests for information as applicable.

Assist with the development of encroachment permits, intergovernmental
agreements (IGA), memorandums of understanding (MOU), memorandums of
agreement (MOA) and financial participation agreement (FPA) to facilitate
coordination with the SCDOT, South Carolina State Infrastructure Bank (SCTIB)
and other applicable parties as needed.

Determine a method to evaluate project risk and cost, conduct risk analysis as
needed, and make recommendations based on analysis.

Conduct bid analysis/evaluation of bids or prepare cost estimates for comparison
when appropriate. Provide “engineers estimate” when requested.

Other items assigned by Jasper County.

Task 3 - Project Planning, Scoping, and Conceptual Design

Page | 11

Establish the scope of improvements, cost estimates, and baseline cost-loaded
schedules for each project including the following subtasks. This would include
civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

A. Development of Conceptual Project Design

Page |12

(@)

(@)

Perform feasibility and initial constructability review of a conceptual design
and scope of each project. Provide baseline costs and schedule, to include
design, right-of-way, construction, utility coordination, utility relocation, and
permitting.

The conceptual designs shall be developed in accordance with the South
Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) Highway Design Manual and
the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
(AASHTO) “A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets”.
Conceptual designs shall be developed on aerial photography and available
GIS. Design features to be illustrated shall include the proposed roadway
typical sections, roadway alignments, lane configurations, auxiliary
intersection turn lanes, and bicycle & pedestrian facilities. The conceptual
designs shall be presented on color roll-plots for coordination with project
stakeholders and on 11” x 17” size sheets for incorporation into a project
planning report.

Work to minimize impacts to private property, buildings, cultural features
(churches, cemeteries, parks, etc.), major utilities, and natural resources in
the development of the project conceptual designs. COUNTY GIS property
lines shall be referenced into the conceptual design to estimate right of way
impacts for each project. Impacts on buildings and cultural features shall be
estimated from aerial photography and a project field review.

Perform an environmental screening to determine the presence of likely
hazardous material sites, threatened and endangered species,
historical/cultural resources, floodplains, and jurisdictional wetlands within
the project area. The presence of these environmental constraints will be
determined through a windshield survey and database searches.

Identify the expected permits and NEPA compliant environmental document
(Categorical Exclusion, Environmental Assessment, or Environmental Impact
Statement) required for each project based on conceptual design and
environmental screening.

. Baseline Cost Estimates and Schedules

Prepare a cost estimate for each project based on the conceptual project
design. Project cost estimates shall represent the total cost of project
development and include the following typical project costs:

o Engineering services (planning and design),
Right of way acquisition (land and services),
Wetland mitigation,
Utility relocation (utilities with prior rights),
Construction,
Construction engineering & inspection.

O O O O O



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

o Appropriate factors shall be applied in coordination with the COUNTY to
provide for contingency within each project budget to address unforeseen
conditions.

o Baseline schedules to be developed for each project shall include the project
phases of planning and design, right of way acquisition, environmental
permitting, utility coordination, construction procurement, and construction.
Cost estimates associated with each of these project phases shall be used to
create a cost loaded schedule for purposes of program financial planning.

o Evaluate projects through a cost-risk analysis to identify risks to the project
scope or schedule which may significantly impact project cost. A cost-risk
workshop will be conducted for each project to engage subject matter experts
in a review of the projects to identify potential risks based on their experience
with transportation project development in the area. The project cost
estimate will be refined to account for the magnitude and likelihood of each
identified risk.

C. Environmental Overview
o Prepare a Project Planning Report for each project to present the conceptual
design, environmental overview, utility overview, cost estimate, and
schedule. The reports shall contain the following information:
o Draft Purpose and Need Statement,
Project Description,
Design Criteria,
Conceptual Design,
Project Location and Length,
Environmental Constraints
Identify the Required NEPA Environmental Document,
Identify the Required Environmental Permits,
Utility Information
Cost Estimate
Schedule
o These reports will be submitted to the County and SCDOT (if applicable) for
review and comment. All comments will be addressed as applicable in a
comment response matrix and revised final reports will be provided to the
County.

O O O 0O OO O o O O

D. Plan Review
o For projects on SCDOT roadways or within SCDOT ROW, the consultant shall
conduct a cursory review prior to submittal to SCDOT. The review will ensure
that plans satisfy SCDOT requirements and foreseeable errors are addressed.
Detailed review of design and/or calculations will not be required.

Page |13



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

o For projects in the County or municipal system, the consultant will act as the
County reviewer and will review for design, calculation, adherence to
appropriate standards and specifications, and constructability.

o If plansrequire submittal to County planning or other departments for review,
then the Consultant will facilitate and communicate as needed.

Task 4 — Utility Coordination Services

* Notify utility owners of the projects and identify those utilities with facilities in the
project area.

» Facilitate and act as intermediary between project design team and utility representatives.

» Arrange for Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) to establish utility locations and
identify conflicts.

* Obtain letters of “no-conflict” for those utilities which are not impacted.

* Coordinate with utility owner(s) and designer(s) to develop relocation plans for those
conflicts which cannot be eliminated.

* Review all utility owners’ relocation plans to ensure that relocations proposed by one
owner do not conflict with another’s relocation.

» Establish prior rights of occupancy.

* Obtain no-cost letters from those utility owners without prior rights or develop utility
agreements with those owners who can document their prior rights.

* Evaluate the feasibility of in-contract utility relocation and develop necessary
agreements in coordination with the utility owner.

* Monitor the progress of utility relocation and incorporate utility relocation schedules
into the overall project schedule.

This would include Utility Coordination Services for civil site improvements
associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

Task S — Construction Administration

» Constructability reviews of plans and specifications prepared for projects prior to
construction letting.

 Attend pre-construction conferences, routine construction coordination meetings, etc.

* Reviewing and maintaining records of plans, specifications, shop drawings, revisions,
correspondence, warranties, etc.

* Monitor each construction project and prepare monthly status reports.

 Evaluating and recommending actions related to progress payments, change requests,
claims, disputes, etc.

* Performing project close-out activities.

* Fostering and maintaining a positive public image related to construction operations by
proper interaction with the public and media, maintenance of traffic, attention to safety,
permit compliance, etc.

This would include Construction Administration for civil site improvements
Page | 14



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

3. Approved Projects
S-442 (Argent Boulevard) (from US 278 to SC 170): 4-lane divided or 5-lane
widening with multi- use paths on both sides for approximately 3.8 miles and would
be coordinated with the SC 170 Widening and Access Management project
($57,000,000).

US 278 Corridor Phase 1 (Beaufort County Line to Argent Blvd): 6-lane road
widening for approximate 1 mile ($15,000,000).

US 278 Corridor Phase 2 (Argent Blvd to 1-95): 6-lane road widening for
approximately 4.75 miles with two bridges (approx. 360 LF and 90 LF) ($50,000,000).

SC 46/SC 170/SC 315 Intersection Improvements and Widening: assume 1 mile
widening with intersection improvements at SC 46 and SC 170 to potentially
combine into 1 intersection ($30,000,000).

US 17/US 321 Intersection Improvement: skewed intersection in Hardeeville and
may contain complicated right of way acquisition, assumes existing bridge over
railroad can remain ($4,000,000).

US 17 Widening (SC 315 to SC 170): 4-lane divided widening for approximately 2
miles ($24,000,000).

SC 315 Widening from SC 170/SC 46 intersection to US 17: 4-lane/5-lane
widening for approximately 6 miles ($41,500,000).

SC 336 Intersection Improvements (Grahamville Rd to SC 336): potential
realignment of SC 336 for approximately 0.3 mile and potential for complicated R/W
acquisition: ($5,000,000).

1-95 Exit 18 Interchange with US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road
Improvements: Upgraded interchange included with SCDOT 1-95 project from MM 8
to MM 21. Project would include road improvements to US 17, Bees Creek Road,
and Glover Road ($12,000,000).

1-95 Exit 22 Connector (US 278 to Bees Creek Road): new road with potential new
bridge over I-95, dependent upon alignment and SCDOT’s improvements for Exit 22
for approximate 3 miles: ($36,000,000).

Page | 15



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Glover Road (Bees Creek Road (S-13) to SC 462): Dirt road and paved road
improvement — assume 2 lanes with R/W purchase for future widening
($26,000,000).

US 278/SC 652 (Calf Pen Bay Road) Intersection Improvement: A traditional
intersection improvement on US 278 has been installed with left turn lane and right
turn onto SC 652, but improvements were not incorporated on SC 652. Turn lanes
with improved intersection realignment should be considered or a roundabout
should be installed as this could be a key intersection for traffic calming for
entrance to Ridgeland: ($2,000,000).

SC 462 (SC 170 to Snake Road): 4-lane divided or 5-lane widening for
approximately 3 miles and safety improvements for approximately 5 miles
($56,000,000).

US 17/Mackay Point Road Intersection: Realignment of S-27-37 to eliminate
skewed intersection with Mackay Point Road and may involve improved access
management on US 17, dependent on coordination with SCDOT, assume 0.6-mile
realignment and intersection improvement: ($5,000,000).

US 321/SC 336 Intersection Improvement: skewed intersection in Tillman
($2,500,000).

Reconstruction of Levy Road: ($10,000,000).

Greenbelt Initiatives: $94,000,000 for financing greenbelt initiatives (including but
not limited to, purchasing property for conservation, purchasing conservation
easements, creating passive greenspace, creating active greenspace, protecting
natural resources, protecting agricultural or heritage landscapes, and protecting
scenic corridors).

Notes:

e Program Manager will be involved as noted with civil site improvement
associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

e Appendix 1 includes location maps

Page | 16



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

4. Initial Priorities:

Jasper County officials have met, and the preliminary unofficial roadway priorities are
as follows:

S-442 (Argent Boulevard) (from US 278 to SC 170): 4-lane divided or 5-lane
widening with multi- use paths on both sides for approximately 3.8 miles and would
be coordinated with the SC 170 Widening and Access Management project
($57,000,000).

US 278 Corridor Phase 1 (Beaufort County Line to Argent Blvd): 6-lane road
widening for approximate 1 mile ($15,000,000).

US 278 Corridor Phase 2 (Argent Blvd to 1-95): 6-lane road widening for
approximately 4.75 miles with two bridges (approx. 360 LF and 90 LF) ($50,000,000).

1-95 Exit 18 Interchange with US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road
Improvements: Upgraded interchange included with SCDOT 1-95 project from MM 8
to MM 21. Project would include road improvements to US 17, Bees Creek Road,
and Glover Road ($12,000,000).

Reconstruction of Levy Road: ($10,000,000).

SC 336 Intersection Improvements (Grahamville Rd to SC 336): potential
realignment of SC 336 for approximately 0.3 mile and potential for complicated R/W
acquisition: ($5,000,000).

Page |17



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

V. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS AND FORMATTING

Offerors are REQUIRED to submit all requested information and/or documentation
outlined in this section of the solicitation. Any Offeror failing to do so may have their
response rejected as being non-responsive and making them ineligible for contract
award. Offerors shall submit their responses in a format and sequence that follows the
section numbering and layout provided in this solicitation to assist the County in its
evaluation of responses.

Offerors shall submit written qualifications which clearly demonstrate their ability to
provide quality services in an effective manner.

The County desires a firm with a history of meeting or exceeding client expectations,
providing effective communication between the client and the firm, a record of meeting
schedules and deadlines, distinct knowledge of local sales tax programs, permitting
requirements, a reputation as an effective steward of natural resources and the
environment, prudent contract administration and project accounting, and a quality
presentation of project deliverables.

Submittals shallinclude the following information, and should be arranged in labeled
sections as follows:

QUALIFICATIONS:
Section A: Personnel Technical Competence/Qualifications

1. Project Team Organizational Chart:

Provide an organizational chart identifying team members who would be
assigned to this contract (including sub-consultants). The organizational chart
must include the name, role/position, and office location of each team member
and subconsultant. A project team member may be responsible for more than
one area. The offeror shall identify the following, at a minimum:

e OQOverall Project Manager(s)

e Key Financial Management Team Members

e Communication/Public Engagement Team Members

e CivilEngineering Team Members

e Environmental Team Members

e Right of Way Team Members

e Construction Administration Team Members

Page |18



2.

3.

Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Professional Resumes: Provide professional resumes of key project personnel
proposed for this contract and detailed background information including:

e Education;

e Professionalregistrations and certifications, applicable to South
Carolina;

e Experience;

e Years with firm;

e Office location;

e Specific role and responsibilities on past projects of this type;

e Hourly billing rates (in a separate sealed envelope).

Firm Reserves: Description of available backup personnel, resources and their
location.

Primary Point of Contact: Identify the Firm’s Primary Point of Contact.

Organization of sub-consultants and personnel: Provide the name of any firm(s)
and their personnel that will be providing sub-consulting services to your firm.
Also include the services they will provide, their office location, and a contact
name and phone number.

Section B: Background, Capabilities, Experience and Succession Planning

1.

Page | 19

Range of Services: Provide a description of the full range of services the Firm
provides. Provide the number of years in business and the location of the main
office that will service the Town’s account including the location of any sub-
consultants.

Capabilities: Discuss the firm’s unique qualifications, capabilities and
methodologies that will be used for the Program Management of a Sales Tax
Program.

Prior Experience: Provide a complete list with detailed descriptions including
dollar value and time frame of the firm’s experience on similar Sales tax
Programs within the past 10 years. Specify the type of work performed, the
Firm’s Project Manager and personnel that worked on the referenced projects
including their role. Include project photos, budget and schedule. Identify if the
project was completed on time and on budget.



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Prior Experience: Provide experience, other than sales tax program experience,
from South Carolina that will help show the Offerors capabilities in delivering a
successful sales tax program. Include projects started no earlier than January 1,
2021. Also detail the firm’s experience working within Jasper County, if any
within the same period.

Succession Planning: Describe how the firm will address internal succession
planning so that as key personnel retire or move on from the company the
County’s Program is not negatively affected. Also list any long-term municipal
clients that have used the firm consistently (5 or more contracts) between
January 1, 2014, and today. Include the number of contracts and a contact
name phone number and email. Please note Section VIl which states that if key
team members identified in this RFQ are no longer available and/or not being
used on this project the County reserves the right to terminate the contract.

Project References: Provide at least three (3) written references from Iltems 3, 4
and 5 above. Each reference shall provide a sighed (electronic signatures are
acceptable) written reference from the client contact. The reference shall
include a short statement of satisfaction with the Offerors’ services as well as
why, in their opinion, the project(s) were successful. The references shall
include current e-mail and current phone number. The references shall come
from sources outside Jasper County.

Workload: Provide a summary of current workload and workload projections.
Present and anticipated workload of project team (please show in tabular
format with each team member’s anticipated obligations depicted over the life
of the project).

List of litigation history of the firm and all subconsultants for the past 5 years.

Section D: Scope of Work Approach

Discuss and provide insight into the Offerors approach to accomplish the Scope of
Work. Please make sure to identify what would set the Offerors approach apart
from others in the industry.

abhowbd=

Page | 20

Project Management

Program & Financial Management

Project Planning, Scoping, and Conceptual Design
Utility Coordination

Construction Administration



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Section E: Forms and Information

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE must be submitted.

Section F: Costs (Submitted As a Separate Document)

THIS SHALL BE SUBMITTED AS A SEPARATE DOCUMENT AND NOT INCLUDED
WITH THE OTHER MATERIAL REQUESTED. Hourly rates will not be used in the
evaluation of submittals but instead will form the basis for contract negotiations
with the selected firm.

Page | 21

. The Offeror shall submit a Billable Costs Document for their firm and all other

firms listed in the RFQ. At a minimum the document shall have the following:
a. An Hourly Rate Schedule for each billable title within the firm.
b. Mark Up Costs for subconsultants, vendors, and suppliers, etc.
c. Aschedule of reimbursable costs and rates. (i.e. travel, copies,
mailing, etc.)

Once aninitial hourly rate schedule is agreed upon, rates shall remain fixed for
the first year of the resulting contract. After the first year, Contractor may
request one (1) annual adjustment to the hourly rates to be effective on each
anniversary of the contract, but such increase shall not exceed the most
recently published Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U),
before seasonal adjustment as of sixty (60) days prior to the contract
anniversary date. Any rate increase shall require a written contract amendment
signed by both parties to become effective. If Contractor’s request for an
increase is made after the applicable contract anniversary date, such increase
shall not be retroactive to the anniversary date and instead shall be effective as
of the date of the signed contract amendment. Mark up cost and reimbursable
cost once established shall not be changed for the life of the contract.



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE
To be submitted with vendor’s Proposal

We Do Not take exception to the RFQ Documents/Requirements.

We take exception to the RFQ Documents/Requirements as follows:

Specific exceptions are as follows:

| have carefully examined the REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS and agree to abide by all
submitted pricing, delivery, terms and conditions of this Proposal unless otherwise
stipulated herein.

Company
Name

By
(Authorized Signature)

(Print Name and Title)

Company Address

RETURN THIS PAGE
Page | 22



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE (continued)

Telephone Number

Email

Federal Tax ID No.

DBE Vendor (Yes/No)

Minority Owned:

Women Owned:

Veteran Owned:

Date

ADDENDA
Proposer acknowledges receipt of the following addendum:

Addendum No.

Addendum No.

Addendum No.

Addendum No.

RETURN THIS PAGE

Page | 23



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program
STATEMENT OF “NO PROPOSAL”

Return this page only if your company provides the products/services being requested
and DECLINES to do so.

We, the undersigned, have declined to respond to the above REQUEST FOR
QUALIFICATIONS for Program Manager - Sales Tax Program for the following reasons:

Specifications too “Narrow”, geared to one brand or manufacturer
(Please explain below).
Insufficient Time to Respond to REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

Unable to Meet Specifications
Specifications Unclear (Please explain below)
Other (Please explain below)

Remarks

Company Name

Address

Name and Title

Date

Signature

Telephone Number

Email Address

Page | 24



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

VI. CONTRACT AWARD

Contract award, as well as contract continuation of the contract in subsequent fiscal
periods, is subject to availability of County funds. In the event that contract
negotiations with the highest rated Offeror are unsuccessful, the County reserves the
right to begin contract negotiations with next highest rated Offeror.

If a contract is awarded as result of this solicitation, such award shall be made to the
most qualified respondent(s). In the event that contract negotiations with the most
qualified respondent(s) are unsuccessful, the County reserves the right to begin
contract negotiations with the next most qualified respondent(s).

Vil. STANDARD CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Offeror acknowledges that a contract will need to be executed with terms and
conditions acceptable to the County and the Offeror.

The Offeror agrees that terms and conditions provided in this RFQ, and in their
response to the RFQ either in their entirety or relevant portions thereof, shall be
included and become part of any resulting contract.

Please note that if the County determines that key team members identified in this RFQ
are no longer available and/or not being used on this project the County reserves the

right to terminate the contract.

The anticipated term of the resulting contract shall be five (5) years.

Page | 25



Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

APPENDIX 1 - Maps

Page | 26



Qb Special Sales & Use Tax

Sample Ballot Questions

X%, JASPER COUNTY

QUESTION 1

| approve a special sales and use tax in the amount of one
percent {1%) to be imposed in Jasper County for not more
than fifteen {15) years to fund the following projects:

Projects:

Project (1) Using eighty percent (80%) of the referenced tax
for financing the costs of highways. rcads. streets. bridges.
and other transportation-related projects. including drainage
facilities related thereto: $376.000.000.

Project (2) Using twenty percent (20%) of the referenced tax
for financing the costs of greenbelt projects {including but not
limited to. purchasing property for conservation. purchasing
conservation easements, creating passive greenspace, creating
active greenspace, protecting natural resources. protecting
agricultural or heritage landscapes, and protecting scenic
corridors): $94.060.000.

® YES IN FAVOR OF THE QUESTION
® NO. OPPOSED TC THE QUESTION

Instructions to Voters:
All qualified electors desiring to vate in favor of levying the special
sales and use tax shall vote “YES;” and

All qualified electors opposed to levying the special sales and use
tax shall vote “NO.”

QUESTION 2

| approve the issuance of not exceeding $150.000.000 of
general obligation bonds of Jasper County. payable from

the special sales and use tax described in Question 1 above.
maturing over a period not to exceed 15 years, to fund any of
the projects from among the categories described in Question
1 above.

® YES. IN FAVOR OF THE QUESTION
® NGO, OPPOSED TO THE QUESTION

Instructions to Voters:
All qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of the issuance of
bonds for the stated purposes shall vote "YES:" and

all qualified electors opposed to the issuance of bonds for the
stated purposes shall vote "NO.

ROAD REPAIR & GREENBELT
(WATER & LAND PROTECTION)

Proposed Projects

ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION:

- §-442/Argent Blvd. (US 278 to SC 170} - $57M
US 278 Corridor Phase 1 - $15M
US 278 Corridor Phase 2 - $50M
Glover Road (Bees Creek Rd. (S-13) to SC 462) - $26M
SC 462 (SC 170 to Snake Rd.) - $56M
Levy Road (reconstruction) - $10M

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS:

- SC46/SC 170/5C 315 (incl. widening) - $30M
- US17/US 321 - $4M

- SC 336 (Grahamville Rd. to S 336) - $5M

- US278/SC 652  §2M

- US 17/Mackay Point Rd. - $5M

- US321/5C336 - $2.5M

ROADWAY WIDENING:

= US 17 (SC 315 to 5C 170) - $24M
- SC 315 (5C 170/SC 46 to US 17) - $41.5M

INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENTS:

- 1-95 Exit 18 Interchange with US 17, Bees Creek Rd. and
Glover Rd. Improvements - $12M
- 1-95 Exit 22 Connector (US 278 to Bees Creek Rd.) - $36M

GREENBELT PROJECTS, WATER & LAND
PROTECTION:

Including but not limited to land acquisition for conservation.
purchasing conservation easements, creafing passive and active
greenspaces, and protecting natural resources, agricuttural or
heritage landscapes. and scenic corridors - $94M

Citizens will be able to nominate projects for consideration.
Example priorities include lands along the Savannah River,
Broad River, connecting the ACE Basin to the Savannah Wildlife
Refuge, and in the Euhaw District.

Want to learn more?

Scan here for additional
project specific details,
the prioritization process,
and project oversight!




-

o

S-442 (ARGENT BOULEVARD)
(FROM US 278 TO SC 170)

4-LANI

LR 5 [
¥ | |
Ul 21

AT
....:..
A

i

; Soutevers) rorn Y
ot & ......Fﬂ.uﬂuﬂp.q.@.




uUS278Corridor . i
Phass 2 (Argent L e, 08
Bivdto1-95)  ys 278 Corridor Phase
" 1 (Beaufort County
' Line to Argent Bivd)

b . RN

US 278 CORRIDOR PHASE 1
(BEAUFORT COUNTY LINE TO
ARGENT BLVD)

5-LANE ROAD WIDENING FOR
APPROXIMATE 1 MILF
($15,000,000).




RO
WIS DR

1

ED DAM
LHURCH RD

<

#TLAN”

¢

TFULL

SWEEP

A.Uﬁ:.._

191}
{*RrD

s 2

US 278 CORR p
(ARGENT BLVD TO I-95)

6-LANE ROAD WIDENING FOR
APPROXIMATELY 4.75 MILES

WITH TWO BRIDGES (APPROX.
360 LF AND 90 LF

($50,000,000).

)



B

L

;ODO'OOOTM:

{

INY VOX

(]

dAYVd

avoy a

(zov DS Ol (£1-S) Avou

0
| e
@
<
m
~
pr @
@)
™
o
o
m
m
w
O
s
m
m
=

*:

o

Ik




o]

L rapertd i

T % § = dlciecanofin
2 .J.rf% i
W o il .
i S - &
4 & 462 :
1 .......m..“.r i

R
\ 15

~%, 4-LANE DIVIDED OR 5-LANE
\ WIDENING FOR APPROXIMATELY 3
u. A MILES AND SAFETY
e s 1 |\ PROVEMENTS FOR

s B APPROXIMATELY 5 MILES
HM ($56,000,000).

- BNy s




=
¥
<
8 m
TE]
|
]
2
e
-
=
1=
1<

RNy
= .'Mn'CHE.i..;_s
e

cr '."r-:'

it

AA3T 40 NOI.I.:)ﬂH.LSNOZ_)_EI!:I |




5

5

SC 46/SC 170/SC 315
INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENTS AND

SC 46/SC 170/SC WIDENING

315 Intersection
Improvements and Widening

m
_m
:

ASSUME 1 MILE
WIDENING WITH
INTERSECTION

TP T LD

7 IMPROVEMENTS AT SC |

46 AND SC 170 TO |

P N } POTENTIALLY COMBINE 8
B INTO 1 INTERSECTION |

intersecton to US 17 $30,000,000).

=]



UsS 17/US 321
INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENT

: SKEWED INTERSECTION
[N HARDEEVILLE AND US 17/uUS 321

Intersection

MAY CONTAIN Improvement

COMPLICATED RIGHT OF
WAY ACQUISITION,

h ASSUMES EXISTING

Y BRIDGE OVER RAILROAD
P CAN REMAIN

: ($4,000,000).



C G
K ..r...r.(-..ay.-.
i ...r.rr. F.n._.r 2
by

]

SC 336 INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENTS
(GRAHAMVILLE RD S

._.O Mn wwmw 3 Improvements (Grahamville
i Rd to SC 336)
POTENTIAL
REALIGNMENT OF SC
SEIGHEEIR
APPROXIMATELY 0.3
MILE AND POTENTIAL §
FOR COMPLICATED [
R/W ACQUISITION: .,nm.._w
($5,000,000).

£y ¥




US 278/SC 652 (CALF PEN
BAY ROAD) INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENT
A TRADITIONAL
INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENT ON US 278

PPRIRIP R S BECN INSTALLED WITH
LA MR cr T TURN LANE AND RIGHT
B (URN ONTO SC 652, BUT

IMPROVEMENTS WERE NOT
INCORPORATED ON SC 652,
TURN LANES WITH
IMPROVED INTERSECTION
REALIGNMENT SHOULD BF
CONSIDERED OR A
ROUNDABOUT SHOULD BE
INSTALLED AS THIS COULD 3
BE A KEY INTERSECTION FOR #
TRAFFIC CALMING FOR  #
FNTRANCE TO RIDGELAND: %

($2,000,000).

E




17

US 17/Mackay
Point Road
Intersection

L

US 17/MACKAY
POINT ROAD
INTERSECTION

REALIGNMENT OF
S-27-37 TO ELIMINATE
SKEWED
INTERSECTION WITH
MACKAY POINT ROAD
AND MAY INVOLVE

IMPROVED ACCESS
MANAGEMENT ON US
17, DEPENDENT ON
COORDINATION WITH
SCDOT, ASSUME 0.6-
MILE REALIGNMENT
AND INTERSECTION
IMPROVEMENT:
($5,000,000).




32

US 321/5C 336 0P b
Intersection v AT ey

US 321/SC 336 INTERSECTION |
IMPROVEMENT

as I i

SKEWED INTERSECTION IN TILLMAN
($2,500,000).

iy T LW . L




DOCKS corn

3 a.._ \ ZHD r—. ﬂHm SAG
J S:r_.m
Rav & immcx DR

US 17 WIDENING (SC 315 TO SC
170)

s 4_| ANE DIVIDED WIDENING FOR

APPROXIMATELY 2 MILES
($24,000,000).

DRESSEN RD

“ BELLINGER
' HIEL RUN




APPROXIMATE
($41,500,000).

2 @ww
ESTATES RDZ W
ALy
* ()

315




b

e

I-95 EXIT 18
INTERCHANGE WITH
US 17, BEES CREEK
ROAD, AND GLOVER

ROAD
IMPROVEMENTS
UPGRADED
INTERCHANGE
INCLUDED WITH
SCDOT 1-95 PROJECT
FROM MM 8 TO MM
21. PROJECT WOULD
INCLUDE ROAD
IMPROVEMENTS TO
SRS SR EES EGRIE EK
ROAD, AND GLOVER

ROAD ($12,000,000).

o
o:

I-95 Exit 18 Interchange with US
17, Bees Creek Road,
and Glover Road Improvements




1-95 EXIT 22 CONNECTOR
(US 278 TO BEES CREEK
ROAD)

NEW ROAD WITH
POTENTIAL NEW BRIDGE
OVER 1-95, DEPENDENT
UPON ALIGNMENT AND
SCDOT'S IMPROVEMENTS

FOR EXIT 22 FOR
APPROXIMATE 3 MILES:
($36,000,000).

2 W 3

1-95 Exit 22
Connector {US 278
to Bees Creek Road)

Lo

o




GREENBELT _T__._._D._._<mm

$94,000,000 FOR FINANCING
GREENBELT INITIATIVES
(INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED |,
TO, PURCHASING PROPERTY FOR &
CONSERVATION, PURCHASING &
CONSERVATION EASEMENTS,
CREATING PASSIVE GREENSPACE,
CREATING ACTIVE GREENSPACE,
PROTECTING NATURAL
RESOURCES, PROTECTING
AGRICULTURAL OR HERITAGE |
LANDSCAPES, AND PROTECTING .f
SCENIC CORRIDORS).

A%




Jasper County, South Carolina
RFQ #2025 - 03
Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

APPENDIX 2- Ordinance #0-2024-16




This document Ordinance #0-2024-16 is certified this 24t day of July, 2024 as a true
and accurate copy of the records on file with the Clerk of Council’s office for Jasper

County, South Carolina

L&L&u&\,%\b 2

Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council

WwWiliegy,
“\\\ 2 o 0 h"
s.‘\;fo?..e 04/).’;
N

N

S¢B
- § m
g E
o
"1,":4/4 ™
Yoy




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
JASPER COUNTY

ORDINANCE #0-2024-16

ORDINANCE OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY AND IMPOSE A ONE PERCENT SALES AND USE TAX,
SUBJECT TO A REFERENDUM, WITHIN JASPER COUNTY PURSUANT TO
SECTION 4-37-30 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS
AMENDED; TO DEFINE THE SPECIFIC PURPOSES AND DESIGNATE THE
PROJECTS FOR WHICH THE PROCEEDS OF THE TAX MAY BE USED; TO PROVIDE
THE MAXIMUM TIME FOR WHICH SUCH TAX MAY BE IMPOSED; TO PROVIDE
THE ESTIMATED COST OF THE PROJECTS FUNDED FROM THE PROCEEDS OF
THE TAX; TO PROVIDE FOR A COUNTY-WIDE REFERENDUM ON THE
IMPOSITION OF THE SALES AND USE TAX AND THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL
OBLIGATION BONDS AND TO PRESCRIBE THE CONTENTS OF THE BALLOT
QUESTIONS IN THE REFERENDUM; TO PROVIDE FOR THE CONDUCT OF THE
REFERENDUM BY THE BOARD OF VOTER REGISTRATION AND ELECTIONS OF
JASPER COUNTY; TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE TAX, IF
APPROVED; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE TAX, IF APPROVED; AND
TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH
CAROLINA, IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED:

Section 1. Recitals and Legislative Findings. As an incident to the enactment of this
Ordinance, the County Council of Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County Council”) makes
the following findings:

(a) The South Carolina General Assembly has enacted Section 4-37-30 of the
Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Act™), pursuant to which the county
governing body may impose by ordinance a sales and use tax in an amount not to exceed one
percent, subject to the favorable results of a referendum, within the county area for a specific
purpose or purposes and for a limited amount of time to collect a limited amount of money.

(b)  Pursuant to the terms of Section 4-37-10 of the Code of Laws of South
Carolina 1976, as amended, the South Carolina General Assembly has authorized county
government to finance the costs of highways, roads, streets and bridges, greenbelt initiatives, and
other transportation related projects either alone or in conjunction with other govemmental entities.
As a means to furthering the powers granted to the County under the provisions of Section 4-9-30
and Sections 6-21-10, er. seq of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, the County
Council is authorized to form a transportation authority or to enter into a partnership, consortium,
or other contractual arrangement with one or more other governmental entities pursuant to Title 4,

July 3, 2024 1



Chapter 37 of the Code of Laws of the South Carolina 1976, as amended. The County Council has
decided to provide funding for highways, roads, streets, bridges, greenbelts, and other
transportation related projects without the complexity of a transportation authority or entering into
a partnership, consortium, or other contractual arrangements with one or more other governmental
entities at this time; provided that nothing herein shali preclude County Council from entering into
partnerships, consortiums, or other contractual arrangements in the future. County Council may
utilize such provisions in the future as necessary or convenient to promote the public purposes
served by funding highways, roads, streets, bridges, greenbelts, and other transportation related
facilities as provided in this Ordinance.

(¢)  The County Council finds that a one percent (1%) sales and use tax should
be levied and imposed within Jasper County for the following projects and purposes (including
use as the local match for other funds to finance):

(1) For financing the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other
transportation-related projects and facilities related thereto, including, but
not limited to, drainage facilities related to highways, roads, streets, bridges,
and other transportation related projects; and

(i)  For financing the costs of greenbelt initiatives (including, but not limited to,
purchasing property for conservation, purchasing conservation easements, creating
passive greenspace, creating active greenspace, protecting natural resources,
protecting agricultural or heritage landscapes, and protecting scenic corridors)
(collectively with the above-described projects and facilities, the “Projects’™);

for a period not to exceed 15 years from the date of initial imposition of such tax, to fund the
Projects at an estimated capital cost of $470,000,000 to be funded from the net proceeds of a sales
and use tax imposed in Jasper County pursuant to provisions of the Act, subject to approval of the
qualified electors of Jasper County in referendum to be held on November 5, 2024. The imposition
of the sales and use tax and the use of sales and use tax revenue, if approved in the referendum,
shall be subject to the conditions precedent and conditions or restrictions on the use and
expenditure of sales and use tax revenue established by the Act, the provisions of this Ordinance,
and other applicable law. Subject to annual appropriations by County Council, sales and use tax
revenues shall be used for the costs of the Projects established in this Ordinance, as it may be
amended from time to time, including, without limitation, payment of administrative costs of the
Projects, and such sums as may be required in connection with the issuance of bonds, the proceeds
of which are applied to pay costs of the projects. All spending shall be subject to an annual
independent audit to be made available to the public, and an advisory committee consisting of the
County Council Chairperson, the Mayor of Hardeeville, the Mayor of the Town of Ridgeland and
the Chairperson of the Jasper County School District, shall be formed and annually assess the
projects proposed for construction, provide a recommendation to County Council for the ranking

July 3. 2024 2



of projects, and with the assistance of County staff, prepare a report of the progress on, and the
status of each project for presentation to the local government councils. Any of the above listed
committee members may designate an elected member of their council or board to serve in their
stead.

(d)  County Council finds that the imposition of a sales and use tax in Jasper
County for the Projects and purposes defined in this Ordinance for a limited time not to exceed 15
(fifteen) years will serve a public purpose, provide funding for highways, roads, streets, bridges,
greenbelts, and other transportation related projects, including, but not limited to, drainage
facilities relating to the highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other transportation related projects,
as provided in this Ordinance to facilitate economic development, promote public safety, provide
needed infrastructure, promote desirable living conditions, enhance the quality of life in Jasper
County, and promote public heaith and safety in the event of fire, emergency, and other dangers,
and prepare the County Council to meet present and future needs of Jasper County and its citizens.

Section 2. Approval of Sales and Use Tax Subject to Referendum.

(a) A sales and use tax (the “Sales and Use Tax™), as authorized by the Act, is hereby
imposed in Jasper County, South Carolina, subject to 2 favorable vote of a majority of the quaiified
electors voting in a referendum on the imposition of the tax to be held in Jasper County, South
Carolina on November 5, 2024.

(b)  The Sales and Use Tax shall be imposed for a period not to exceed fifteen (15)
years from the date of imposition, ending on April 30, 2040.

(c) The estimated capital cost of the Projects to be funded from the proceeds of the
Sales and Use Tax in the aggregate is the sum of $470,000,000, and the maximum amount of net
proceeds to be raised by the tax shall not exceed the greater of either the costs of the Projects or
the cost to amortize all debts related to the Projects. The estimated principal amount of
authorization of bonds to be issued to pay costs of the Projects and to be paid by all or a portion of
the Sales and Use Tax is $150,000,000. All proceeds of the Sale and Use Tax and any bonds
payable therefrom shall be held by the County until County Council has approved the allocation
and expenditure of funds for the Projects or portions of Projects as further identified below.

(d)  The Sales and Use Tax shall be expended for the costs of the following described
Projects, including payment of any sums as may be required for the issuance of and debt service
for bonds, the proceeds of which are applied to pay costs of such Projects, for the following

purposes:

(1) For financing the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, other
transportation-related facilities and drainage facilities related thereto, and greenbelt
initiatives (including, but not limited to, purchasing property for conservation,
purchasing conservation easements, creating passive greenspace, creating active
greenspace, protecting natural resources, protecting agricultural or heritage
landscapes, and protecting scenic corridors), the following Projects at the estimated
capital costs indicated, not to exceed in the aggregate $470,000,000.00:

July 3, 2024 3



Projects and Estimated Capital Costs

S-442 (Argent Boulevard) (from US 278 to SC 170): 4-lane divided or 5-lane widening with
multi-use paths on both sides for approximately 3.8 miles and would be coordinated with the SC
170 Widening and Access Management project ($57,000,000).

US 278 Corridor Phase 1 (Beaufort County Line to Argent Blvd): 6-lane road widening for
approximate 1 mile ($15,000,000).

US 278 Corridor Phase 2 (Argent Blvd to I-95): 6-lane road widening for approximatety 4.75
miles with two bridges (approx. 360 LF and 90 LF) ($50,000,000).

SC 46/SC 170/SC 315 Intersection Improvements and Widening: assume 1 mile widening with
intersection improvements at SC 46 and SC 170 to potentially combine into 1 intersection

$30,000,000).

US 17/US 321 Intersection Improvement: skewed intersection in Hardeeville and may contain
complicated right of way acquisition, assumes existing bridge over railroad can remain
($4,000,000).

US 17 Widening (SC 315 to SC 170): 4-lane divided widening for approximately 2 miles
($24,000,000).

SC 315 Widening from SC 170/SC 46 intersection to US 17: 4-lane/S-lane widening for
approximately 6 miles ($41,500,000).

SC 336 Intersection Improvements (Grahamville Rd to SC 336): potential realignment of SC
336 for approximately 0.3 mile and potential for complicated R/W acquisition: (35,000,000).

1-95 Exit 18 Interchange with US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road Improvements:
Upgraded interchange included with SCDOT [-95 project from MM 8 to MM 21. Project would
include road improvements to US 17, Bees Creek Road, and Glover Road ($12,000,000).

1-95 Exit 22 Connector (US 278 to Bees Creek Road): new road with potential new bridge over
1-95, dependent upon alignment and SCDOT’s improvements for Exit 22 for approximate 3 miles:
($36,000,000).

Glover Road (Bees Creek Road (S-13) to SC 462): Dirt road and paved road improvement —
assume 2 lanes with R/W purchase for future widening ($26,000,000).

US 278/SC 652 (Calf Pen Bay Road) Intersection Improvement: A traditional intersection
improvement on US 278 has been installed with left turn lane and right tum onto SC 652, but
improvements were not incorporated on SC 652. Tum lanes with improved intersection
realignment should be considered or a roundabout should be instalted as this could be a key
intersection for traffic calming for entrance to Ridgeland: (§2,000,000).

July 3, 2024 4



SC 462 (SC 170 to Snake Road): 4-lane divided or 5-lane widening for approximately 5 miles
and safety improvements for approximately 5 miles ($56,000,000).

US 17/Mackay Point Road Intersection: Realignment of $-27-37 to eliminate skewed
intersection with Mackay Point Road and may involve improved access management on US 17,
dependent on coordination with SCDOT, assume 0.6 mile realignment and intersection
improvement: ($5,000,000).

US 321/SC 336 Intersection Improvement: skewed intersection in Tillman ($2,500,000).
Reconstruction of Levy Road: ($10,000,000).

Greenbelt Initiatives: $94,000,000 for financing greenbelt initiatives (including but not limited
to, purchasing property for conservation, purchasing conservation easements, creating passive
greenspace, creating active greenspace, protecting natural resources, protecting agricultural or
heritage landscapes, and protecting scenic corridors).

2.4  The Sales and Use Tax shall be expended for financing (including use as the local
match for other funds to finance) the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, greenbelts, and
other transportation-related projects facilities, and drainage facilities related thereto, including
payment of any sums as may be required for the issuance of and debt service for bonds, the
proceeds of which are applied to such projects.

2.5  Ifthe Sales and Use Tax is approved by a majority of the qualified electors voting
in a referendum to be held in Jasper County on November 5, 2024, the tax is to be imposed on the
first day of May, 2025, provided the Board of Voter Registration and Elections of Jasper County
shall certify the results not later than November 30, 2024, to Jasper County Council and the South
Carolina Department of Revenue. Included in the certification must be the maximum cost of the
Projects to be funded in whole or in part from the proceeds of the tax, the maximum time specified
for the imposition of the tax, and the principal amount of initial authorization of bonds, if any, to
be supported by a portion of the tax.

2.6  The Sales and Use Tax, if approved in the referendum conducted on November 3,
2024, shall terminate on the earlier of:

(1)  on April 30, 2040; or
(2)  the end of the calendar month during which the Department of Revenue
determines that the tax has raised revenues sufficient to provide the greater

of either the costs of the Projects as approved in the referendum or the cost
to amortize all debts related to the approved Projects.

2.7  Amounts of Sales and Use Tax collected in excess of the required proceeds must
first be applied, if necessary, to complete each Project for which the tax was imposed. Any

July 3, 2024 5



additional revenue collected above the specified amount must be applied to the reduction of debt
principal of Jasper County on transportation infrastructure debts only.

2.8  The Sales and Use Tax must be administered and collected by the South Carolina
Department of Revenue in the same manner that other sales and use taxes are collected. The
Department may prescribe amounts that may be added 1o the sales price because of the tax.

2.9  The Sales and Use Tax is in addition to all other local sales and use taxes and applies
to the gross proceeds of sales in the applicable area that is subject to the tax imposed by Chapter
36 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, and the enforcement provisions of Chapter
54 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina. The gross proceeds of the sale of items
subject to a maximum tax in Chapter 36 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina are
exempt from the tax imposed by this Ordinance. The gross proceeds of the sale of food lawfully
purchased with United States Department of Agriculture Food Stamps are exempt from the tax
imposed by this Ordinance. The tax imposed by this Ordinance also applies to tangible property
subject to the use tax in Article 13, Chapter 36 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina.

2.10 Taxpayers required to remit taxes under Article 13, Chapter 36 of Title 12 of the
Code of Laws of South Carolina must identify the county in which the personal property purchased
at retail is stored, used, or consumed in this State.

2.11  Utilities are required to report sales in the county in which the consumption of the
tangible personal property occurs.

2.12 A taxpayer subject to the tax imposed by §12-36-920 of the Code of Laws of South
Carolina 1976, as amended, who owns or manages rental units in more than one county must report
separately in his sales tax return the total gross proceeds from business done in each county.

2.13 The gross proceeds of sales of tangible personal property delivered after the
imposition date of the Sales and Use Tax, either under the terms of a construction contract executed
before the imposition date, or written bid submitted before the imposition date, culminating in a
construction contract entered into before or after the imposition date, are exempt from the sales
and use tax provided in this ordinance if a verified copy of the contract is filed with Department
of Revenue within six months after the imposition date of the sales and use tax provided for in this
Ordinance.

2.14 Notwithstanding the imposition date of the Sales and Use Tax with respect to
services that are billed regularly on a monthly basis, the sales and use tax authorized pursuant to
this ordinance is imposed beginning on the first day of the billing period beginning on or after the
imposition date.

Section 3. Remission of Sales and Use Tax; Segregation of Funds; Administration
of Funds; Distribution to Counties: Confidentially.

3.1 The revenues of the Sales and Use Tax collected under this Ordinance must be
remitted to the State Treasurer and credited to a fund separate and distinct from the general fund

July 3, 2024 6



of the State. After deducting the amount of any refunds made and costs to the Department of
Revenue of administering the tax, not to exceed one percent of such revenues, the State Treasurer
shall distribute the revenues and all interest earned on the revenues on deposit with him quarterly
to the Jasper County Treasurer and the revenues and interest earnings must be used only for the
purposes stated herein. The State Treasurer may correct misallocations by adjusting later
distributions, but these adjustments must be made in the same fiscal year as the misallocation.
However, allocations made as a result of city or county code errors must be corrected

prospectively.

3.2  The Department of Revenue shall furnish data to the State Treasurer and to the
Jasper County Treasurer for the purpose of calculating distributions and estimating revenues. The
information which must be supplied to the County upon request includes, but is not limited to,
gross receipts, net taxable sales, and tax liability by taxpayers.

Section 4. Sales and Use Tax Referendum; Ballot Question.

41  The Board of Voter Registration and Elections of Jasper County shall conduct a
referendum on the question of imposing the Sales and Use Tax in the area of Jasper County on
Tuesday, November 5, 2024, between the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. under the election laws of the
State of South Carolina, mutatis mutandis. The Board of Voter Registration and Elections of Jasper
County shali publish the date and purpose of the referendum once a week for four consecutive
weeks immediately preceding the date of the referendum in 2 newspaper of general circulation in
Jasper County, and shall publish such additional election and other notices as are required by law.

42  The referendum question to be on the ballot of the referendum to be held in Jasper
County on November 5, 2024, must read substantially as follows:

July 3, 2024



JASPER COUNTY SPECIAL SALES AND USE TAX

QUESTION !}

I approve a special sales and use tax in the amount of one percent (1%) to be imposed in Jasper
County for not more than fifieen (15) years to fund the following projects:

Projects:

Project (1) Using eighty percent (80%) of the referenced tax financing the costs
of highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other transportation-related projects,
including drainage facilities related thereto: $376,000,000.

Project (2) Using twenty percent (20%) of the referenced tax for financing the
costs of greenbelt projects (including but not limited to, purchasing property for
conservation, purchasing conservation easements, creating passive greenspace,
creating active greenspace, protecting natural resources, protecting agricultural or
heritage landscapes, and protecting scenic corridors): $94,000,000.

YES

NO

Instructions to Voters: All qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of levying the special

sales and use tax shall vote “YES;” and

All qualified electors opposed to levying the special sales and use
tax shall vote “NO.”

QUESTION 2

1 approve the issuance of not exceeding $150,000,000 of general obligation bonds of Jasper
County, payable from the special sales and use tax described in Question 1 above, maturing over
a period not to exceed 15 years, to fund any of the projects from among the categories described
in Question 1 above.

YES

NO

Instructions to Voters: All qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of the issuance of

43

bonds for the stated purposes shall vote “YES;” and

Al qualified electors opposed to the issuance of bonds for the stated
purposes shall vote “NO.”

In the referendum on the imposition of a special sales and use tax in Jasper County,

all qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of imposing the tax for the stated purposes shall vote
“yes™ and all qualified electors opposed to levying the tax shall vote “no”. If a majority of the

July 3 2024



electors voting in the referendum shall vote in favor of imposing the 1ax, then the tax is imposed
as provided in the Act and this Ordinance. Expenses of the referendum must be paid by Jasper
County government.

44  Inthe referendum on the issuance of bonds, all qualified clectors desiring to vote
in favor of the issuance of bonds for the stated purpose shall vote “yes” and all qualified electors
opposed to the issuance of bonds shall vote “no”. If a majority of the electors voting in the
referendum shall vote in favor of the issuance of bonds, then the issuance of bonds shall be
authorized in accordance with S.C. Constitution Article X, Section 14, Paragraph (6). Expenses
of the referendum must be paid by Jasper County government.

Section 5. Imposition of Tax Subject to Referendum.

The imposition of the Sales and Use Tax in Jasper County is subject in all respects to the favorable
vote of a majority of qualified electors casting votes in a referendum on the question of imposing
a sales and use tax in the area of Jasper County in a referendum to be conducted by the Board of
Voter Registration and Elections of Jasper County on November 5, 2024, and the favorable vote
of a majority of the qualified electors voting in such referendum shall be a condition precedent to
the imposition of a sales and use tax pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Miscellaneous.

(a) If any one or more of the provisions or portions hereof are determined by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to faw, then that provision or portion shall be deemed
severable from the remaining terms or portions hereof and the invalidity thereof shall in no way
affect the validity of the other provisions of this Ordinance; if any provisions of this Ordinance
shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in fact, be inoperative or unenforceabie or invalid as applied
to any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all cases because it conflicts with any constitution
or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, those circumstances shail not have the
effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable or invalid in any other
case or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained
inoperative or unenforceable or invalid to any extent whatever; provided, however, that the Sales
and Use Tax may not be imposed without the favorable results of the referendum to be held on
November 5, 2024.

(b)  This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the
laws of the State of South Carolina, and all suits and actions arising out of or with respect to this
Ordinance shall be instituted only in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of South
Carolina.

(c) The headings or titles of the several sections hereof shall be solely for
convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretation, or effect of
this Ordinance.

(d)  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon approval following third
reading.

July 3, 2024



(e) All previous ordinances regarding the same subject matter as this Ordinance

are hereby repealed.
f
ENACTED THIS(AY I'J'DAY o% 2024,
Wity
\\\“‘PER s,
SyF=atog, JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL
g A2
(SEAL) § SEA.L e :
e AN
O L. Martin Sauls, [V, Chairman
“arrpran
wﬁgda H. Giles, Clerk of Council
First Reading: May 6, 2024
Second Reading: July 15, 2024
Public Reading: June 24, 2024
Continuation of Public Hearing: July 15, 2024
Third Reading: July 24, 2024

July 3, 2024

10



EXHIBIT B-2

:I — INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING & ENGINEERING

April 30,2025 Infrastructure Consulting
& Engineering

Jasper County Selection Committee RFQ - Statement of

Kimberly Burgess, Procurement Officer - g .

358 Third Avenue, Suite 304 Qual'f'ca_tlons

Ridgeland, SC 29936 as Submitted on 4/30/25

Re: RFQ #2025-03 | Program Manager - Transportation Sales Tax Program

Dear Members of the Selection Committee,

At Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC (ICE), we understand what it takes to deliver
a program of this size, complexity, and importance. The voter-approved Transportation Sales Tax
Program represents a major investment in Jasper County’s future and requires a program manager with
experience, structure, and local presence and understanding to make it successful. ICE is proud to
submit our Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) to serve that role.

Over the past decade, ICE has successfully managed voter-approved transportation programs
across South Carolina, including Berkeley, Charleston, and Lancaster Counties. We understand how
to coordinate with SCDOT, build and maintain public trust, and keep dozens of projects moving forward
while aligned under one cohesive plan. We know the pitfalls to avoid, the steps to streamline, and the
tools required to deliver transparent, efficient progress to your council and voters.

Leading our efforts for Jasper County will be Jeff Buckalew, PE, a highly experienced program
manager with over 35 yearsin civil engineering, including 15 years serving as the Town Engineer
for Hilton Head Island. During his tenure, Jeff oversaw hundreds of infrastructure projects, managed
capital improvement programs, and coordinated closely with municipal leadership, SCDOT, and the
public. His background combines hands-on technical expertise with strategic program oversight — skills
essential to guiding a multi-year transportation sales tax program. Jeff’s leadership ensures that Jasper
County will have a program manager who understands the challenges of local government infrastructure
delivery and is committed to serving as a trusted extension of County staff.

With multiple road widenings, safety improvements, key intersection upgrades, and phased construction
across several years, ICE understands this program demands discipline, communication, and a
close working partnership with County staff. These are exactly the types of projects ICE has built its
reputation on.

While this may be ICE’s first proposal to serve Jasper County, we’ve already supported Construction
Engineering & Inspection (CEI) services in the region and are preparing to open an office in Jasper
County to support our growing work in the area.

Most recently, SCDOT selected ICE to lead the Construction Management and Inspection for its largest-
ever bid-build project: the 1-95 widening from MM 0 to MM 8, including replacement of the bridges over
the Savannah River and two interchanges. In addition, the City of Hardeeville has recently selected ICE
for on-call civil engineering services. This continued trust underscores our proven ability to manage
high-profile, mission-critical work and deliver results.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



2

As Program Manager, ICE will provide Jasper County with:

» Transparent Oversight: Establishing atailored Program Management Plan, with real-time tracking
and clear communication from kick off through completion.

» Schedule Discipline: Coordinating all phases—planning, permitting, right-of-way, design, and
construction-to stay ahead of delays and keep projects moving forward.

» Budget Control: Aligning cost and timelines through careful forecasting, risk management, and
funding strategy support.

» Stakeholder Engagement: Supporting the County’s public outreach efforts and working closely
with SCDOT, municipalities, and the community to ensure consistent coordination.

» Technicaland Regulatory Expertise: Applying SCDOT LPA standards, procurement compliance,
and construction management insight to deliver each project smoothly and compliantly.

ICE brings a full-service, in-house team across planning, engineering, environmental services, and
construction management — ready to serve as an extension of County staff. We’ve led similar programs
from start to finish and understand the day-to-day accountability, documentation, and problem-solving it
takes to keep a long-term program on track.

We understand the significance and trust placed in this program by Jasper County residents. ICE
is prepared to honor that trust by delivering a clear, disciplined, and results-driven approach that
benefits the entire community.

WHY ICE?

» Locallnsight, Regional Strength: With South Carolina-based leadership and an upcoming office
in Jasper County, as well as offices in Bluffton and Beaufort, ICE offers both responsiveness and
depth. The ICE headquarters is located in West Columbia, a short drive from SCDOT headquarters.

» Proven Program Management: We've led successful sales tax programs and understand how to
manage large capital efforts across multiple agencies.

» Transparent, Trusted Results: We know how to maintain voter confidence by ensuring
accountability, clear communication, and project updates from day one.

We welcome the opportunity to support Jasper County in delivering this generational investment — and
would be honored to serve as your Program Manager. Please do not hesitate to contact myself or Jeff
Buckalew, PE, at jeff.buckalew@ice-eng.com or 843-485-3560 with any questions.

Sincerely, /

s

Mitchell Metts, PE | Principal-in-Charge
mitchell.metts@ice-eng.com | 804-726-6754
Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Project Team

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

SCDOT

LIAISON

* Leland Colvin, PE I°E

FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

* Mitchell Metts, PE CE
*  Josh Apsitis CE

ENVIRONMENTAL

*  Barrett Stone It
* Cody Connor, PWS CE
*  Daniel Koon CE

UTILITY
COORDINATION

* Gus Kretschmer ICE
* Matthew Cox, EIT 'CE

CIVIL ENGINEERING /

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT
SUPPORT

PROJECT MANAGER /

MAIN POINT OF CONTACT

* Jeff Buckalew, PE 'CE

ASSISTANT PROJECT
MANAGER

* Bryan Mcllwee, PE ICt

PLANNING / CONCEPTUAL

DESIGN

ROADWAY
* Aaron Livingston, PE ICE
* Clarke Hinson, PE 'C
*  Alex Nettles, PE ICE
STRUCTURE
Preston Felkel, PE ICE
Ray Spence, PE ICE
Clark Baer, PE CE
PAVEMENT
Jay Thompson, PE ICE
Shilpa Girish, EIT 'CE
STORM WATER
* Alexis Mcllwee, EIT ICE
Stuart Timmons, PE °E
Jordan Bianchi, PE 'CE

* o %

* ot

CONSTRUCTABILITY /
VALUE ENGINEERING

* Jenny Germuth, PE ICE
* Leland Colvin, PE CE

* Andy Gillis, PE 'CE

Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE /

QA/QC

* Mitchell Metts, PE ICE

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT /
COMMUNICATION

* Renee Mulholland '°E
* Henry Phillips CE
*  Bree Long ICt
Sharon Merchant ™S

Cheryl Scott ™S
Justin Scott ™S

COST ESTIMATING /

SCHEDULING

* Josh Apsitis 't
* Trinaty Geraurd 'CE

CONSTRUCTION
ENGINEERING &

INSPECTION

*  Marc Lemin, PE ICE
Randy Carraway, PE ICE
* Todd Steagall, PE, DBIA ICE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

Nathan Midkiff RND
Renee Bergeron RND

Firm

Locations

RND — RND Consultants (DBE)

ICE - Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC
TMS — The Merchant Strategy, Inc. (DBE)

% Bluffton, SC

% West Columbia, SC
% Charleston, SC

% N. Charleston, SC
% Charlotte, SC

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 3



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Professional

RESUMES

Jeff Buckalew, PE
PROJECT MANAGER | MAIN POINT OF CONTACT

Bluffton, SC | 36 years of infrastructure leadership | 2 years with ICE
jeff.buckalew@ice-eng.com | 843-485-3560

PE: South Carolina #20448

BS, Civil Engineering - WVU Institute of Technology

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

As the Project Manager, Jeff will serve as the day-to-day lead and the main point of contact for Jasper County-
responsible for overseeing the entire Jasper County Sales Tax Program and coordinating all technical,
financial, and stakeholder aspects. He will guide the creation of the Program Management Plan (PMP), lead
coordination with SCDOT and utility providers, and work closely with County departments, consultants, and
the public to keep all projects on schedule and within scope.

Jeff brings decades of relevant experience dealing with public projects and elected officials, managing multi-
disciplinary infrastructure programs/projects, and will ensure that Jasper County’s priorities — transparency,

timely delivery, and meaningful community input — remain front and center.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

»

Program & Capital
Project Management

Main Street Resiliency & Streetscape - Town of Summerville, SC:
Project Manager for corridor design and construction involving road diet, utility
relocation, drainage upgrades, offset pathways, lighting, and wayfinding. Leads

» Roadway & o L
Multimodal Corridor concept development, permitting, and contractor coordination.
Improvements ADA Compliance Sidewalks - Town of Bluffton, SC: Managed planning,
design, permitting, and construction for pedestrian safety and ADA upgrades
> Stakeholders at 30 locations. Demonstrated his detailed approach to safety, compliance, and
gnpgfgiecment municipal coordination.

Communication

ADA Compliance,
Streetscaping, &
Resiliency Design

Right-of-Way, Utility,
& Environmental
Coordination

Mitchelville Dirt Road Paving - Hilton Head Island, SC: Oversaw conversion
of a dirt road to a pervious asphalt surface with an offset multi-use pathway and
green infrastructure features. Led design and permitting in a residential context
with environmental considerations.

US 278 Multimodal Improvements - Shelter Cove Area - Hilton Head
Island, SC: Managed safety upgrades for motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians.
Integrated traffic calming, pervious pathways, and signal upgrades while
minimizing utility impacts and preserving heritage trees.

> gonst.rur?tignB ; Coligny Area Road & Drainage Improvements - Hilton Head Island, SC:
MverSIg t tu gt Oversaw design and construction on a SCDOT-Town partnership corridor.
anagemen Managed stakeholder engagement, utility coordination, permitting, ROW

4

acquisition, and construction.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Mitchell Metts, PE
PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE | QA /7 QC

West Columbia, SC | 34 years of experience | 10 years with ICE
mitchell. metts@ice-eng.com | 803-726-6754

PE: South Carolina #17637

BS, Civil Engineering - Clemson University

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

As Principal-in-Charge and QA/QC, Mitchell will provide high-level program leadership and quality assurance
for the Jasper County Transportation Sales Tax Program. Mitchell brings more than 30 years of experience
managing large-scale transportation programs and previously served as SCDOT’s Director of Preconstruction,
overseeing more than $500 million in project delivery annually. His role on this program includes overseeing
quality control processes, financial oversight, and coordination with Jasper County leadership to ensure fiscal
discipline and technical excellence across all projects.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Program Berkeley County Transportation Sales Tax Program - Berkeley County,
Management & SC: Provides financial, programmatic, and QA/QC oversight across major
Strategic Oversight ~ corridor projects, local paving, intersection upgrades, and CEl activities under a

multi-phase sales tax-funded program.

» Financial
Management & Cost US 17 / Main Road Interchange & Widening - Charleston County, SC:
Control Leads coordination between Charleston County, SCDOT, and federal agencies

to deliver complex improvements including a grade-separated interchange,

> QA/QC Review & bridge replacement, and multi-use path development.

Design Coordination
Clements Ferry Road Widening — Phase Il - Berkeley County, SC: Oversaw

» :;PASS.CDOT design reviews, permitting, funding eligibility, and interagency coordination
ermitting Strategy o this 4.5-mile capacity project, including cash flow modeling and bridge
» Public Involvement & construction.

Agency Coordination Bridgeway Station Pedestrian Bridge - Greenville County, SC: Served as

» Multimodal & liaison to SCDOT and project developer during the design of a new pedestrian
Corridor Program span over I-385, coordinating design exceptions and agency approvals.
Delivery

Mary Ann Point Road / Main Road Safety Audit - Charleston County,
SC: Directed a Road Safety Audit and stakeholder engagement process for a
historically high-crash intersection; provided improvement recommendations.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 5



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Leland Colvin, PE
SCDOTLIAISON | PROJECT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT

West Columbia, SC | 30 years of experience | 2 years with ICE
leland.colvin@ice-eng.com | 803-429-3352

PE: South Carolina #20218, DBIA Professional, Certified Public Manager
BS, Civil Engineering — University of South Carolina

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

Leland serves as ICE’s SCDOT Liaison and senior advisor for project management and civil engineering
support. With 28 years of leadership experience at SCDOT — including roles as Deputy Secretary for
Engineering, Chief Engineer for Project Delivery, Director of Construction and Program Manager for
the Charleston Region — Leland brings unmatched insight into SCDOT’s permitting, regulatory compliance,
design criteria, and statewide transportation priorities. On this program, he will assist in navigating agency
approvals, troubleshooting bottlenecks, and aligning local projects with state and federal requirements. He
serves as a key resource for ensuring project delivery stays on schedule and fully compliant.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

>

6

SCDOT Standards,
Compliance & QA/
QC

Statewide
Transportation
Program Oversight

Program/Project
Oversight

Multi-Agency Project
Delivery

Civil Engineering &
Interstate Corridor
Design

Strategic Planning
& Stakeholder
Engagement

Utility & ROW
Coordination

SCDOT 10-Year Transportation Plan - Statewide, SC: Oversaw the
implementation of SCDOT’s 10-Year Plan initiative associated with the passage
of the 2017 Roads Bill. This included the design, environmental/permitting,
right-of-way, and construction. The four components of the 10-Year Plan
included Resurfacing, Bridges, Rural Road Safety Program, and Interstate
Program. Under his leadership, the construction program at SCDOT grew from
$1 Billion to $5.5 Billion meeting the initial 10-year plan targets set by the SCDOT
Commission.

I-77 /| SC 160 Interchange - York County, SC: Led design oversight for this
innovative offset-direction interchange — the first of its kind in South Carolina —
reducing left-turn conflicts and congestion. The project widened one mile of SC
160 to enhance access from US 21 to Pleasant Road.

US 17 Widening - 1-526 to SC 517 - Charleston County, SC:
Oversaw design, ROW acquisition, and permitting for a 2.5-mile corridor
widening. Led stakeholder engagement to address complex impacts to historical
sites, churches, and businesses.

I-26 / Ashley Phosphate Interchange & Widening - Charleston County, SC:
Managed environmental permitting, design coordination, and ROW strategy for
a 5.5-mile corridor widening and major interchange reconstruction including
railroad coordination.

I-520 / Palmetto Parkway Phase Il - Aiken County, SC:
Directed all aspects of construction for a 5.5-mile new interstate corridor with
five interchanges, a terminal connection to I-20, and a separated multi-use path.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Bryan Mcllwee, PE
ASSISTANT PROJECT MANAGER

Bluffton, SC | 24 years of experience | 1 year with ICE
fr bryan.mcilwee@ice-eng.com | 854-529-9446

PE: South Carolina #26457

BS, Civil and Environmental Engineering — Virginia Tech

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

As Assistant Project Manager, Bryan will support the day-to-day coordination, technical oversight, and
stakeholder engagement across all phases of the Transportation Sales Tax Program. Working closely with
Project Manager Jeff, Bryan will help manage the schedule, integrate public feedback into early project
planning, and oversee coordination among subconsultants, design teams, and permitting agencies.

With a strong background in both municipal engineering and capital project delivery, Bryan offers deep insight
into the unique needs of South Carolina’s coastal communities — particularly when it comes to streetscaping,
stormwater infrastructure, and context-sensitive roadway improvements.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Civil Engineering & Dr. Mellichamp Drive Streetscape & Drainage Improvements - Bluffton,

Design SC: Led design, permitting, and construction oversight for a revitalized
commercial corridor featuring pervious parking, stormwater upgrades,
pedestrian enhancements, lighting, and landscaping.

» Project Management

for Local
Government May River Road Streetscape Improvements - Bluffton, SC: Managed full

delivery of this gateway corridor improvement. The project added pervious
parking, new sidewalks, drainage infrastructure, and enhanced streetscaping
along a high-visibility route.

» Coastal Drainage &
Resiliency

» Multi-use Pathways

Bridge Street Streetscape Improvements - Bluffton, SC: Oversaw design
& Streetscapes

of streetscape improvements to a major collector, including parking, pedestrian
» Stormwater access, storm drainage, and aesthetic elements.
Permitting
(SCDHEC, SCDOT,
County)

Myrtle & Hickory Lane Road & Drainage Improvements - Hilton Head

Island, SC: Managed conversion of private beach roads to public infrastructure

with new pavement sections, storm drainage systems, and ROW coordination.

» Hydrology & Hyraulic
Modeling (XP_
SWMM)

Gardner Drive Pathway & Drainage - Hilton Head Island, SC: Designed a
multi-use pathway with stormwater improvements, permitting coordination, and
a timber bridge connector for school and community access.

Stormwater Inventory & Modeling - Hilton Head Island, SC: Managed
hydrologic and hydraulic modeling and GIS-based inventory efforts from 2008
to 2016 as part of the Town’s stormwater management program.

Lafayette Major Drainageway Plan Study - Lafayette, CO: As Project
Manager, led a flood hazard and stormwater resiliency study across a
5.65-square-mile area to develop alternatives and enhance safety, water quality,
and community aesthetics.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 7



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Alexis Mcllwee, EIT
WATER RESOURCE ENGINEER / PROJECT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT

Bluffton, SC | 9 years of experience | 1 year with ICE
alexis.mcilwee®@ice-eng.com | 854-529-9434

EIT: South Carolina #22318

BS, Environmental Engineering — Michigan Technological University

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

Alexis supports the Jasper County Transportation Sales Tax Program as a Water Resource Engineerfocused on
stormwater management and local project coordination. With nearly a decade of multidisciplinary experience
in stormwater modeling, drainage infrastructure design, urban planning, and municipal project delivery, she
offers strong technical and planning support during the scoping, pre-design, and permitting stages. Alexis’s
experience with government agencies-including project management roles at the Town of Hilton Head Island-
enhances the team’s ability to respond to complex site constraints and regulatory expectations.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Stormwater Modeling Stormwater Inventory & SWMM Modeling - Hilton Head Island, SC: Led
& Drainainge Design  hydrologic and hydraulic modeling for over 1,300 acres in the Palmetto Hall/
. Mitchelville area. Managed project from procurement through implementation,
g Urban. & Spatial incorporating tidal influences, hurricane drainage strategies, and system
Planning performance evaluations.
» Civil Site Design

& Infrastructure

Cordillo Courts Drainage Improvements - Hilton Head Island, SC: Analyzed
and designed drainage system upgrades for a flood-prone condominium

Upgrades community, including detention basin regrading and new conveyance
» GIS/Data infrastructure.
Management Cobia Court & Wildhorse Court Drainage Upgrades - Hilton Head Island,
» Stormwater SC: Redesigned stormwater systems to resolve localized flooding, improve
Permitting & FEMA outfall culvert capacity, and restore channel flow capacity through residential
Coordination corridors.
» Stakeholder Belleview Avenue & Clarkson Street Drainage — Greenwood Village, CO:
Engagement & Multi- Designed storm sewer rehabilitation and in-situ lining for urban infrastructure.
Agency Review Coordinated construction staging, street closures, and utility adjustments.

Goldsmith Gulch Drainage Stabilization - Greenwood Village, CO:
Managed floodplain channel stabilization involving boulder edging and erosion
control at a utility conflict site, in partnership with the Mile High Floodplain
District.

16th Street Pedestrian Mall Drainage Improvements - Denver, CO:
Proposed urban drainage improvements for high-traffic corridor using 2D
modeling. Designed water quality treatment devices integrated with pedestrian
facilities.

8 Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Jenny Germuth, PE
TRANSPORTATION ENGINEER / PROJECT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT

Charleston, SC | 12 years of experience | 5 years with ICE
jenny.germuth@ice-eng.com | 843-576-3946

PE: South Carolina #32444

BS, Civil Engineering — Clemson University

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

Jenny will support the Jasper County Transportation Sales Tax Program as a Transportation Engineer,
bringing deep experience in roadway design, project coordination, and civil site development. As a proven
team leader across sales tax-funded programs, Jenny will assist in scope development, utility coordination,
design review, stakeholder outreach, and documentation. Her proactive project management style and deep
technical knowledge will help ensure consistency, cost-efficiency, and smooth transitions from planning
through permitting.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE = RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» Roadway & Civil Site  Berkeley County Sales Tax Program Management - Berkeley County,
Design SC: Managed projects within the county’s sales tax program including Henry
E. Brown Jr. Boulevard Phase 2, Foster Creek at Tanner Ford, and various Dirt-
to-Pave projects. Oversaw financial tracking, stakeholder engagement, utility
and railroad coordination, and standardized design processes for consistent
» Utility Coordination & program delivery.
Railroad Interface

» Transportation Sales
Tax Program Support

Henry Brown Boulevard Widening Phase 2 - Berkeley County, SC: Led
» Permitting (SCDOT, preliminary design, permitting, ROW plans, and multi-agency coordination

NEPA, Local for this corridor expansion project. Designed multi-use paths, medians, and a
Agencies) signalized intersection near an active rail line.

» Construction Main Road Widening Segment C (Bohicket Road) - Charleston County,
Documentation & SC: Provided planning, alternative analysis, and preliminary design for this
QA/QC NEPA-aligned roadway widening, preparing to serve as Lead Roadway Engineer

b Multidisciplinary in later phases.

Project Management Carolina Crossroads Phase 1 - Richland County, SC: Coordinated railroad
approvals, encroachment permits, and utility adjustments for this high-profile
interstate interchange and widening project.

US 17 at Main Road Interchange & Widening - Charleston County,
SC: Supports EIS process, ROW design, and engineering plans for a $195M
improvement project that includes flood mitigation, shared-use path design, and
SCDOT coordination.

England Road Dirt-to-Pave - Berkeley County, SC: Oversaw design,
permitting, and construction documentation for rural roadway paving under the
sales tax program.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 9



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Marc Lemin, PE

CEI OVERSIGHT - FIELD MANAGEMENT, DAILY CONSTRUCTION
ADMINISTRATION
Charleston, SC | 30 years of experience | 18 years with ICE

marc.lemin@ice-eng.com | 843-576-6672
PE: South Carolina #27012
BS, Civil Engineering - Virginia Tech

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

As CEI Oversight, Marc will oversee day-to-day construction administration and inspection operations
throughout the Jasper County Transportation Sales Tax Program. He will manage on-site field teams,
coordinate with contractors and County departments, lead pre-construction meetings, and maintain QA/QC
documentation. Marc’s responsibilities also include overseeing job-site materials testing, tracking contractor
compliance with technical specifications, and ensuring adherence to safety and environmental requirements.
With over 30 years of field experience, Marc brings a seasoned, boots-on-the-ground perspective to ensure
construction runs smoothly, transparently, and in alignment with the County’s expectations for quality and
accountability.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

»

10

CEIl Program
Management & Field
Oversight

Utility Coordination &
Field Engineering

SCDOQOT Inspection
Standards &
Materials Testing

Roadway,
Intersection,
& Drainage
Improvements

Submittal Oversight,
RFIs, & Construction
Documentation

On-site Dispute
Resolution &
Stakeholder
Coordination

SCDOT CE&I On-Call Services - District 6, SC: CElI Manager overseeing
inspection scheduling, issue resolution, and documentation across multiple
projects in Jasper, Beaufort, and surrounding counties.

SC 170 Widening — Beaufort County, SC: Project Manager for $15M widening
effort funded through local sales tax. Led CEI efforts, managed contractor
activities, and coordinated environmental protections for wetland crossings.

I1-95 Business Loop Streetscape - Colleton County, SC: Served as CEl
Project Manager for 4.45 miles of corridor improvements including resurfacing,
sidewalk installation, and drainage work. Collaborated closely with County staff
during construction.

Boundary Street Redevelopment - Beaufort County, SC: Project Principal
for this $18M downtown revitalization project. Oversaw constructability reviews,
utility relocation coordination, and transition to undergrounding of utilities.

Orangeburg Road Roundabout - Dorchester County, SC: Project Manager
for intersection conversion and safety improvements. Led submittal and RFI
review, field inspections, and stakeholder coordination.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Randy Carraway, PE
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION ENGINEER

Greenville, SC | 36 years of experience | 12 years with ICE
randy.carraway@ice-eng.com | 803-227-4056

PE: South Carolina #19586

BS, Civil Engineering — North Carolina State University

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

As a seniormember of ICE’s Construction Administration team, Randy brings over three decades of experience
in bridge, roadway, and large-scale infrastructure construction. He will support construction oversight, quality
assurance, and field engineering across the County’s sales tax program. With a career that spans design, CEl,
and materials management, Randy offers rare insight into constructability, plan compliance, and contractor
coordination on complex, multi-phase projects.

Randy will serve as an embedded resource during preconstruction reviews and be on-site to support resolution
of design conflicts, submittals, and construction documentation—ensuring County expectations are met from
groundbreaking through final acceptance.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

»

Construction
Engineering &
Inspection (CEI)

Interstate & Bridge
Program Delivery

SCDOT & FWHA
Construction
Compliance

Design-Build
Program
Coordination

Utility Relocation,
Plan Reviews & Site
Audits

Materials Testing
& Documentation
Standards

I1-85 over Rocky Creek Bridge Replacement - Greenville, SC: Project
Manager for multi-stage bridge replacement involving box culvert removal, new
elevated lanes, and coordination with FHWA, SCDOT, and inspectors.

I1-85/1-385 Gateway Interchange Improvements - Greenville, SC:
Deputy Resident Engineer and Materials Manager on this $231M design-build
interchange project. Oversaw all sampling, material certifications, SCDOT
coordination, and compliance tracking across ten bridge structures and multiple
roadways.

Palmetto Parkway Phase Il - North Augusta, SC: Project Manager for this
6.5-mile interstate extension completing the 1-520 loop. Led a 16-person CEI
team managing 16 bridges, 7 culverts, and over 6 million CY of earthwork.

SC 35-12th Street Extension-Cayce, SC: Construction Engineer on a major
bridge and roadway project. Responsibilities included daily documentation,
utility coordination, compliance audits, and contractor pay estimates.

MoDOT Safe and Sound Bridge Replacement Program - Missouri
(Statewide): Construction Engineer for one of the largest bridge replacement
programs in the U.S. Oversaw documentation and coordination for over 370
bridge projects with a 45-day average build time.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 11



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Todd Steagall, PE

CEl PROGRAM MANAGEMENT-COMPLIANCE STRATEGY,
CONSTRUCTION CONTROLS

West Columbia, SC | 35 years of experience | 6 years with ICE
todd.steagall@ice-eng.com | 803-227-4056

PE: South Carolina #17651

BS, Civil Engineering - Clemson University

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

Serving as CEl Program Manager, Todd will lead strategic oversight and program-wide coordination across all
active construction packages. He will guide compliance with SCDOT standards, federal regulations, and QA/
QC procedures while supporting field staff with escalation needs and providing expert input on permitting or
materials-related decisions. Todd will also oversee construction documentation, pay application verification,
and change order negotiation to ensure fair pricing and responsible cost control. With a statewide background
managing SCDOT’s $3B construction program, Todd brings the experience and systems needed to ensure the
County’s CEl efforts are cohesive, consistent, and fully compliant from the field to final acceptance.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

» CEl Program Mossy Oaks Drainage Project - City of Beaufort: Construction Manager on
Management & this multi-jurisdictional watershed improvement. Leads CEl, pay application
Inspection Oversight ~ review, and construction documentation.

» Statewide Town of Hilton Head Island IDC: Provides full CEI oversight across several
Construction capital improvement projects.

Program Gadsden Loop Sidewalk Project - Colleton County, SC: Managed CEl
Administration services fora CDBG-funded pedestrian safety project. Oversaw utility relocation,

» QA/QC Compliance  contractor coordination, and pay applications.

& Materials Port Access Road - Charleston, SC: Directed CEl and construction
Documentation coordination for this $220M design-build project connecting I-26 to the SC Ports

» SCDOT/FHWA Authority terminal.

Specifications I-26 Widening & Bridge Replacements - Lexington/Calhoun Counties,
& Change SC: Oversaw delivery of 20 miles of widening and bridge replacements. Handled
Management QA/QC, contractor coordination, and conflict resolution.

> Stakeholder Arthur Ravenel Jr. Bridge (Cooper River): Served as Quality Management

Coordination & Engineer, overseeing inspections and documentation on one of South Carolina’s

Dispute Resolution  |argest bridge projects.

12 Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Barrett Stone
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGER

West Columbia, SC | 27 years of experience | 9 years with ICE
barrett.stone@ice-eng.com | 803-746-7147

MS, Environmental Health — University of South Carolina

BS, Wildlife Biology — Clemson University

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

As Environmental Manager, Barrett will lead all environmental tasks for the program-ensuring compliance
with NEPA, Section 404/401 permitting, and environmental documentation required to support federally
and locally funded infrastructure projects. Barrett will coordinate early scoping, environmental screening,
stakeholder engagement, and agency coordination to keep projects on track, especially those impacting
wetlands, protected species habitats, and sensitive coastal zones. With nearly three decades of experience
across South Carolina and the Southeast, Barrett is uniquely positioned to help Jasper County balance growth
and conservation. His oversight will reduce risk, streamline permitting, and ensure that Jasper County's
Greenbelt and infrastructure priorities are planned with resilience and responsibility.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

»

NEPA
Documentation
& Environmental
Compliance

Section 404/401
Permitting & Wetland
Delineations

Environmental
Justice & Public
Involvement

Threatened &
Endangered Species
Coordination

Construction Phase
Environmental
Oversight

DOT & FAA
Environmental
Assessments

I-26 Widening, MM 172-187 - Dorchester & Berkeley Counties, SC
(SCDOT): Serves as Environmental Manager for NEPA compliance and Section
404 permitting. Oversees wetland delineations, document prep, and agency
coordination on this major interstate widening and bridge replacement effort.

Carolina Crossroads Phases 1 & 2 - Richland & Lexington Counties, SC
(SCDOT): Leads NEPA reevaluation, permitting strategy, and construction-
phase compliance supportforthis$1.7Binterchange modernization. Coordinates
all environmental documentation and supports public outreach efforts.

Pathways Project - Beaufort County, SC: Environmental Manager overseeing
documentation and permitting for more than 16 miles of pedestrian pathways.
Supported project visioning aligned with the County’s long-term mobility and
environmental goals.

Fred Nash Boulevard Widening & Extension - Horry County, SC:
Environmental Manager providing NEPA documentation and 404/401 permitting
to support widening and access to a proposed economic development corridor.

I-85 Widening & Bridge Replacements (GDOT) - Jackson County, GA:
Led all environmental tasks on a 6.5-mile corridor improvement including
major bridge construction. Responsible for NEPA documentation and agency
engagement.

US 17 & MainRoad Interchange EIS - Charleston County, SC: Environmental
Permitting Lead responsible for wetland and critical area permitting for major
interchange and flood-mitigation upgrades. Supported public engagement and
alignment alternatives.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 13



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Gus Kretschmer
UTILITY COORDINATION LEAD

Charlotte, NC | 34 years of experience | 12 years with ICE
gus.kretschmer@ice-eng.com | 704-247-1754

Legal Aspects of Easements — IRWA Certification

BS, Parks, Recreation and Business — Appalachian State University

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

As Utility Coordination Lead, Gus brings more than three decades of experience managing complex utility
coordination on major transportation programs across South Carolina and the Southeast. He will lead all utility
coordination activities for the Jasper County Transportation Sales Tax Program, including conflict analysis,
utility relocation strategies, in-contract adjustments, and Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) oversight.

Gus has successfully led utility coordination on over 100 projects—including large-scale design-build and
sales-tax funded initiatives — and is known for preventing costly delays through early engagement and
persistent follow-up. He will ensure all utility work is seamlessly integrated into the program schedule and
budget.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

»

14

Utility Coordination &
Adjustment Planning

Subsurface Utility
Engineering (SUE)

Design-Build &
In-Contract Utility
Strategies

Utility Conflict Matrix
& Cost Estimating

Railroad
Coordination (CSX,
NS, short lines)

Utility Agreements &
MOAs (ACT36 / BILL
401)

I-26 Widening (MM 85-101) - Richland, Lexington & Newberry Counties,
SC: Utility Relocation Manager overseeing four utility coordinators and 18 utility
owners. Managed utility strategy, conflict resolution, and in-contract relocation
agreements for water and sewer. ($465M project)

Carolina Crossroads Phases 1 & 2 - Richland & Lexington Counties,
SC: Utility Coordinator and Manager for both phases of this $1.7B interchange
modernization. Led SUE planning, stakeholder coordination, and railroad utility
crossing solutions with CSX and NS.

Project Brooklyn - BMW Spartanburg - Greenville County, SC: Utility
Coordinator for new two-lane bridge and road system serving full-size truck traffic
across I-85. Managed relocations under both SCDOT and BMW specifications.

US 21 over Harbor River Bridge Replacement - Beaufort County, SC: Led
utility planning and final relocation coordination for this 3,353-foot-long fixed-
span bridge over a tidal channel.

I-95 Widening & Pavement Rehab (MM 13-20) - Lumberton, NC: Utility
Coordinator for resilience-focused interstate upgrade. Developed preliminary
and final utility coordination plan to accommodate interchange reconstruction
and flood resilience measures.

SCDOT Utility Coordination On-Call Contract - Statewide, SC: Served as
statewide Utility Coordination Manager for multiple safety and widening projects,
including in Lexington, Horry, and Florence Counties. Oversaw agreements,
relocation plans, and agency coordination.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Josh Apsitis
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SUPPORT / PROJECT CONTROLS

West Columbia, SC | 12 years of experience | 3 years with ICE
josh.apsitis@ice-eng.com | 803-386-8952
BS, Civil and Environmental Engineering — The Citadel

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

Josh will support the Jasper County program by overseeing financial controls and schedule performance
tracking. His expertise in cost forecasting, CPM schedule development, and construction phasing will enhance
Jasper County’s ability to monitor budgets, track milestones, and avoid risks across dozens of active projects.
With a decade of experience managing high-profile, multimillion-dollar infrastructure efforts, Josh ensures
accountability, transparency, and timely delivery through integrated reporting and hands-on coordination with
County staff, contractors, and stakeholders.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

»

Program Budgeting

& Financial Controls

CPM Schedule
Management

Claims & Risk
Analysis

Construction Cost
Forecasting

Progress Tracking
& Earned Value
Reporting

Construction
Phasing & Field
Coordination

Berkeley County Transportation Sales Tax Program — US 176 Widening -
Berkeley County, SC: Managed monthly schedulereviewsandriskassessments
for the 5.6-mile widening of US 176. Tracked progress against 30K+ LF of utility
relocations. Provided delay mitigation strategies and financial forecasting.

Carolina Crossroads Phases 1 & 2 - Richland & Lexington Counties,
SC: Oversaw baseline schedule development, shop drawing review (MSE
walls, girders), and contractor coordination on $1.7B multi-phase interstate
improvement project. Led plan reviews and CPM schedule oversight.

Glenn McConnell Parkway Widening (CE&I Services) - Charleston, SC:
Tracked contractor progress, verified submittals, and managed CPM schedule
for 2-mile widening with sidewalks, multi-use paths, and intersection upgrades.
Supported pay estimate accuracy and milestone validation.

Henry Brown Boulevard Widening Phase 2 - Berkeley County, SC: Led
schedule reviews for corridor expansion with medians, multi-use paths, and
major intersection improvements. Aligned progress tracking with construction
phasing and field operations.

Main Road Corridor Segment A - Charleston County, SC: Assisted with
timeline validation and stakeholder coordination for the Stono River crossing,
shared-use path, and roundabout installation. Conducted site visits and
discrepancy analysis.

East/West Container Yard Expansion - Inland Port Greer - Greer, SC:
Managed phasing plan review and subconsultant compliance on $30M terminal
storage upgrade. Kept Port Authority appraised of milestone performance.
Assisted with submittal tracking and cost updates.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 15



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Firm

RESERVES

Aaron Livingston, PE
ROADWAY ENGINEER

West Columbia, SC | 22 years of experience | 12 years with ICE
aaron.livingston@ice-eng.com | 803-227-4064

PE: South Carolina #26136

MBA, Entrepreneurship - Clemson University

BS, Civil Engineering - Clemson University

J. Preston Felkel, PE
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

West Columbia, SC | 27 years of experience | 9 years with ICE
preston.felkel@ice-eng.com | 803-227-4065

PE: South Carolina #26987

MS, Structural Engineering — University of South Carolina

BS, Civil Engineering - University of South Carolina

Jay Thompson, PE

PAVEMENT ENGINEER

West Columbia, SC | 24 years of experience | 2 years with ICE
jay.thompson@ice-eng.com | 803-881-2711

PE: South Carolina #27041

MS, Civil Engineering — Clemson University

BS, Civil Engineering - Clemson University

Andy Gillis, PE

VALUE ENGINEERING

West Columbia, SC | 28 years of experience | 10 years with ICE
andy.gillis@ice-eng.com | 803-227-4051

PE: South Carolina #23517

BS, Civil Engineering - University of South Carolina

16 | Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Renee Mulholland

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT /7 COMMUNICATION

N. Charleston, SC | 21 years of experience | 6 years with ICE
renee.mulholland@ice-eng.com | 843-576-6683

MS, Earth and Environmental Resource Management - University of South Carolina
BS, Marine Science - University of South Carolina

Renee Bergeron
ROW AGENT / ASSISTANT PROJECT MANAGER

Renee supports ROW acquisition, relocation, and engineering review efforts. In
addition to leading relocation logistics and document preparation, she assists with
design plan evaluations, schedule tracking, and public outreach. She brings key
expertise in Environmental Justice (EJ) community coordination and multi-agency
collaboration.

Firm Reserves and Backup Personnel Resources

ICE has the staffing capacity and systems in place to support Jasper County’s Transportation Sales Tax
Program at every stage.

Our team structure includes backup personnel across key disciplines to ensure that if staffing adjustments are
needed, we can transition coverage quickly and without disruption. We maintain a strong roster of engineers,
inspectors, environmental planners, and program management staff who are familiar with our processes and
ready to step in when needed.

With experienced personnel based across South Carolina and built-in staffing flexibility, ICE is committed to
providing steady, consistent service throughout the life of the program.

Primary Point-of-Contact: Jasper County will have the benefit
of not only the core project team but
also additional qualified staff who
can support the program if workload
shifts, schedules accelerate, or other
needs arise.

Jeff Buckalew, PE | Project Manager
jeff.buckalew@ice-eng.com
843-485-3530

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 17



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Organization of

SUBCONSULTANTS & PERSONNEL

The Merchant Strategy, Inc. (TMS)
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT & STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS

West Palm Beach, FL | Fort Lauderdale, FL | Little River, SC

20+ years of experience

info@themerchantstrategy.com | www.themerchantstrategy.com

Certifications: DBE/ACDBE (FL & SC DOTs) MWBE (Charleston, SC), SWBE (Palm
Beach County), CBE (Broward County)

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

TMS will serve as Jasper County’s Public Involvement Lead, guiding all stakeholder and community outreach
for the Transportation Sales Tax Program. Their team will lead the development of a comprehensive Public
Involvement Plan (PIP), manage a dedicated project website and social media presence, coordinate
stakeholder workshops, produce visual and print outreach materials, and operate a 24/7 hotline. Their long-
standing experience with SCDOT, municipal governments, and public-private partnerships makes them
uniquely equipped to deliver proactive, strategic communications and foster transparency throughout the life

of the program.

Cheryl Scott

OPERATIONS AND PROJECT MANAGER

Cheryl, originally from Detroit, leads the execution of TMS’s outreach plans, managing
dailycommunications, stakeholderlogistics, hotline operations,and community-facing
materials. With over 20 years of administrative and management experience, she also
supports project scheduling, contract administration, and internal coordination. Cheryl
plays a central role in translating complex engineering information into clear public
messaging and is instrumental in office-wide decision-making and project continuity.

Justin Gonzales, MBA
MARKETING AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT SPECIALIST

Justin supports digital communications, social media management, public meeting
coordination, and the visual design of outreach materials. Leveraging his legal and
marketing background, he crafts cohesive, professional messaging across platforms,
ensuring strong stakeholder engagement and brand alignment. He also brings
experience in executing integrated marketing campaigns, managing multi-channel
strategies, and analyzing ROI to maximize impact and budget efficiency.

18 Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Sharon J. Merchant
PRESIDENT & PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT DIRECTOR

30+ years of experience in Public & Government Relations | 19+ years in Public
Involvement

sharon@themerchantstrategy.com

BS, International Affairs - Florida State University

As a four-term Florida State Representative and founder of TMS, Sharon provides high-level leadership,
strategic oversight, and quality assurance on all outreach activities. She has led public involvement for some of
the region’s most sensitive and high-visibility infrastructure projects—delivering consensus-building strategies,

stakeholder coordination, and transparent communication on behalf of cities, counties, and state agencies.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

RELEVANT PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT EXPERIENCE

» Public Involvement KCI Technologies - City of Delray Beach ADA Sidewalk Project

Planning (PIP & CAP) Relevance: County/municipal sidewalk improvement initiative, similar
in scope to pedestrian enhancements often included in transportation

» Stakeholder & programs.
Government Liaison

» QA/QC of Outreach Stantec - FDOT D4 SR-91/1-95 at Hypoluxo Road Diverging Diamond
Materials Interchange

b Media Strategy & Crisis Relevance: nghway/mterchange project, _coordlnatlon Wlth_st_qte _DOT
R and stakeholders, includes QA/QC on major transportation initiatives.

esponse

» Constituent Stanley Consultants - 1-95/SR-9 PDSE Study (Martin & St. Lucie
Communication Counties)
Management Relevance: Public meetings, collateral development, and regional

» Public Meeting public outreach for an interstate corridor — aligns with SCDOT-level

Facilitation & Oversight

infrastructure efforts.

WGI - FDOT/Palm Beach County Off-System Bridge Replacements
Relevance: Public outreach for local bridges — a transportation-focused,
county-coordinated infrastructure improvement effort.

Erdman Anthony - FDOT Projects in West Palm Beach
Relevance: Coordinated with TPO, SFWMD, FEC, and engineering
teams; multi-agency and stakeholder engagement reflects complex
program dynamics.

City of West Palm Beach - Washington Road Utility and Stormwater
Improvements

Relevance: Utility and drainage-focused infrastructure improvements with
city coordination — parallels county-level utility and roadway projects.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 19



Section A | PERSONNEL TECHNICAL COMPETENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

RND Consultants

RIGHT-OF-WAY AQUISITION AND RELOCATION SERVICES
Charleston, SC

8+ years of experience

info@rndconsultants.com

Certifications: DBE/SBE

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

RND Consultants will serve as the Program’s Right-of-Way (ROW) and Relocation Services Lead, providing
full-scale acquisition, relocation, and coordination services across all project phases. Their team brings
deep, hands-on experience navigating South Carolina’s ROW requirements, managing complex property
negotiations, and supporting SCDOT acquisition compliance. With expertise in relocation services, eminent
domain coordination, title and appraisal oversight, and community engagement in Environmental Justice
(EJ) areas, RND will ensure a seamless and community-minded ROW process for Jasper County.

Nathan Midkiff
PROJECT MANAGER / ROW AGENT

Charleston, SC | 14 years of experience | SCDOT & Municipal ROW Expertise
Memberships and Certifications: National Transit Institue-FTA Real Estate
Requirements | IRWA-RW/RAC Candidate | International Right-of-Way Association

ROLE ON THE JASPER COUNTY PROGRAM

Nathan leads RND’s Right-of-Way team for Jasper County, bringing deep expertise in acquisition planning,
property negotiation, and Uniform Act compliance. He has managed relocations and acquisitions across South
Carolina and Massachusetts and is experienced with full/partial fee acquisitions, easements, condemnation
support, and relocation claims.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
» Eminent Domain SCDOT I-526 Lowcountry Corridor WEST - Charleston, SC: Managed 95

& Relocation acquisitions and 50 relocations; coordinated with title, appraisal, and legal
Coordination teams; handled relocation claims and community engagement

» Real Estate SCDOT I-73 Segment A6M - Marion County, SC: Led acquisition of 11 tracts;
Negotiation developed preliminary ROW estimates and acquisition documents.
& Acquisition SCDOT Georgetown Roundabout - Murrells Inlet, SC: Managed acquisition
Strategy of 9 parcels; completed appraisals, title reviews, and negotiations.

» ROW Plan Review
& Property Impact
Minimization

20| statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



SCDOT.US 21 Harbor River Bridge - Design-Build

Range of Services

& CAPABILITIES

» Architecture
At ICE, our mission is simple: to deliver infrastructure solutions that » Aviation Engineering
serve cqmmumtles today and stand the test of time. Foundgd in b Bridge/Structural Design
2005-originally as Coleman-Snow Consultants—we’ve grown into a _ ;
multidisciplinary engineering firm known across the Southeast for our > Construction Management -
ability to lead complex projects and programs, anticipate challenges, / CESl
and build long-term trust with our clients. » Design-Build Engineering
With over 580 professionals, including 160 licensed engineers and » Environmental Services
specialists, ICE brings the leadership, technical depth, and real-world >  Foundation Testi
experience needed to guide multi-year capital improvement efforts O TES .
from early planning through final construction. From our 23 offices » Geotechnical Engineering :
across eight states, we support transportation programs of all sizes- b Grant Writing
and we’re proud to bring that strength home to South Carolina. , S
. : o . Hydrolo Hydraulic

ICE will soon be opening an office in Jasper County, further bolstering DZsign gy/my
our local presence to strengthen our ability to support the County’s . _
Transportation Sales Tax Program with on-the-ground responsiveness b Intelligent Transportation
and ongoing collaboration. Systems (ITS) :
What sets ICE apart is our ability to integrate services under one roof- P Materials Testing Services -
offering a single-source solution for program management. Our Team (Lab)
includes SpeCialiStS in: » Pavement Engineering

» Program and financial management » Port Engineering / Civil

» Transportation project planning and prioritization Site Design

» Environmental permitting and NEPA documentation > Public Relations

»  Utility coordination and conflict resolution > Railroad Services

» Land surveying and right-of-way verification > Roadway Design

» Construction management and inspection services > Traffic Engineering

» Public involvement and strategic communications > Utility Coordination

¢ > Surveying .

At ICE, we don’t just manage projects—we manage progress. From === :xroeee o cciiccioa -

- ICE’s Capabilities & Services

early stakeholder coordination to construction phasing and financial tracking, we understand what it takes
to lead high-profile, sales tax-funded programs that demand transparency, efficiency, and public trust.

For Jasper County, that means a team that is not only highly capable but also highly accessible—bringing the
structure, insight, and hands-on leadership needed to deliver this generational investment with accountability

to the community.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 21



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Strategic Partnership with SCDOT: Accelerating delivery through experience

Managing a program of this scale requires more
than technical capability-it demands the ability to
navigate regulatory requirements, collaborate with
state agencies, and solve problems before they
become delays. That’s where ICE brings exceptional
value to Jasper County.

We do not just know SCDOT-we have been a
part of it. Several members of ICE’s leadership
team previously held high-ranking positions within
the South Carolina Department of Transportation,
including Deputy Secretary of Engineering, Director
of Construction, Director of Preconstruction, and
Regional Production Engineer. This firsthand
experience and strong relationships with current
staff gives our team an insider’s understanding of
SCDOT’s processes, permitting pathways, quality
standards, and decision-making protocols-allowing
us to move faster, with fewer obstacles.

Our in-house SCDOT liaisons understand how
to coordinate effectively at both the district and
headquarters level. From permit applications and
LPA documentation to design exceptions and
construction coordination, ICE knows how to engage
the right people, at the right time, with the right
information. The result: fewer bottlenecks, clearer
expectations, and accelerated progress.

ICE has led and contributed to dozens of SCDOT
projects across the state, including:

» SC277 Flyover Ramp Bridge Replacement
I-77 Widening and Bridge Replacements
SC 901 Bridge over Rocky Creek

Butler Road Improvements

I-85 Rocky Creek Bridge Replacement

[-26 Widening (Richland & Lexington
Counties)

» 1-95/I-26 Interchange (Orangeburg &
Dorchester Counties)

v Vv Vv Vv Vv

By preempting delays, streamlining submittals, and
aligning with SCDOT standards from the start, ICE
ensures that local projects meet state expectations
without compromise. For Jasper County, that means
a trusted partner who can keep the program moving-
on schedule, in compliance, and with confidence.

ICE has consistently delivered above-standard performance on the I-26 contract. The Team has met all
deliverable deadlines and produced high-quality work. Project Manager Metts and Design Manager Kicklighter
have shown excellent responsiveness, and the Public Information Meeting was well-planned and effectively
executed. The Team has done a strong job utilizing key staﬂ to meet project demands, and PM Metts continues
to lead at a high level. We look forward to continued success on this project.

SCCOT

22

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC




Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Prior

EXPERIENCE

Over the past decade, ICE has delivered full-service
program  management  for  multi-million-dollar
transportation sales tax initiatives across South
Carolina-demonstrating not only our ability to lead,
but to do so with fiscal accountability, stakeholder
transparency, and a relentless focus on timely, on-
budget delivery. These programs have included
planning, scheduling, financial oversight, right-of-way
and utility coordination, and hands-on management of
capital infrastructure improvements.

We’ve supported Berkeley, Lancaster, and Charleston
counties through every stage of their sales tax
programs—earning a reputation as a trusted, long-
term ally to public agencies invested in infrastructure
improvement.  Whether it’s collaborating  with
county finance departments to shape project-level
budgets, coordinating early utility relocations to
avoid delays, or tracking real-time progress across
dozens of active job sites, ICE brings the structure,
staffing, and systems required to manage complex
transportation programs with clarity and control.

Since 2011, ICE has played a central role in delivering
over a dozen capital projects involving design,
permitting, CEI, LPA compliance, and agency
coordination—demonstrating our strength as a hands-
on leader in program execution and delivery. Combined
with our deep ties to SCDOT, this real-world experience
positions us to guide Jasper County’s program from
vision to reality.

Why This Matters to Jasper County

Our past experience gives us direct insight into what
makes programs succeed-or stall. We’ve learned how

Qur Process.
YOUR PROGRESS.

What to Expect from ICE:

Clear Planning from Day One

»

Tailored project scoping and risk-based
planning

Community-informed solutions that
reflect Jasper County’s priorities

Transparent, milestone-driven program
roadmap

Strategic Oversight that Delivers

4

Full-scope program coordination, from
pre-design through construction

Proactive issue tracking, schedule
alignment, and quality control

Financial stewardship with real-time
tracking and clear reporting

Public Trust Built Through Partnership

»

Engaging communications and
community outreach

Seamless collaboration with County
staff and stakeholders

Experienced leadership that listens,
adapts, and delivers results

to build early momentum, navigate funding cycles, and maintain the public’s trust through visible progress,
transparency, and proactive communication. ICE will bring this experience to Jasper County-not only to
manage projects, but to help the County manage a legacy investment and long-term community impact.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 23



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Berkeley County
SALES TAXPROGRAM

Client: Berkeley County

Years Active: 2015-Present
Program Value: $587,000,000
Completed On-Time/Budget: Yes

Program Overview: Since 2015, ICE has served as the Program
Manager for Berkeley County’s voter-approved Transportation
Sales Tax Program, leading the planning, management, and
implementation of a wide range of capital improvement projects.
These include major road widenings, intersection upgrades,
resurfacing efforts, and dirt-to-pave conversions that enhance
safety, reduce congestion, and support regional growth.

ICE provides full life-cycle support-from financial planning
and consultant procurement to construction oversight and
community outreach. We manage budgets and schedules,
perform QA/QC reviews, coordinate utilities and right-of-way,
assist with permitting, and ensure SCDOT LPA compliance.
Our team supports Berkeley County across all phases of project
delivery and facilitate transparent, efficient progress across
dozens of active projects.

Key Services Provided: Program and Financial Management;
Scope and Fee Negotiation and Consultant Procurement; QA/
QC Reviews and Constructability Oversight; ROW and Utility
Coordination; Permitting and Environmental Compliance;
Public Involvement and FOIA Support; CEl and Construction
Oversight; Bid Phase Support and Value Engineering

Key Personnel Involved: Mitchell Metts, PE; Marc Lemin, PE;
Todd Steagall, PE; Jenny Germuth, PE; Clark Baer, PE; Gus
Kretschmer; Preston Felkel, PE; Aaron Livingston, PE

Support Team: Planners, Utility Coordinators, and document
control specialists

Due in part to ICE’s oversight during the design phase, the actual
bid for the Project came in at $1.76 Million, substantially under
the pre-bid budget of $2 Million. In addition, ICE’s effective
management during construction led to the Project being
completed ahead of schedule and a savings of $338,234.

Frank Carson, Berkeley County Engineer

Daniel Island Roundabout

Highlighted Projects Managed:

»

Clements Ferry Road
Widening, Phase Il

Henry Brown Boulevard
Widening, Phase Il

US 176 Widening &
Interchange Improvements

Daniel Island Roundabout
Royle Road Signal Plan

Farm Hill Circle & Zion Road
(CEI)

Foster Creek at Tanner Ford
Boulevard

[-26 Widening at Nexion
Parkway (CEI)

US 52 at US 176 Interchange
Five Dirt-to-Pave Roads

Four Major Intersection
Improvements

Six Major Capacity Projects
59 Paving Projects

Local Street Resurfacing
Projects

Henry Brown Road Wldenmg

24| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Charleston County

HALF-CENT SALES TAXPROGRAM

Client: Charleston County, SC
Contract Duration: 2013-Present
Program Value: $847,000,000
Completed On-Time/Budget: Yes

Program Overview: ICE is a trusted partner on Charleston
County’s $847M RoadWise program, providing design, CEl, and
program support services across a variety of capital transportation
projects. From roadway widenings and interchanges to sidewalks
and drainage improvements, ICE’s expertise has contributed to the
successful delivery of critical infrastructure across the County.

Key Services Provided: Engineering; Surveying; Permitting;
Geotechnical; Administrative Services; QA/QC; CEIl; Field
Coordination

Key Personnel Involved: Mitchell Metts, PE; Marc Lemin, PE;
Todd Steagall, PE; Aaron Livingston, PE; Preston Felkel, PE; Gus
Kretschmer

Highlighted Projects Awarded:

v

Johnny Dodds Boulevard Widening (Design-Build)
US 17 / Main Road Interchange & Widening
Paving Arman Road & Gifton Avenue

Johnny Dodds Boulevard Widening

US 17 at Parkers Ferry Road Turn Lane

Palmetto Commerce at Ladson Road Intersection
East Ashley Avenue at 2nd Street East

[-26 at Ashley Phosphate Road

Fort Johnson Road Sidewalks, Phases 3 & 4
Osceola Avenue Drainage Improvements
Mabeline Road Turn Lane Extension

v VvV VvV VvV VvV VvV VvV VvV Vv Vv

Palmetto Commerce Parkway, Phase Il (Design-Build)

g

Palme;to Commerce ParkWaJ-/, Phase Il

o

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 25



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Lancaster County

PENNY SALES TAX PROGRAM

Client: Lancaster County, SC

Contract Duration: Ongoing since 2015
Program Value: $68,092,276
Completed On-Time/Budget: Yes

Program Overview: ICE has supported Lancaster County
across nine sales tax-funded paving programs, delivering over Shiloh Unity Road
30 miles of resurfacing and roadway upgrades on time and
within budget. Acting as a full-service partner, ICE provides

Highlighted Projects Managed:

end-to-end management—from pavement design and » Programs 1-7 (2015 - 2020):
drainage evaluations to CEI services and procurement support. 44 roads paved, totaling 27+
miles

ICE’s continuity across multiple program phases ensures
consistency, cost control, and efficient delivery. The same
experienced team has led Programs 1 through 9, maintaining
strong institutional knowledge and trusted working relationships
with County staff and contractors. » Program 9 (2024): Currently
underway with the same core

» Program 8 (2021 - Present):
CEl and construction oversight
on four roads (2.55 miles)

Key Services Provided: Program Coordination and Project

Management; Pavement Design and Cost Estimating; Field JEE 22

Surveying and Drainage Reviews; Construction Administration

and CEIl Services; Consultant Procurement and Bid Support 14+ years

Personnel Involved: Marc Lemin, PE; Gus Kretschmer SUPPORTING
LANCASTER COUNTY

Craig Farm Road Craig Farm Road Construction Quality Drive

26| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Prior Experience: Jasper County ¢

SURROUNDING AREA

Timeframe: January 2021 - Present

ICE has a strong growing presence in Jasper County and has played a key role in several projects in nearby
Beaufort and Colleton counties. We have a proven track record at delivering quality SCDOT-funded and LPA-
compliant projects throughout South Carolina, particularly in rural and coastal communities. Our Team is highly
experienced in navigating utility conflicts, right-of-way challenges, and interagency coordination.

Highlighted Projects:

» SCDOT I-95 (MM 0 - 8) Jasper County: ICE was
selected as the Construction Management and Inspection
provider for SCDOT’s largest bid-build project to date. ICE
will lead the inspection and coordination efforts along this
vital interstate corridor. This project runs directly through
Jasper County and involves ongoing collaboration with
SCDOT, FHWA, and local stakeholders.

» SCDOT On-Call CEI - District 6: ICE is providing CEl
services for roadway and bridge projects across the
district, including assignments within Jasper County.
Our Team supports SCDOT through field inspections,
contractor oversight, and quality control to ensure safe,
efficient project delivery.

» 1-95 Business Loop Streetscape - Colleton County:
This project consisted of 4.45 miles of improvements
along 1-95 Business Loop that included resurfacing the
existing roadway, the addition of raised concrete medians
with underdrain, drainage improvements, and sidewalk
installation. ICE was responsible for providing project/
construction management and CEI services.

» Pathways Project - Beaufort County: ICE is serving
as the prime consultant for the design and delivery of
approximately 16.4 miles of 10’ pathways across Districts
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 9. These projects aim to create safer
walking routes to schools and improve connectivity to
residential areas. ICE is leading project management,
surveying, permitting, pathway and drainage design,
utility coordination, and public engagement throughout
the program.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 27



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Succession

PLANNING

At ICE, we recognize that a program of this size and
duration demands not only the right team-but also
continuity and a proactive succession strategy. Our
structured approach ensures uninterrupted service to
Jasper County, regardless of staffing transitions over
the life of the program. To lead this effort, ICE has
assembled a strong leadership team: Jeff Buckalew,
Bryan Mcllwee, and Mitchell Metts. Each bring
extensive experience managing complex projects,
and together they offer deep leadership capacity
and continuity. Whether serving as Project Manager
or stepping in to support evolving program needs,
this leadership bench ensures that Jasper County
receives consistent, high-level and long-term stability.

Recognized as the #1 civil design firm in South
Carolina by ENR (2024) and recently ranked
#2 engineering firm for employee satisfaction
by Engineering.com, our commitment to both
project success and team stability sets us apart.
We maintain low staff turnover and strong redundancy
in experience and expertise across key positions.

From day one, each of our key roles will have a
designated deputy or support staff member who
is already embedded in the program, understands
the workflows, and is prepared to step up if needed.
This built-in redundancy ensures that institutional
knowledge, relationships, and momentum are
preserved-no matter what. In addition:

» Our internal knowledge transfer processes
include shared project management tools,
centralized reporting systems, and team-
wide access to schedules, budgets, and
communications.

» ICE actively invests in developing rising leaders,
ensuring there is arobust talent pipeline in every
discipline-from project management and CEl to
financial and public involvement.

» Foreverykeyperson, ICE leadershipidentifies at
least one secondary contact to the County, who
can respond quickly and maintain operations
if the primary staff member is temporarily or
permanently unavailable.

Should transitions occur during the program, we
will coordinate closely with the County to ensure
a seamless hand-off, including overlap between
outgoing and incoming staff, updated contact
information, and a clear delineation of duties. Our
goal is simple: to provide stability, consistency,
and reliability over the full life of Jasper County’s
Transportation Sales Tax Program. We will ensure
thereisno hiccup ordrop offin the progress of program
due to any change in staff on the ICE team.

! i
Your Project Team Jeff, Alexis, and Bryan at our Bluffton office

Your Key Project Values,
OUR PRIORITY

More than a slogan-it is a promise. As Program
Manager, ICE will act as an extension of Jasper County
staff, committed to your core goals; economic growth,
safer roads, and lasting infrastructure.

Example: In Berkeley County, ICE managed over

70 transportation projects under the One Cent

Sales Tax Program, including major road widenings,
intersection improvements, and paving initiatives.
This comprehensive management approach led to
enhanced infrastructure and improved quality of life for
residents.

28| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Project

REFERENCES

Client Name Address Cll! . Telephone Number
Representative

Jeff Catoe

101 N. Main Street, P.O. Lancaster County Public
Lancaster County, SC Box 1809 Works Director 803-416-9692

Lancaster, SC 29721 jcatoe®@

lancastercountysc.gov

Stephen Thigpen, PE
4045 Bridge View Drive,

Suite B240 Charleston County Deputy
Charleston County, SC Administrator 843-202-6146
North Charleston, SC
29405 sthigpen@

charlestoncounty.org

Daniel Thrower

. Berkeley County Chief
1003 Highway 52 Moncks .
Berkeley County, SC Corner, SC 29461 Infrastructure Officer 843-719-4131
danny.thrower@

berkeleycountysc.gov

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 29



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

30

Lancaster

April 4, 2025

Kimberly Burgess, Procurement Officer

Direstor, Adnsinistrative Services Division Jasper Coundy
358 Third Avenue, Suite 304

PO, B 1149

Ridgelamd, S0 26

RE:  Infrastructure Consulting & Engimeering, LLE for Sales Tax Program Management
Services

Dhear Ma Bungess:

Lancaster County has worked with Infrstruciure Consulting & Engineering (ICE) for nearly 15
years through both the 2014 Capatal Project Sales Tax (CPST) Progran and on-call coniracis
{snce 2010 1) supporting County Trnsporiation Committee (CTC) projects.

ICE has provided professional aml responsive service throughout our engngermens, Ther work
has inchuded program management, engineering design, and mspection services, amd they have
comnsistenily met expectations reganding qualiy, relishility, ond communication. ICE has been
awarded several consecutive on-call contracts, reflecting tee County”s conflidence in their ability
1o supgor a mange of ransportation=related efToris,

Lancaster County considers IOT a qualified and dependable consultant, and should you have any
questions, please comlact me direely,

Sincercly,

ﬂﬁh O (AF

Jell Cane

Lancaster County Public Works Director
RO3-4 16-9652

Jentoeia laptaslercountyse gov

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

BERKELEY
COUNTY One Burkil

April 15, 2025

Kimberly Burgess, Procurement Officer

Direclor, Administrative Services Division Jasper County
358 Third Avenue, Suite 304

P.O. Box 1149

Ridgeland, SC 29936

RE:  Reference for [nfrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC for Sales Tax Propram Management
Services

Dear Ms. Burgess:

Berkeley County entered inlo a contract with Infrastructure Consulting & Enpineering {ICE)in 2014 to
provide Program and Financial Management, Project Management, and Construetion Engineering &
Inspection (CE&I) services for a wide range of transportation and infrastructure improvement projects
throughout the County.

ICE has played an essential role s a program and project management consultant, delivering high-
quality, professional services across all phases of project development. Their scepe of work has included
the suceessful management and implementation of capacity improvement projects, local street
resutfacing, intersection upgrades, and over 60 paving projects. ICE has consistently demonstrated strong
technical expertise and organizational capability in handling these multifaceted efforts.

Their team was responsible for developing and maintaining detailed program schedules, financial
forecasts, and reponing tools; pursuing available grant opportunitics; and managing a public engagement
process Lo keep stakeholders infonned. ICE also provided critical oversight during project planoing and
delivery—reviewing designs, ensuring ¢nvironmental and permit compliance, coordinating utility
relocations, and supporting right-o~way zequisition

In addition, ICE provided CE&I services that included field inspections, quality assurance, materials
testing, and contractor coordination. Their proactive approach and attention to delail ensured thal projects
were delivered on schedule, within budget, and in full compliance with applicable standards.

Based on their proven track record, professionalism, and commitment to quality, I highly recommend
Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering for providing similar services to any jurisdiction seeking
dependable and comprehensive infrastructure consulting services.
Respectfully,
)
LA
C. Daniel Thrower

Berkeley County Chief Infrastructure Officer

Berkeley County Administration Building, 1003 Highway 52, Moncks Corner, SC 29461 (843) 719-4094

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 31



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

[l

CHARLESTON
Steven L. Thigpen, P. E. B COUNTY B
DCA - Public Servicers SOUTH CAROLINA

843.202 6146
sthigpen@chardestoncounty.org

Lonnie Hamilton IIT Public Services Building
4045 Bridge View Drive, Suite B240

Sorth Charleston, SC 29405

April 18,2025

Kimberly Burgess, Procurement Officer

Director, Administrative Services Division Jasper County
358 Third Avenue, Suite 304

P.O.Box 1149

Ridgeland, SC 29936

RE:  Reference for Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering, LLC for Sales Tax Program
Management Services

Dear Ms. Burgess:

Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering (ICE), formerly known as Coleman-Snow Consultants, has
served Charleston County with professionalism and technical expertise for more than 17 years. ICE
was selected as the Project Manager and Engineer of Record for several major transportation
initiatives funded by the Charleston County Transportation Sales Tax Program, including two large
Design-Build projects: the Johnny Dodds Boulevard Improvements (2008-2013) and Palmetto
Commerce Parkway Phase II (2009-2011). ICE’s responsibilities on these projects included contractor
quality control, roadway and drainage design, utility coordination, and surveying.
In 2013, Charleston County selected ICE again to provide comprehensive engineering services for
Sales Tax Program projects. ICE provided surveying, permitting, geotechnical investigations, and
complete engineering and administrative support needed to deliver construction-ready plans.
Projects awarded through this contract include:

o Paving of Arman Road and Gifton Avenue

o Turn Lane Improvements at US 17 and Parkers Ferry Road

o Palmetto Commerce at Ladson Road Intersection Improvements

o East Ashley Avenue at 2nd Street East

o [-26 at Ashley Phosphate Road

o Fort Johnson Road Sidewalks, Phases 3 & 4

o Osceola Avenue Drainage Improvements

e Mabeline Road Turn Lane Extension

Most notably, ICE currently serves as both the lead design firm and the Construction Engineering &
Inspection (CE&I) firm for the $195 million US 17/Main Road Interchange & Widening project. In
this role, ICE is responsible for:

= [Dign Mime: Peogect mansgomen, qaadity comrul, cortract sdminntration, 1BSACE
permitting. prebaminany poad sl bridpe plans, nghi-ofaey plans. NEPA docihemation,
putelic itvidvernent, end dcogn-tuikl preomemnen mifg.

o Canstructien Fhase: 're-conraton igper, cominiction managment, Sigiieing. sevey
venfication, pubdic reliens, sod comprrhenaive qualin ospEnoe’ BNt mrvices
covertng all majol comatraction elernesis. { beidges. drstnsgs, rasbwy, eroson oomred. malfic
ot o |

ICE bemi inmnibsiznily dctnorned high-guality work. malitamdal open commmusication. @d deraintralod
8 ey conmmisma B Carfesuon Oty "s peogram goals, Flased on their perfonmance. | afe pleased
far recomenend Mlrntruchus Comulisg & Engineering for cosdideration ho sanage @ daspor County
Tranuponaton Sale Tag Pmgrem

ﬁuﬁd"' #

o il = :
T - d_.-'!.?f'}—
m .. Teigpes. PE &)

Chartenis Cotinty Tieputy Coentr Admiinicrmier - Pebliz Senoes

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Key Personnel
WORKLOAD

KEY TEAM MEMBER CURRENT ACTIVE PROJECTS END YEAR % AVAIL.
Long Cove Club Paving 2025
Jeff Buckalew, PE Town of Summerville Main Street Resiliency Project 2026
. . 0
Project Manager / Main Palmetto Dunes Bridge Rehab 2026 L2
Point of Contact
Town of HHI Various On-Call Projects 2026
Berkeley County Sales Tax Program 2027
Mitchell Metts, PE
SCDOT 1-26 Corridor Improvements (MM 172 to 187) 2026 65%
Principal-in-Charge / QA/QC
Charleston County Main Road Corridor (Seg. A) 2026
Town of Summerville Main Street Resiliency Project 2026
Town of HHI Various On-Call Projects 2026
Bryan Mcliwee, PE
Town of Bluffton Pedestrian Improvements 2025 80%
Assistant Project Manager
Long Cove Club Various Projects 2025
Palmetto Dunes Various Projects 2026
Palmetto Dunes POA Port Tack Drainage Design & Construction 2025
Alexis Mcllwee, EIT Island Club Entrance Modifications 2025
: 80%
Water Resource Engineer Town of Summerville Main Street Resiliency Project 2025 !
[-285 /1-20 Westside Interchange 2026
SCDOT 1-26 Corridor Improvements (MM 172 to 187) 2025
Barrett Stone
SCDOT 1-26 / 1-95 Interchange Improvements 2026 70%
Environmental Manager
GDOT SR 316 Bundle 1 2025
Marc Lemin, PE SCPA NBIF Site Development 2025
. ) 0
CEI Oversight - Field Beaufort County CEl Projects 2026 Ak
Management
Various Berkeley County School District Projects 2026
Jenny Germuth, PE
Berkeley County On Call 2026 70%
Transportation Engineer
Dorchester County On Call 2028
Todd Steagall, PE
CCR Phase 1 - QC Inspection & Testing 2025 70%
CEl Program Manager
Gus Kretschmer NCDOT U-3467 Rea Road 2025
- 70%
Utility Coordination Lead NCDOT NC 540 Widening 2026 ’
Randy Carraway, PE
Construction Administration SCDOT - Bridge Package 29 - AC 2025 70%

Engineer

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 33



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING
thlgatlon

HISTORY

ICE has been involved in the following litigation in the last five years. These cases will not affect our
performance or ability to serve as Program Manager for Jasper County.

34| statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section B | BACKGROUND, CAPABILITIES, EXPERIENCE & SUCCESSION PLANNING

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 35



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Program

UNDERSTANDING

Jasper County stands at the crossroads of rapid growth and change.

On a weekday morning, traffic on US 278 and other main arteries often back up for miles as commuters,
freight trucks, and tourists all share the road. Longtime rural two-lane roads now serve booming communities,
leading to congestion and safety concerns that have “plagued the county” in recent years.

At the same time, Jasper County’s rivers, wetlands, and green spaces - from Savannah River down to
Broad River — face increasing pressure from development. Residents have voiced a clear desire for better
infrastructure and preservation of natural resources:

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

o Anyone that has driven through Jasper = We want clean drinking water, and
County from 7 a.m. to 9 a.m. knows that that means protecting land along the
we need help with our road system. b ] Savannah River.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

The 2024 Transportation Sales Tax Program

Born from these community needs, the Program was approved by voters, signaling a clear mandate for
County action. ICE fully understands the context and significance of this program.

The 1% sales tax will fund a multi-year capital improvement program — unprecedented in Jasper County’s
history —dedicating roughly 80% of revenues to transportation projects and 20% to Greenbelt projects, as
outlined in the referendum ordinance.

For up to 15 years of collections, the program is estimated to generate $470 million for the identified needs.
Jasper County’s leadership wisely structured the program to balance infrastructure upgrades with land
conservation, ensuring sustainable growth and quality of life.

To meet the transportation needs, the County identified priority projects encompassing highways, roads,
bridges, and intersections. These include major capacity expansions such as widening S-442 (Argent
Boulevard) into a 4-or-5-lane arterial to relieve congestion, widening segments of US 278 for regional
traffic, and widening SC 315, US 17, SC 462 to improve north-south mobility.

Interchange improvements at 1-95 (Exits 18 and 22) are planned to enhance connections between the
interstate and local roads - supporting economic development and hurricane evacuation.

Numerous intersection upgrades (e.g., US 17/321 in Hardeeville, US 321/336 in Tillman) will straighten
alignments and improve safety. Even rural infrastructure is prioritized, with projects like Glover Road
improvements (upgrading dirt and paved roads) and Levy Road reconstruction to modern standards.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

We understand that roads were prioritized based on objective factors - pavement condition,
safety concerns, traffic volume, congestion levels, and the potential to leverage state/federal
matching funds. This ensures that the program tackles the worst problems first and maximizes outside
funding opportunities. ICE will help advance these priorities, continually evaluating needs and
opportunities to keep the program moving toward completion and alighed with Jasper County’s
goals.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

36| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Top Priorities

ICE'S FIRST STEPS AS PROGRAM MANAGER

1.

Integrate with County Staff and Establish Local Public Agency Status

We will embed key ICE personnel alongside Jasper County staff from day one. One of our immediate
actions will be assisting the County in obtaining LPA certification with SCDOT, enabling the County to
let and oversee projects involving federal and state funding. This unlocks autonomy and streamlines
coordination for key corridor projects like US 278.

Develop a Clear Program Management Plan (PMP)

We will create a comprehensive PMP that outlines how every part of the program will run-from decision-
making to risk control, budgeting, reporting, and public communication. This document ensured everyone
is working from the same playbook and avoids confusion or delays down the road.

Build the Master Program Schedule

A Master Schedule willmap out project phasing across the full life of the program. It will track dependencies,
cash flow alignment, design timelines, and construction sequencing—ensuring transparency and
minimizing internal conflicts. This will be updated regularly as projects progress.

Identify and Launch “Quick Win” Projects

To build early momentum and public trust, ICE will work with the County to prioritize smaller, high-
visibility projects (e.g., resurfacing or safety improvements) that can be delivered fast. These quick wins
demonstrate progress and encourage continued support from voters and stakeholders.

Coordinate Public Involvement and Outreach

Working closely with The Merchant Strategy, our team members will spearhead communications and
engagement with residents, merchants, and stakeholders. Early outreach ensures public concerns and
feedback are heard, incorporated into planning, and help avoid opposition or surprises later.

Perform Environmental and Utility Conflict Screenings

Our environmental and utility teams will begin GIS-based screenings across the project list to flag
red flags early (wetlands, historic sites, underground conflicts). Addressing these early avoids costly
redesigns or permit delays later in the program.

Review and Refine Project Scopes and Budgets

ICE will evaluate each project’s initial scope, assumptions, and cost estimates to confirm accuracy and
identify areas for refinement or bundling. This step ensures realistic schedules and budgets and forms
the basis for procurement sequencing and bond alignment.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 37



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Greenbelt Coordination

AND SUPPORT

While the Greenbelt program will be managed by a separate firm, ICE understands that certain elements—
such as the design and construction of civil infrastructure-may intersect with our responsibilities as Program
Manager. These could include building access roads to passive parks, installing docks or trails, or supporting

drainage and site access for preserved lands.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

ICE will support the County’s Greenbelt efforts by managing any civil-related scopes that fall within the

Transportation Sales Tax Program, including:

» Coordinating with the County and the Greenbelt consultant to scope and schedule civil works

tied to conservation or recreational use

» Ensuring civil improvements comply with permitting, ADA, and environmental standards

» Managing the design and construction of roadways, access points, or low-impact amenities
serving broader community and conservation goals

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Public trust and accountability are central to the
program’s success. The sales tax represents a major
investment by taxpayers, andthe public expectsvisible
improvements and careful fund management. Jasper
County has instituted strong oversight measures,
including a Transportation Sales Tax Advisory
Committee that
will regularly review

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Additionally, ICE will help Jasper County leverage
the voter-approved bonding authority — up to $150
million in general obligation bonds — to expedite
priority projects while maintaining fiscal responsibility.

In summary, ICE’s understanding of Jasper County’s
Transportation Sales Tax Program is comprehensive.

Our management

project progress and I we recognize this program is about more than approach will be tailored
recommend project . . e to achieve these goals,
orioritization and adding lanes or preserving land—it’s about jth flexibility to adapt
annual independent | delivering improvements that enhance daily life, to  evolving  needs
spending audits | build public trust, spur economic opportunity, ~— ‘hether pursuing
as required by the new federal grants or
ordinance. and preserve the Lowcountry character of adjusting for market

Jasper County. conditions. ICE’s
ICE fully supports philosophy is rooted

these measures. We

will  provide clear,

data-driven updatesforelected councils and the public
through regular progress reports, website postings,
and annual reports that document accomplishments
in clear, accessible formats. We will track every dollar
and project milestone to ensure full transparency.

in proactive planning,
stakeholder engagement, and practical solutions.
Jasper County can be confident that our Team
“gets it” and will keep the County’s best interests
at the forefront of every decision. We have the
local knowledge, insight, and forward-looking vision
needed to shepherd this program to success.

38| statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Project

MANAGEMENT

Program Management Foundation

As Program Manager, ICE will establish a strong project management framework from day one. Our
first task will be to integrate with Jasper County’s Team and act as an extension of County staff. We
will have our Project Manager and key staff work hand-in-hand with County staff and officials. We will
first assist the County in obtaining Local Public Agency (LPA) certification with SCDOT. Thisis a
crucial step to enable Jasper County to self-manage projects that involve state and federal funding.

ICE has severalformer SCDOT management onstaffandis well-versedin SCDOT’s LPArequirements.
Our Team includes professionals who have developed and implemented LPA procedures. We will
guide the County through the application, training, and compliance process so that the County gains
the authority to let and oversee projects on state highways using local funds.

Achieving LPA status early will save time and money later by streamlining coordination with SCDOT
on projects like the US 278 corridor and 1-95 interchanges.

Next, ICE will prepare a detailed and comprehensive Program Management Plan (PMP) that
will serve as the playbook for the entire sales tax program. This document will outline governance,
communication protocols, public information, reporting and, risk management strategies, quality
control measures, and every aspect of program execution. For example, the PMP will establish
protocols for a clear hierarchy of decision-making (so minor design adjustments do not require full
Council approval, forinstance) and will define how changes in project scope or schedule are evaluated
and approved.

Cost estimates will be reviewed, vetted, and updated annually, as this is key to keeping pace with
market trends and avoiding budgets being busted seemingly without reason. It will also include a
public involvement plan (developed in concert with the County PIO and stakeholders) to ensure
citizens stay informed about progress, public meetings, and road work schedules.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 39



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH
Master Scheduling and Quick Wins

Schedule and phasing management is a critical the Argent Blvd widening and other major widening
element ICE brings to Program and Project projects) so that those can enter construction by 3-5
Management. We will develop and maintain a Master years with the aid of bond financing, as needed.
Program Schedule that sequences all projects over
the 15-year period, considering logical priorities,
dependencies, and funding flows. Our scheduling
experts will use software tools, such as Microsoft
Project, to integrate individual critical path method
project schedules into a program-wide Gantt chart
that clearly shows and tracks critical tasks and
deadlines as well as design and construction timelines
for each road project and the timeline for Greenbelt
acquisitions and improvements. This schedule will
be a living document, updated continuously and
reviewed in bi-weekly coordination meetings.

We will recommend staggering projects to avoid
overloading local traffic detours or the construction
labor market at any one time. Our approach to
phasing will ensure that each year of the program
yields tangible improvements, while maintaining
manageable workloads.

Early in the program, ICE will help Jasper County
prioritize “quick win” projects - those that can be
initiated and completed in the first few years (such as
intersection improvements or urgent safety fixes) - to
show immediate results to the public. Concurrently,
we will launch the design of larger projects (such as

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Risk Management and Early Mitigation

ICE’s Project Managers will convene weekly update meetings with design consultants and contractors once
projects are active and monthly status meetings with County leadership and the Advisory Committee to review
high-level progress or at frequencies as directed by the County. A cornerstone of our project management
approach is risk management.

ICE will lead a cost-risk analysis workshop for each major project at the conceptual stage. In these
workshops, we will bring together subject-matter experts (design engineers, environmental scientists, utility
coordinators, etc.) to brainstorm potential risks — e.g., unforeseen wetlands increasing permitting time on a
road widening, or utility relocations adding costs and delays — and assign likelihood and cost impacts to each.
This process, which ICE has successfully used on large highway projects, results in a “risk-adjusted” cost
and schedule that can help condition expectations and avoid unpleasant surprises.

By quantifying risks early, we can develop contingencies and mitigation plans (such as scheduling certain
activities in dry season to minimize environmental delay or bundling utility relocations into the construction
contract to maintain control). This proactive approach sets ICE apart — rather than reacting to problems,
we anticipate and neutralize them to keep the program on track.

40| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

: Berkeley County Sales Tax :

ICE's project management team will emphasize : Ribbon Cutting Ceremony

proactive stakeholder coordination and :
communication through the program. .

We recognize that successful delivery involves
many parties including: :

» County Departments

SCDOT

Municipalities (Hardeeville & Ridgeland)
Utility Companies

Property Owners

Regulatory Agencies

The General Public

vV vvVvv Vv

To maintain alignment across all groups, out
Project Management Team will establish :
dedicated coordination channels tailored to
each stakeholder's needs.

SCDOT Coordination:

We will hold quarterly meetings with SCDOT to

review the status of projects on state route. These meetings will ensure that project plans meet SCDOT
standards and that required approvals are secured on schedule-preventing administrative delays and
streamline delivery.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Municipal Coordination (Hardeeville and Ridgeland):

We will meet regularly with the City of Hardeeville to coordinate on projects within or near city
limits—such as the US 17/321 intersection upgrades and Argent Boulevard improvements.
These discussions will incorporate local input on design elements and ensure
traffic management plans minimize impacts on daily life and commerce.

Similarly, ICE will coordinate closely with Ridgeland leadership on projects that affect their jurisdiction to
ensure local needs and concerns are addressed early in the design and construction process.

Emergency Responders and School District Coordination:

ICE will assist County staff in  maintaining direct contact with  emergency
responders and school officials during project planning and construction phasing.
We will work to ensure that emergency routes are preserved, detours are clearly communicated, and
school bus operations remain safe and efficient throughout construction activities.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 4]



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Public Outreach and Communication

ICE’s public involvement efforts will be led by TMS, a trusted communications partner on our Team. Their
work will ensure that Jasper County citizens remain informed, engaged, and supportive throughout the life of
the Transportation Sales Tax Program.

TMS will organize public information meetings at key project milestones, such
as during concept planning phases and prior to the start of major construction
activities. These sessions will provide opportunities for residents to offer

Public Meetings
and Community

SUEREEED feedback, ask questions, and stay involved throughout program delivery.
We will develop and manage a dedicated Program Website and Public Portal
to serve as the central information hub for all project activities. This will feature:
Program Website » Project Updates and Announcements

Interactive Maps

Construction Timelines

Financial Summaries

Public Comment and Feedback Tools

and Public Portal

v v v Vv

To complement the website, TMS will implement regular social media
updates and targeted outreach materials designed to keep a broad audience
informed. These communications will help tell the story of the program clearly
and compellingly, reinforcing transparency and building public trust over the
course of the multi-year effort.

Social Media and
Targeted Outreach

ICE's program management team will fully integrate public outreach activities
ICE's Integration | into the broader management strategy, ensuring that transparency, open

Role | communication, and accountability are maintained throughout every phase of
the Transportation Sales Tax Program.

42| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Program and

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Big-Picture Financial and Schedule
Oversight

Managing a $470 million program requires meticulous
financial and schedule oversight, along with a big-picture
perspective on how all the moving parts fit together.

ICE’s approach will ensure that every dollar of the
Transportation Sales Tax is maximized and accounted
for.

We will handle the program’s finances with the same care
as we would our own—exercising fiscal discipline,
transparency, and strategic planning to deliver projects
on time and within budget.

Budget Setup and Financial
Reporting

We will work with the County Finance Department to set
up budget accounts for each project and for overall
program administration. As invoices come in — from design
consultants, contractors, land purchases, etc. — they will
be logged against the respective project budgets in real-

time. Our financial analysts will generate monthly financial
reports that summarizing:

» Expenditures to date
» Percent of budget used
» Remaining funds per projects

These reports will be tailored for different audiences:

» Detailed versions for County Finance staff

» High-level summaries for the Advisory Committee
and the public, ensuring financial transparency at
every level

Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Setup and Forecasting

Create project-specific budget accounts,
forecast revenue, and align funds with
project phasing.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Real-Time Tracking

Log invoices against live budgets and
generate monthly reports showing
expenditures, % used, and remaining
balance.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Cost Controls

Establish cost targets, manage
consultant pricing, and bundle projects
strategically to maintain efficiency and

value.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Audits and Reporting

Support annual audits and prepare
public-facing financial summaries with
clear charts and plain-language insights.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 43



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Sales Tax Revenue
Management and Cash Flow
Planning

ICE is very familiar with the revenue mechanics
of local option sales taxes. Jasper County’s tax
will have a defined lifespan of no more than 15
years and will collect up to $470 million (or cease
when that amount is reached). We will work with
the County to develop conservative revenue
projections each year, likely in consultation with
the State Department of Revenue data. Knowing
the expected cash flow, we will help plan how to
phase projects accordingly.

Strong cost management is essential throughout
design and construction. Some years will see
spikes in construction spending, whereas sales
tax revenues accrue steadily. ICE will develop and
periodically update cost-loaded schedules for
each project to determine anticipated cash needs.
ICE will use this as the basis to assist the County in
determining when it may be appropriate to bond up
to the approved $150 million to save on escalating
construction costs. For example, we anticipate the
County being able to pay-as-you-go during the
first two years of the program.

Getting design contracts in place and the design
phase underway and finalized will be a relatively
minor funding need when compared to the
construction phase, which is the most expensive
and last phase of the project delivery. We will
develop a 15-year cash flow model that plots
out sources and uses of funds, ensuring that the
program never faces a funding shortfall.

"More Value per Penny: Through
aggressive pursuit of grants and smart
project phasing, ICE will stretch Jasper
County's Penny Sales Tax further -
delivering more improvements without
more cost"

Cost Control Strategies

Cost control is another essential aspect of our
financial management. ICE will enforce strong
cost management practices from design through
construction.

In design, we will set cost targets for each project
(based on the referendum estimates and our
refined cost-risk analyses) and challenge design
consultants to stay within those targets. We will
review design decisions for cost efficiency -
for instance, evaluating whether a 5-lane section
can transition to 4 lanes sooner to save costs
without impacting traffic or using retaining walls
strategically to reduce right-of-way acquisition.

During construction procurement, ICE will assist
the County in packaging projects in a way
that achieves economics of scale and attracts
competitive bids (perhaps bundling smaller
projects together or separating specialty work into
different contracts to get the best pricing). We will
provide independent engineer’s estimates for
each construction project being bid and may need
to negotiate to keep contractor prices reasonable.

Rigorous Change Order
Management

Every change will be evaluated for necessity, and
we will seek cost recovery or value engineering
options to offset any added costs. By having a
full program view, we can sometimes offset cost
increasesonone projectwithsavingsonanother. For
example, if Project Acomesinunderbudget, we can
reallocate those funds to Project B if needed, with
County approval. We will recommend developing
and maintaining a program contingency fund,
if feasible (essentially a reserve from within the
$470M) to handle unforeseen costs, and we will
only dip into it with proper justification and after
exhausting other avenues.

44| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Grant and Additional Funding
Support

A distinguishing feature of ICE’s approach is our
commitment and strategy to identify additional
funding sources to stretch leverage and maximize
the County’s sales tax dollars.

The referendum’s success positions Jasper
County as an excellent candidate for matching
grants — many state and federal grants look for local
commitment, which the sales tax demonstrates.

ICE will actively seek grants (like USDOT’s
RAISE or INFRA grants, South Carolina State
Infrastructure Bank opportunities, or FEMA
resilience grants for road improvements in
flood-prone areas). We will work with the County
to prepare compelling grant applications. We will
use our knowledge of the projects to emphasize
regional significance (for US 278, for example) or
safety benefits (for rural road improvements).

If successful, these grants could fund portions
of projects, freeing up local funds to cover more
scope or additional projects. ICE is very familiar
with federal requirements and will guide the County
accordingly, should a federal grant be obtained.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Financial Compliance and
Reporting

Identifying other funding sources will extend the
program’s impact far beyond what the sales tax
alone could achieve. On the administrative side,
ICE will ensure strict compliance with financial
regulations and reporting requirements unique to
other funding sources. We will assist the County
during the annual independent audits by keeping
immaculate records and documentation for every
transaction.

Our Team will assist the County by providing any
needed project documentation so that auditors
(and the public) can easily verify that funds were
spent in accordance with the referendum’s intent.
We will also help draft the annual report to the
County Council and the public, which the Advisory
Committee can present, documenting progress
and expenditures in an accessible format. ICE’s
experience preparing similarreports forothercounty
programs means we know how to communicate
the program’s financial health clearly, using charts,
tables, and plain language summaries.

Summary

ICE's Program and Financial Management
approach is characterized by comprehensive
oversight, strategic financial planning, and
unwavering public transparency. Jasper County’s
citizens will be able to see that their money is
managed by professionals who care about value
and accountability. Success for us means delivering
all promised projects within the $470 million—or
even doing more—by smart management and
leveraging funds. ICE’s track record of effective
program controls and financial stewardship will be
a tremendous asset to Jasper County.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 45



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Project Planning, Scoping,
AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

Laying the Groundwork with Purpose and Clarity

For successful design and construction, good planning is essential. ICE’s approach to Project Planning,
Scoping, and Conceptual Design will set each project up for success by clearly identifying objectives and
ensuring that we utilize the first principles of thinking: “Begin with the end in mind.”

In this early phase, our Team will work closely with Jasper County, SCDOT, municipalities and other
stakeholders to define each project’s objectives, explore alternatives, and resolve the final scope, budget,
and schedule - all while considering environmental and community factors from the outset.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Project Scoping Reports That Define Scope, Needs, and
Expectations

For each transportation project in the program, ICE will develop a detailed Project Scoping Report (or
Project Planning Report). This report will be a foundational document that compiles all key information and
decisions about the project at the concept stage.

Per the RFQ expectations, our Conceptual Design Team will include in these reports:

» Draft Purpose and Need Statement endangered species habitats or other concerns
(identifying why the project is needed, e.g. in the area);
relieve congestion on SC 170, orimprove safety > An

. . initial determination of the required
at a skewed intersection); q

NEPA level (e.g. Categorical Exclusion vs.
Environmental Assessment) and any likely
environmental permits needed;

» Adetailed Project Description;
» Proposed Design Criteria (design speed,

typical section width, design standards);

A sketch-level Conceptual Design layout
(plan view of road improvements, preliminary
alignment or widening footprint and typical
sections);

The Project Extents (location, area, and
length);

An Environmental Constraints overview
(identifying  wetlands, historic properties,

A Utility Coordination overview (noting which
utilities are present and potential conflicts);

Potential Easement and Right of Way needs,
based on concept plans;

A preliminary Cost Estimate (itemized to
the extent possible, including contingencies
informed by the risk analysis);

A projected critical-path Schedule for design
and construction

The report will serve as a one-stop reference for County officials, the Advisory Committee, and other
stakeholders. ICE will seek County approval before development, incorporate review comments, and finalize
the report for public release.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

46| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Holistic, Multidisciplinary Scoping

What sets ICE apart in this stage is our experienced and holistic approach to project scoping.
This will be key to avoiding confusion and misunderstandings, and enable us to set and meet, or
exceed expectations. We do not just consider the engineering — we also consider community input,
environmental stewardship and realistic permitting timeframes, right-of-way impacts and
acquisitions, and constructability from the beginning.

Our Teamwill organize field visits and charrettes for each major project, bringing together engineers,
environmental scientists, and utility experts to walk the project area (physically or via maps and
Streetview) and identify issues early. For example, on the SC 46/170/315 intersection project, our
scoping Team will coordinate with both SCDOT and local engineers and planners because this project
could significantly alter traffic patterns at a key junction between Jasper and Beaufort counties.

We will evaluate different conceptual layouts with County staff (perhaps a roundabout vs. a
signalized realignment) and weigh them against the project goals of capacity and safety. For widening
projects like US 17 or SC 315, early decisions like which side of the existing roadway to widen on (or
whether to add lanes symmetrically) will impact how many parcels might be affected by proposed
right-of-way.

ICE will generate and compare alternatives at the conceptual stage, often presenting options with
pros/cons and cost differences and recommendations to aid decision-making. This way, County
leaders and the Advisory Committee can be involved to make informed decisions on the preferred
concept that balance cost, impact, and benefit.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Early Public Engagement for Local Support

Another critical aspect at this stage is public involvement, which will be led by our communications
partner, The Merchant Strategy. While full public meetings may occur later during design, our Team
believes in early and meaningful engagement—especially for projects that have a direct impact on
communities, such as the reconstruction of Levy Road through residential areas.

ICE and The Merchant Strategy will take the lead in engaging residents, local leaders, and property
owners early in the scoping phase through meetings, small workshops, or neighborhood listening
sessions, and can develop website information and surveys or questionnaires to poll the affected
community and quantify the inputs received so that the County leaders understand the public’s
desires. These interactions are vital for capturing community priorities and building support—whether
it is concerns about speeding, access, or preserving neighborhood character—which can then be
reflected in the conceptual design.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC

47



48

Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Environmental Planning
Integration to Minimize Delays

ICE’s approach also emphasizes environmental
planning integration. Our environmental Team will
perform desktop environmental screenings during
scoping. Using GIS data, we will map wetlands,
floodplains, endangered species ranges, cultural
resources, etc., relative to each project.

If a planned road widening on US 17 looks like it could
encroach on a marsh, we will note the permitting
requirements and consider design options (like
bridging or shifting alignment) to minimize impacts.
By identifying environmental red flags early, we can
often streamline the NEPA process later.

In one case, an ICE environmental planner discovered
a historical site near a planned bridge project during
the planning phase — we adjusted the alignment by
a few yards and avoided what would have been a
lengthy Section 106 historic review.

For Jasper County’s projects, we will similarly strive
to avoid or minimize impacts at the conceptual
stage, saving time in permitting. The planning reports
will clearly list anticipated permits (e.g., a Nationwide

Permit from the Army Corps for a particular culvert :

extension), so the County is aware of the likely
environmental steps for each project upfront.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

: Data-Driven Conceptual
: Design

Innovative conceptual design is another -
: strength ICE brings. We employ advanced :
. tools like traffic simulation software (Synchro/
SimTraffic, VISSIM) during planning to test :
+ and present to decision makers how different
. design concepts will perform.

: For example, for the US 278 corridor :
. widening, we can simulate future traffic with :
fand without certain improvements (such -
¢ as added turn lanes at key intersections or
. innovative intersection designs) to ensure
the concept we pursue will truly alleviate -
: congestion and meet project objectives. .

: We also consider constructability and :
: maintenance of traffic in our concepts - how :
. to build the project without creating additional
- traffic burdens for those who have to use the :
¢ road. It might influence whether we build new
. lanesto one side first or expand symmetrically. :
Our construction experts weigh in early so .
. that our conceptual designs are realistic and
. buildable.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

The Outcome: Clarity, Speed, and Confidence

. At the conclusion of the planning and conceptual phase, Jasper County will have a clear roadmap for
- each project: a defined scope, a baseline schedule, and budget, and documented considerations
of environment and utilities. This creates a solid foundation on which designs can proceed at speed. By
investing time and expertise in thorough project scoping, ICE will help avoid indecision and scope creep

and minimize surprises later.

- Our approach in this phase is essentially about de-risking the projects early in the program—clearing
. the path forward so that design engineers, contractors, and everyone involved know exactly what the goal

is and what should be expected.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH
Utilicy
COORDINATION

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

: The Challenge of Utility Relocation

Relocating utilities is often one of the most challenging and poorly planned aspects of transportation
- projects - if not managed well, it can lead to delays, cost overruns, and unhappy stakeholders.

. ICE’s approach to Utility Coordination is proactive, systematic, and founded on strong relationships with
utility companies. Our goal isto “clear the path” for each project, like the Pittsburgh Steelers’ Mike Webster
. opening a hole in the defensive line for Franco Harris to run through, by resolving utility conflicts early and
. efficiently so that utilities do not become the Achilles’ heel of Jasper County’s Road improvements.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Program-Wide Utility Communication

Our Utility Coordination Team will begin by notifying all utility owners in Jasper County (and the surrounding
region, since some infrastructure like telecom or gas lines might traverse the area) about the passage of the
sales tax program and the upcoming projects. Early communication sets a collaborative tone.

We will provide them with maps and descriptions of the project corridors and request information on their
existing facilities in those areas. ICE has a database of utility contacts (and we will augment it with local
knowledge from County staff who know which companies operate where).

The utility owners will be invited to a Utility Coordination Kickoff Meeting where we introduce the program
(projects and schedules), establish points of contact and lines of communication, and emphasize that we
want to work together to minimize impacts — this meeting helps get buy-in and puts faces to names, fostering
partnership rather than adversarial interactions.

Project-Level Coordination Framework

For each individual project, ICE will follow a structured utility coordination process (aligned with SCDOT'’s
Utility Accommodation policies and any local protocols). Key steps include:

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

: Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE)

We willarrange for SUE services (using a qualified subconsultantif needed) to accurately locate underground
- utilities in the project areas. Quality Level B (designating) and Quality Level A (test holes) data will be
: obtained for critical conflict points.

. This precise information allows us to plot utilities on the design plans and identify conflicts with proposed
construction (for example, a water line that runs exactly where a new storm drain is planned). By investing
: in SUE, we avoid nasty surprises during construction like uncharted lines.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 49



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Utility Conflict Analysis

Once we have the existing utility maps and the
project’s conceptual (and later detailed) designs,
ICE will perform a conflict analysis.

We will mark which utilities are in conflict and which
might remain in place. For those not impacted, we
will obtain letters of “No Conflict” from the owners
to document that they have reviewed the plans and
foresee noissues. For utilities that are impacted, we
categorize the conflicts by severity and type.

Relocation Strategy
Development

ICE acts as the facilitator between the project design
team and the utility owners. We will sit down with
each utility company (power, water/sewer, telecom,
gas, etc.) to discuss the conflicts and brainstorm
solutions.

Sometimes, aroad design can be tweaked slightly to
avoid a utility (for instance, shortening or shifting a
culvertto avoid moving a water main). We will pursue
those design accommodations where feasible as a
first option. Where relocations are unavoidable, we
work with the utility to decide new alignments for
their lines and coordinate that with the road design.

ICE will prepare utility relocation drawings or
markups of the road plans showing where utilities
could move to, ensuring they do not clash with other
proposed relocations. We also coordinate between
utilities — for example, if the power company needs
to move poles and the telecom has lines on those
poles, we facilitate a combined approach so they
relocate in concert or perhaps move underground
together, etc.

Our utility coordinators will hold regular utility
coordination meetings (likely monthly during design
phases) to keep all parties informed and working in
the same direction.

Determining Prior Rights and
Cost Responsibility

A critical aspect is determining who pays for each
relocation. ICE will thoroughly research prior rights
- whether the utility has an easement or was there
by permit - to establish if the County (project) is
responsible for relocation costs or if the utility must
cover it.

This can be complex, but our Team’s experience
with utility agreements and a long history of SCDOT
projects will ensure Jasper County does not overpay
for relocations. For utilities without prior rights (i.e. in
public right-of-way by permit), we will obtain no-cost
agreements where the utility owner agrees to move
at their own expense. If a utility does have prior rights
(e.g., an easement that predates the road project),
then the project may need to fund the relocation - in
those cases, we will negotiate utility agreements that
clearly outline the scope and cost, and we will seek
ways to minimize that cost (perhaps by including the
relocation in the road contractor’s work for efficiency,
or standardizing materials).

We will explore in-contract utility relocation for cases
where it makes sense — meaning the road contractor
would perform the relocation as part of the highway
contract. This can sometimes be faster and cheaper,
especially for smaller utilities, and we will coordinate
such arrangements with the utility owners as needed.

Relocation Schedule and
Execution

Once plans are settled, we will push for utilities to
relocate ahead of or during construction in a timely
manner. ICE will create a Utility Relocation Schedule
that is coordinated with the project construction
schedule. We will monitor progress closely.

Our Team will serve as on-site liaisons during
relocation work, resolving any field issues (for
instance, if a buried cable is found slightly off
its assumed location, we work out a quick field
adjustment with the designer and utility crew). By
keeping a close eye, we ensure relocations happen
as planned.

50| statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Documentation and Close-out

ICE will maintain detailed logs of all utility coordination communications, approvals, and
agreements.

Before a project goes to construction, we will have a Utility Clearance Letter on file indicating
all utilities are addressed (either relocated or protected in place) so that the contractor knows
they have a clear site, except for any coordinated work.

What Sets ICE's Utility Coordination Apart

» Persistent, Proactive Communication
We engage utility providers early—and follow up often—to keep project needs at the top
of their priority list.

» Strong Industry Relationships
Our team has long-standing connections with South Carolina utility companies and
understands their processes, preferences, and constraints.

» Utility-Specific Scheduling Insight
We plan around utility needs—Ilike telecom providers preferring a single relocation phase
with ample notice—so nothing falls through the cracks.

» Tech-Enabled Coordination
We use shared GIS maps, live utility databases, and collaboration platforms to
streamline communication and track relocation updates in real time.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 51



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Construction

ADMINISTRATION

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

From Plans to Pavement: Delivering with Confidence and
Control

When it comes to turning plans on paper into pavement on the ground, ICE’s Construction
Administration approach ensures that construction is executed safely, efficiently, and to the highest
quality standards. We see Construction Administration as the phase where all the careful planning
and design pays off — and we are there every step of the way to protect the County’s interests and
deliver a successful project. Jasper County’s sales tax program will involve many construction
contracts over the years, from small intersection upgrades to multi-mile widenings, and even possibly
amenities for Greenbelt projects. ICE’s seasoned CEl Team will oversee these with a consistent,
rigorous methodology.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Pre-Construction Services

Our involvement in construction starts even before a contractor breaks ground. ICE will assist
Jasper County with bid package preparation and procurement for each project. We will ensure
the construction documents (plans, specifications, contract provisions) are clear, biddable, and
reflective of the County’s requirements. In particular, we will incorporate any necessary local
provisions such as traffic management constraints (e.g., no lane closures during peak hours on US
278) and DBE participation goals. We will support the County’s procurement process by conducting
pre-bid meetings, answering contractor questions (issuing addenda as needed), and evaluating bids
for completeness and responsiveness. Once a contractor is selected, ICE can facilitate the pre-
construction conference to align expectations between the contractor, County, and any third parties
(utilities, etc.).

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Construction Inspection and Oversight

ICE will provide on-site CEI services for the program’s projects, acting as the County’s eyes and ears
onthe job site. Our certified inspectors and resident engineers have extensive experience on SCDOT
and local projects, which means they are intimately familiar with roadway construction methods,
SCDOT standard specs, and quality requirements. The RFQ allows the Program Manager to perform
CEl, and ICE has a full CEI division ready to deploy. For each active construction contract, we will
assign a Resident Project Representative (RPR) - a highly qualified engineer or inspector who will
be on site daily to inspect the work, coordinate with the contractor, and ensure compliance with
plans and specs. Supporting the RPR will be a team of inspectors (scaled to the project’s needs — a
big widening might have multiple inspectors for structures, earthwork, paving, etc., whereas a small
sidewalk project might need one part-time inspector). All our inspectors hold necessary certifications
(ACI concrete, NICET, asphalt roadway technician, erosion control, etc.) to test materials and verify
workmanship meets or exceeds standards.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

52| statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

Quality Assurance

ICE will implement a Quality Management Plan for construction. This includes detailed daily inspection
reports (documenting weather, work performed, manpower, equipment, materials, tests, etc.), material
sampling and testing protocols (ensuring, forinstance, that asphalt delivered meets mix design and density
requirements), and prompt issue tracking. If any deficiencies are observed - say concrete that does not
meet strength or a curb that is not to line/grade — our Team will flag it and ensure the contractor corrects it,
either by repair or replacement, at no cost to the County. Our philosophy is “build it right the first time,” and
we work closely with contractors to achieve that. However, if issues arise, we are resolute in enforcing the
contract.

Contract Administration and Compliance

ICE’s construction managers will handle the myriad of administrative tasks that come with construction.
We will review the contractor’s baseline schedule and monitor schedule updates, verifying that sufficient
progress is being made. If a contractor falls behind, ICE will proactively engage them with recovery plan
discussions to mitigate delays. We will process submittals and shop drawings - reviewing contractor
submissions (or forwarding to the design engineer when technical) in a timely manner so as not to hold up
work. Our Team will also evaluate change order requests — only those merited by unforeseen conditions
or minor owner-directed changes will be recommended, and we will negotiate fair pricing using our cost
estimate skills and by analyzing contractor provided breakdowns.

An important part of contract administration is pay application review. ICE will thoroughly check the
contractor’'s monthly pay requests against field progress. We will verify that claimed quantities of work
were indeed installed and meet specifications before recommending payment. This protects the County
from overpayment and ensures the pay reflects true progress (which ties into our budget tracking for the
program).

Safety and Environmental Oversight

Safety oversight is another duty - we will monitor that the contractor is following OSHA regulations and
project-specific safety plans. For example, on a roadway project, we will continuously check that proper
traffic control (signs, cones, flaggers, if needed) is in place to protect both workers and the traveling public.
If we see any unsafe conditions, our inspectors are empowered to immediately require corrections or pause
work if necessary. Safety is non-negotiable in our approach.

Environmental compliance during construction will also be watched. Jasper County’s beautiful environment
must be protected even as we build roads. ICE inspectors will ensure that erosion and sediment control
measures (silt fence, construction entrances, etc.) are properly installed and maintained, and that there
are no violations of environmental permits (like improper wetlands disturbance or turbidity in streams). We
document these inspections and any corrections, keeping the project in good standing with regulators.

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC

53



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Traffic and Stakeholder
Coordination

Traffic and stakeholder coordination during
construction is something ICE will actively manage.
Construction can be disruptive — lane closures,
detours, noise —and we will minimize those impacts
through careful coordination. Our Construction
Team will send out weekly look-ahead schedules to
stakeholders (schools, emergency services, public
via website) to inform them of any significant traffic
impacts coming. We will coordinate with SCDOT
Districttrafficengineersforanyrequiredlaneclosure
approvals on state routes. If work is occurring in a
neighborhood (like Levy Road reconstruction), we
might go door-to-door beforehand with flyer’s, so
residents know what to expect and whom to call.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Final Close-Out and
Continuous Improvement

Closing projects out properly is the last step of our
construction administration. ICE will ensure punch
list items are addressed thoroughly, and we will
not recommend final acceptance until everything
is completed to standards. We will gather all as-
built drawings (surveys and redlines from the
contractor) and deliver organized project files to
the County for maintenance records. We will also
verify all warranties and guarantees are in place
for materials or equipment. A successful close-out
also includes reflecting on lessons learned - ICE
does post-project reviews to capture any insights
that can be applied to future projects in the program
(continuous improvement).

The program web site will be frequently updated for
project construction information. Because we were
involved from the start, our Team will be familiar
faces, maintaining trust built during the earlier
phases.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Why ICE's Construction Approach Works

What sets ICE apart in Construction Administration is our depth of experience and commitment to timely, on-
budget delivery without sacrificing quality. We have managed construction on interstate interchanges with
multi-year schedules and on small sidewalk jobs —in all cases, we treat the project as if we are the owner. Our
construction managers are adept at problem-solving on the fly. For instance, if unexpected poor soil is found
(something that can happen in the Lowcountry), we quickly convene with geotechnical engineers and propose
solutions (undercut and backfill, soil stabilization, etc.) to keep the job moving - all while negotiating costs so
the County is not blindsided.

Finally, we recognize that Jasper County’s program will run for many years, and construction technology and
methods evolve. ICE stays at the forefront of industry practices — whether it is new materials, accelerated
bridge construction techniques, or improved project management software. We will continuously improve our
construction administration approach by adopting proven innovations that can save time or money for the
County.

In summary, ICE’s Construction Administration approach is to ensure that plans translate to successful
projects on the ground. Through diligent oversight, effective communication, and a solutions-driven mindset,
we will deliver each project to Jasper County’s expectations. When a project is finished - say a widened Argent
Boulevard is opened to traffic, or a new park is opened along the Savannah River - we want the County and its
citizens to celebrate not just the end result, but also to be proud of staff, to look back and say, “That project went
very smoothly.” Our approach will make that outcome the rule, not the exception.

54| Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC



Section D | SCOPE OF WORK APPROACH

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Conclusion: A Trusted Partner for a Transformative
Program

Jasper County’s Transportation Sales Tax Program is ambitious and transformative.
It requires a Program Manager with vision, experience, and dedication equal to the
task. ICE’s proposed approach - rooted in best practices and customized for Jasper
County — will ensure the program’s success from planning through construction. We
will manage the big picture without losing sight of the details, always guided by the
principle that this program is for the people of Jasper County. Our narrative-driven and
collaborative style of management will keep everyone - officials, stakeholders, and
citizens — on the same page and informed of the progress and value being delivered.

By choosing ICE, Jasper County gains a partner who has the technical knowledge,
the local and regional experience, and the passion to deliver. We will turn the list of
projects and initiatives approved by the voters into a legacy of safer roads, stronger
communities, and protected landscapes. ICE is ready to begin immediately, and we
are committed to seeing the program through to its successful completion. Together,
let’s build the future of Jasper County - one road, one bridge, one green space at a
time — and do it with excellence and integrity.

:I - INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING & ENGINEERING

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Statement of Qualifications | INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING & ENGINEERING, LLC 55



:I -~ INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING & ENGINEERING



EXHIBIT C

July 2025
5-YEAR SCHEDULE - JASPER COUNTY SALES TAX PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

“This schedule isfor the Pl based ona Notice To Proceed of September 1
2025 2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

[Task

Description

| DELIVERABLI

E | September| Q4 Q1 [ @ [ a3 | aa a1t [ @ [ a3 |

[

a1

Q2

[ a3 [ aa

a1

Q2

a3

Q4

a1l |

Q2

PLANNING PHASE

ICE FEE

[Task 1 - Program

Assist the County in obta
| N

ng Local Public Agency (LPA) status with South Carolinal

rtment of (SCDOT) and compliance with LPA

1/31/2026

=

Coordinate, manage, and review Project plans, technical reports, specifications, and|
estimates prepared by project design consultants providing professional services to the|
County, for consistency with contract budgets, schedules, scope of work, design criteria, and|
applicable standards. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt|
Initiatives.

As-Needed

lc

Update Project cost estimates (25) annually

12/31/2025

Prepare independent cost estimates for Project professional services and assist the County|
with scope, schedule, and fee negotiations with Project design consultants, also to include|
the civil site i associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

12/31/2025

Review Project design consultant invoices for accuracy, compliance with contract terms, and
progress of the work. This shall include civil improvements  associated the|
Greenbelt Initiatives.

Monthly

Conduct meetings, monitor design progress, and keep the County informed of each Project’s|
status. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

Coordinate with municipalities, environmental agencies, and other project stakeholders as|
applicable to secure necessary approvals and permits prior to the construction letting. This|
shall include civil site associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

=

Ensure that all necessary permits and environmental approvals are obtained prior to letting a
Project for construction. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the|
Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

Ensure that all rights and easements necessary for the project are acquired prior to the|
construction letting. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt]
Initiatives.

As-Needed

Ensure that all utility coordination activities necessary to facilitate project construction have|
been performed prior to the construction letting. This shall include civil site improvements|
associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

=

. |accessibilty, equipment clearances, etc. prior to the construction letting. This shall include]

Perform technical, constructability, and maintainability reviews, including life cycle costs,

civil site associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

. |schedules invitations to bid or request for proposals that shall comply with the County

Responsible for overseeing the preparation of construction bid documents by the project]
design consultants, including the review of plans, specifications, estimates of quantities, bid

procurement code. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt]
Initiatives.

As-Needed

Conduct pre-bid meetings, review bids, and advise the County through selection and contract]
award process. This shall include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt]
Initiatives.

As-Needed

Coordinate and/or conduct value engineering studies and recommendations as may be|
requested to reduce construction costs. This shall include civil site improvements associated|
with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

Review and maintain project related correspondence and files. This shall include civi site|

associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

Perform public outreach activities including public meeting facilitation, mailer and handout|
design, coordinate response to public comments and meetings, or as required. This shall
include civil site improvements associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

As-Needed

~;

[ Task 2 — Program and Financial

2a.

Provide a written monthly Program Status Report for County staff and Council, due by|
12:01p.m. local time on the 15th of each month.

15th of
month

each

2b.

Attend all meetings associated with the program as directed by the County.

As-Needed

I3

Prepare a Program Management Plan that will serve as the playbook for the entire sales tax
program. This document will outline governance, communication protocols, public|
information and reporting strategies, risk management strategies, quality control measures,
and everv aspect of program execution.

12/31/2025

Prepare a Master Program Schedule that sequences all projects over the 15-year period,|
using logical priorities, dependencies, and funding flows. The master schedule shall integrate|
individual critical path method project schedules into a program-wide Gantt chart that clearly|
shows and tracks critical tasks and deadlines a for the design, right of way acquisition,|
permitting, and construction for all projects within the program and the timeline for]
Greenbelt acquisitions/improvements. This will be updated quarterly and as projects|
progress

3/31/2025

expenditures, and cash balances. The financial plan shall be in accordance with the CIP and|

Develop and maintain a Program Financial Plan to forecast Program revenues, project]

the Consultant will participate in the County’s annual CIP planning process. Revenue and|

cash reports will be County derived and maintained.

12/31/2025

Provide quarterly financial reports to include revenues, encumbrances, and expenditures,
due 30 days after the end of the quarter, using data provided by the County Finance|
rtment.

30 days past
Quarter

strategic use of social media, holding public meetings as requested to provide accurate, up to|

Develop and implement a Public Involvement Plan which shall include a Program website,|

date project information to the citizens of Jasper County. This shall include civil site|
associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

12/31/2025

Develop and manage a dedicated Program Website, hosted and maintained by thel
Consultant with a link to/from the County’s web site, to display program information, project|
updates, interactive maps, timelines, and financial summaries, FAQ as well as an option for|
citizens to ask question or provide input,

12/31/2025

»

* |complete, and well-organized files for each project.

Develop and implement a project Data Management System that provides readily accessible,|

12/31/2025

N

Provide the County with recommendations for the timing and amount of bond issuances,|
based upon the Program Financial Plan.

3/31/2026

Review and recommend methods to maximize efficiency and achieve economies of scale in
the of projects.

Annually

Develop consistent Design Criteria, standards, and specifications for use on projects|
developed by the Program where needed due to no available or applicable SCDOT design|

12/31/2025

criteria or SCDOT standard

and available Grant O

on behalf of the County.

Ongoing/Annual

Assist with document produ

n related to Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests and
other requests for i as applicable.

As-Needed

Assist with the of
of ing (MOU),

permits, (1GA),|

" |participation agreement (FPA) to faci

of agreement (MOA) and financiall
ate coordination with the SCDOT, South Carolina State|
Bank (SCSIB) and other applicable parties as needed.

As-Needed

Determine a method to evaluate project risk and cost, conduct risk analysis as needed, and
make based on analysis. (Risk Analysis per SOQ)

12/31/2025

.| Conduct bid analysis/evaluation of bids or prepare cost estimates for comparison when

Provide engineers probable opinion of cost when requested.

As-Needed

CT SPECIFIC SCHEDULE

w

Project Planning, Scoping, and Conceptual Design

Establish the scope of improvements, cost estimates, and baseline cost-loaded schedules for
each project including the following subtasks. This would include civi site improvements
associated with the Greenbelt Initiatives.

1/31/2026

Conceptual Project Design

Perform feasibility and initial constructability review of a conceptual design and scope of each,
project. Provide baseline costs and schedule, to include design, right-of-way, construction,
utility utility relocation, and permitting.

The conceptual designs shall be developed in accordance with the South Carolina
Department of Transportation (SCDOT) Highway Design Manual and the American
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) “A Policy on Geometric
Design of Highwavs and Streets”

Conceptual designs shall be developed on aerial photography and available GIS. Design
features to be illustrated shall include the proposed roadway typical sections, roadwayl

lane auiliary turn lanes, and bicycle & pedestrian
facilities. The conceptual designs shall be presented on color roll-plots for coordination with
project stakeholders and on 11” x 17” size sheets for incorporation into a project planning]

report.




Work to ize impacts to private property, buildings, cultural features (churches|
cemeteries, parks, etc.), major utilities, and natural resources in the development of the|
project conceptual designs. COUNTY GIS property lines shall be referenced into thel
conceptual design to estimate right of way impacts for each project. Impacts on buildings and
cultural features shall be estimated from aerial and a project field review.

Perform an environmental screening to determine the presence of likely hazardous materiall
sites, threatened and endangered species, historical/cultural resources, floodplains, and!
jurisdictional wetlands within the project area. The presence of these environmentall

will be ined throueh a windshield survev and database searches.

Identify the expected permits and NEPA compliant environmental document (Categorical
Exclusion, Environmental Assessment, or Environmental Impact Statement) required for each|
project based on conceptual design and screening.

B. _Baseline Cost Estimates and Schedules

Prepare a cost estimate for each project based on the conceptual project design. Project cost|
estimates shall represent the total cost of project development and include the following|
typical project costs:

1/31/2026

g

Engineering services (planning and design),

Right of way acquisition (land and services).

Wetland mitigation,

Utility relocation (utilities with prior rights),

Construction,

ol fe o

Construction ing & inspection

Appropriate factors shall be applied in coordination with the COUNTY to provide for|
i ithin each project budget to address unforeseen conditions.

Baseline schedules to be developed for each project shall include the project phases of|

planning and design, right of way acquisition, permitting, utility
i and Cost estimates associated with each of these|

project phases shall be used to create a cost loaded schedule for purposes of program
financial plan:

1/31/2026

£,
Evaluate projects through a cost-risk analysis to identify risks to the project scope or|
schedule which may significantly impact project cost. A cost-risk workshop will be conducted;
for each project to engage subject matter experts in a review of the projects to identify|
potential risks based on their experience with transportation project development in the|
area. The project cost estimate will be refined to account for the magnitude and likelihood of|
each identified risk.

3/31/2026

c. Overview

Prepare a Project Planning Report for each project to present the conceptual design,|
environmental overview, utility overview, cost estimate, and schedule. The reports shall
contain the following ir i

3/31/2026

Draft Purpose and Need Statement,

Project Description

Design Criteria,

Conceptual Design,

Proiect Location and Length,
i Constraints

Identify the Required NEPA Document,

Identify the Required Permits,

Utility

Cost Estimate

Slelelelelelelelele e

Schedule

These reports will be submitted to the County and SCDOT (if applicable) for review and|
comment. All comments will be addressed as applicable in a comment response matrix and
revised final reports will be provided to the County.

4/31/2026

D.__Plan Review

For projects on SCDOT roadways or within SCDOT ROW, the consultant shall conduct al

cursory review prior to submittal to SCDOT. The review will ensure that plans satisfy SCDOT|

requirements and foreseeable errors are addressed. Detailed review of design and/or]
will not be required.

As-Needed

For projects in the County or municipal system, the consultant will act as the County
reviewer and will review for design, calculation, adherence to appropriate standards and
fications, and o

As-Needed

If plans require submittal to County planning or other departments for review, then the
Consultant will fa as needed

As-Needed

IS

Task 4 - Utility C Services

Prepare a Utility Coordination Plan for the Program, to guide the procedures for an ongoing
process from conception to construction, to include Proactive Conflict Identification,
Collaboration & Communication, Data-Driven Decisions, Risk Assessments and Mitigation
Strategies, & Contingency Planning and Budgeting, Regular Joint Meetings, and Legal Rights
and Contractual

12/31/2026

Notify all known utility owners in the area of the projects and identify those utilities with
existing and proposed facilities in the project areas.

12/31/2025

Facilitate and act as intermediary between project design team and u

y
design phase.

Hold regular joint utility meetings with utilizes once initial projects beg

Ongoing

" |utility locations and identify conflicts

Arrange for Project Design teams to employ Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) to establish

As-Needed

Obtain letters of “no-conflict” for those utilities which are not impacted

As-Needed

" |conflicts which cannot be eliminated.

Coordinate with utility owner(s) and designer(s) to develop relocation plans for those

As-Needed

Review all utility owners’ relocation plans to ensure that relocations proposed by one owner
do not conflict with another’s relocation.

As-Needed

Establish prior rights of occupancy.

As-Needed

.| obtain no-cost letters from those util

ty owners without prior rights or develop utili
with those owners who can document their prior rights

y

As-Needed

Evaluate the feasibility of in-contract utility relocation and develop necessary agreements in
with the utility owner.

As-Needed

Develop Contractual Provisions and Incentive:

" |clearly define responsil

As-Needed

Clear Utility Relocation Clauses: Incorporate explicit clauses in Contracts that

fes for utility relocation, and unexpected discoveri

As-Needed

In utility agreements consider incentives for early relocation and penalties for unreasonable

delays.

As-Needed

Monitor the progress of utility relocation and incorporate utility relocation schedules into the
overall project schedule and master program schedule.

As-Needed

m.
Greenbelt

shall include Utility Coordination Services for civil site improvements associated with the

As-Needed

«

[Task 5 - Right of way Acquisition Services

Prepare a Right of Way Acqui

n Plan for the Program

12/31/2025

Provide R-O-W services to coordinate, plan, direct, and control R-O-W activities necessary to
legally acquire and record R-O-W needed for construction, ensuring that all R-O-W acquired
complies with all other applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, policies, etc.

As-Needed

Forecast and estimate R-O-W acquisition schedules and R-0-W cash flow expenditures and
timelines for acquisition.

3/31/2026

The following services will be performed on an as-needed basis for the individual projects,

Perform title search and provide title opinions for parcels requiring acquisition.

As-Needed

. [ Provide appraisal cost estimates for acquisitions, by a South Carolina licensed appraiser.

Procure or perform appraisals and review the appraisals provided by others.

Negotiate ng a translator when necessary.

As-Needed

Task 6 — Program C i inistrati
C reviews of plans and specifi prepared for projects prior to
letting.

Attend p routine meetings, etc.

Reviewing and maintaining records of plans, speci

ations, shop drawings, revisions,
warranties, etc

Monitor each proiect and prepare monthly status reports.

Evaluating and recommending actions related to progress payments, change requests,

claims, disputes,

Performing proiect close-out activities.

Fostering and maintaining a positive public image related to construction operations by
proper interaction with the public and media, maintenance of traffic, attention to safety,
permit compliance

| Greenbelt Initiatives.

shall include Construction Administration for civil site i

provements associated with the




EXHIBIT D

FEE PROPOSAL - TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

July 2025
Task Task / Deliverable Description Fee
1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Hourly Allowance, Includes $3,000,000.00
Project Task Orders
Project specific Task Orders shall be issued and assigned under this as they are
activated, each with a refined scope, schedule and fee — Assume 12 projects started in
first 5 years
2 PROGRAM AND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT - Hourly Allowance $950,000.00
3 PROJECT PLANNING, SCOPING, AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN - $2,000,000.00
Hourly Allowance, Includes Project Task Orders
Project specific Task Orders shall be issued and assigned under this as they are
activated, each with a refined scope, schedule and fee — Assume 12 projects started
in first 5 years
4 UTILITY COORDINATION SERVICES — Hourly Allowance $600,000.00
5 CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION — Hourly Allowance (NOT CEl) $700,000.00
6 RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SERVICES — Hourly Allowance $700,000.00
INDIVIDUAL EARLY DELIVERABLES — TOTAL (Each at LUMP SUM) $250,000.00
Individual Deliverables — Each at Lump Sum LS
2.c. | Program Management Plan $36,000
2.d. | Master Program Schedule $25,000
2.e. | Program Financial Plan $32,000
2.g. | Public Involvement Plan $22,000
2.h. | Program Web Site Development and Startup $20,000
2.i. Data Management Plan / System $32,000
2.1 Design Criteria and Standards $15,000
2.q. | Risk Analysis Method $24,000
4.a. | Utility Coordination Plan $20,000
6.a. | R/W Acquisition Plan $24,000
GREENBELT WORK, UNKNOWNS and ADD’L SRVCS $700,000.00
DIRECT REIMBURSABLES $85,000.00

FIRST 5 YEARS — ESTIMATED N.T.E. TOTAL FEE =

$8,985,000.00




Billing & Invoicing

Work shall be invoiced Monthly based on actual hours (time & materials) capped by NTEs.

The attached Hourly Rate sheet (Exhibit E) includes the personnel direct labor rate with a 3.0
multiplier to produce the contract billing rates.

Unit Lump Sum rates for the individual early deliverables shall be billed at % complete.

Allowable Reimbursables shall include mileage at the IRS standard business mileage rate, federal
per diem for travel greater than 4 hours, reproduction, mailing or delivery services, public
meeting and field work incidentals, and shall be billed at cost.

Sub-consultant fees will not be marked up, but time spent managing sub-consultant contracts
shall be billed accordingly.



EXHIBIT E
ICE HOURLY RATES

JASPER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

ICE HOURLY RATES - JASPER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

July, 2025
July 2025
Name Job Title Jasper County Project Role D‘:rect Con.tr'act Hourly
Billing Rate
Labor Rate
ICE: 3.0X
Direct Labor

Mitchell Metts VP of Special Projects Sr. Engineer $100.96 $303
Leland Colvin Vice President - Special Projects SCDOT Liaison $112.98 $339
Les Blankenship Vice President/Chief Administrative Officer Legal Review $100.96 $303
Jeff Buckalew Program Manager Project Manager $79.33 $238
Bryan Mcllwee Project Manager Deputy Project Manager $75.48 $226
Alexis Mcllwee Water Resources Designer Designer $45.67 $137
Josh Apsitis Assistant Project Manager Engineer $61.44 $184
Barrett Stone Vice President & Environmental Services Manager |Sr. Biologist / Environmental Dept Head $88.94 $267
Cody Conner Senior Environmental Specialist Biologist / Environmental $46.96 $141
Daniel Koon Jr. Environmental Specialist Biologist / Environmental $26.49 $79
Gus Kretschmer Utility Coordinator Uitlity Manager $80.22 $241
Matthew Cox Utility Coordinator Utility Coordinator $67.50 $203
Jenny Germuth Sr. Transportation Engineer Sr. Designer $72.12 $216
Andy Gillis VP of Special Projects Sr. Engineer $85.58 $257
Aaron Livingston Project Manager Project Manager / Sr. Engineer $96.15 $288
Clarke Hinson Manager of Roadway Group (Charleston) Project Manager / Sr. Engineer $79.33 $238
Alex Nettles Roadway Engineer Sr. Designer $68.80 $206
Preston Felkel SC Structures Manager Project Manager / Sr. Engineer $96.15 $288
Ray Spence Structural Engineer Project Manager / Sr. Engineer $90.48 $271
Clark Baer Structural Engineer Engineer $61.15 $183
Jay Thompson VP - Pavement Consultancy Services Project Manager / Sr. Engineer $98.56 $296
Shilpa Girish Pavement Designer Designer $39.23 $118
Stuart Timmons SC Upstate Design Manager/Hydro Manager Project Manager / Sr. Engineer $86.54 $260
Jordan Bianchi Hydro Designer Designer $51.49 $154
Renee Mulholland Environmental Planner Biologist / Environmental $65.22 $196
Henry Phillips Sr. NEPA Planner Biologist / Environmental $65.87 $198
Trinaty Geraurd Assistant Project Manager - Special Projects Designer $39.42 $118
Marc LeMin VP - CM CE&l Services (SC Lowcountry) CEl Manager / Sr. Engineer $96.15 $288
Randy Carraway Project Manager Construction Manager / Sr. Engineer $98.56 $296
Todd Steagall Construction Project Manager Construction Manager / Sr. Engineer $100.48 $301
Eric Dillon Project Engineer Sr. Traffic Engineer $82.88 $249
Craig Nelson Traffic Engineer Traffic Engineer $58.17 $175
Lisa Schwartz Document Control Manager/Program Coordinator | Adminstrative / Data Management $42.39 $127
The Merchant Group Public Information Sub-Consultant

Sharon Merchant, Principle QA/QC $200
Cheryl Scott Public Involvement Officer Project Lead $150
Colleen Hackett Public Involvement Specialist Project Asssistant $125
RND Consultants Right of Way Acquisition Sub-Consultant

Janice Bergeron Principle QA/QC $341
Nathan Midkiff Project Manager Right of Way Agent Lead $205
Renee Bergeron Project Engineer Right-of-Way Agent $115
Tracy DeFreitas Administrator Right-of-Way Assistant $125

Annual escalation of hourly rates shall be allowed per contract in accordance with the Consumer Price Indexing




Conservation Priority Model
Medium Priority

- | h P | |
g t’ : 0 1.25 2.5 5 Miles
A e L |
‘“'1%_
SC CO n Se rved La n d S Esri, NASA; 'NGA; USGS, FEMA, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

Tyhee National
Wildhfe Refuge




ORDINANCE 2025/XX

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE JASPER COUNTY GREENBELT
PROGRAM SUBJECT TO A REFERENDUM WITHIN JASPER COUNTY
(or similarly titled)

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Council recognizes the need to protect natural resources, protect
agricultural or heritage landscapes, and protect scenic corridors by purchasing property for conservation,
purchasing conservation easements, creating passive greenspace, creating active greenspace and conserving
land which is deemed essential to the County's quality of life; and

WHEREAS, Jasper County is experiencing rapid land development and economic growth which has
benefited the county’s people and economy, but has also led to the loss of forestlands, farmlands, wildlife
habitats, outstanding natural areas, and public areas for outdoor recreation; and has impacted the health of
streams, rivers, wetlands, estuaries, and bays, all of which impacts the quality of life of the County’s current
and future citizens and may jeopardize the well-being of the County’s environment and economy if not
addressed appropriately.

WHEREAS, Protected lands provide natural absorption of storm and rainwater; protecting greenspace helps
keep pollution out of our rivers, lakes and streams and protect the quality of our drinking water supplies; and

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Council has, by Ordinance XX/YY provided for the imposition of a
one percent (1%) sales and use tax pursuant to SC Code of Laws Title 4, Chapter 37 Section 30,
approved by Jasper County voters on November 5, 2024; and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2024, Jasper County Council passed Resolution #R-2024-41 of the Jasper
County Council Declaring Results of the Referendum on Transportation Sales and Use Tax, establishing
funding for transportation projects and greenbelts; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of this ordinance County Council undertakes to set forth a description of
the methods by which Council intends to procure greenbelts for conservation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE
COUNTY COUNCIL OF JASPER COUNTY AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. TITLE
This article shall be known as the "Jasper County Greenbelt Program Ordinance."

SECTION 2. PURPOSE
It is the purpose of this ordinance to:

Menu of options:

Provide a means by which lands may be protected as economic and environmental resources of
majorimportance.

Encourage landowners to make a voluntary long-term commitment to conservation by offering
landowners financial incentives and security of land use.

Preserve open space; protect critical and natural resources; and/or provide land for recreation.

Leverage federal, state, local, and private conservation efforts;

Provide a means whereby rural landowners can maintain and preserve the rural character of their
land through land conservation;

Provide compensation to landowners in exchange for relinquishment, in part or in whole, of their



right to develop their private property;

Reduce and defer the need for major public infrastructure improvements in the county when the
expenditure of public funds is the requirement for such improvements.

Provide for the purchase of fee simple interests in lands deemed critical to provide for the
protection of natural resources, creation of passive greenspace, creation of active greenspace,
protection of agricultural or heritage landscapes, and scenic corridors;

Provide for conservation easements and fee simple procurement in lands threatened by
development, which if it occurs will have detrimental effects on land use patterns, traffic,
public safety, stormwater runoff, water quality or other conservation objectives.

Provide for conservation of rural lands, which provide protection of natural resources and stability of
agricultural, timber, and other open space uses.

Protect and preserve watersheds including the lower Savannah River and Port Royal Sound
watersheds;

Encourage cooperation and innovative partnerships among landowners, state agencies, municipalities,
and nonprofit organizations, which must work together in order to meet these objectives;

SECTION 3 - DEFINITIONS:
Provided for your review

If applicable SECTION 4. GREENBELT BANK FUND ESTABLISHED'.

The Jasper County Treasurer shall establish an account separate and distinct from all other funds
appropriated by county council, called the Jasper County Greenbelt Bank Fund. The Jasper
County Greenbelt Bank Fund may receive revenues annually from the proceeds of the sales tax as
approved by voters on November 5, 2024, and other revenues or funding sources as authorized and
appropriated by Charleston County Council. Revenues from the sales tax are restricted solely for
financing the cost of greenbelts.

The bank may not hold or possess any interest in land or other interest in real property?.
SECTION 5: TYPES OF PROCUREMENTS
Preservation procurements are defined and include:

A. The acquisition of fee simple titles;

B. Conservation easements in perpetuity,

C. perpetual easements for portions of heritage/scenic corridors and boat landings

If applicable SECTION 6. GREENBELT COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP, TERMS,
ORGANIZATION

To facilitate preservation procurement purchases Council establishes the following Committee, sets
forth the terms of membership and its organization:

County Council shall appoint ##-member Committee as follows:
Menu of options:
A. one member who is a member of the County Council;

B. one member who is knowledgeable about the geography and condition of Jasper County's

! Charleston County establishes a fund. 1don’t know if Jasper needs this.
2 As required in Charleston County and the SC Conservation Bank



landscape and natural resources;

C. ## citizen members with relevant experience and qualifications in matters such as estate law,
finance, rural land ownership, agriculture, or conservation.

Terms of committee members are for four years and until their successors are appointed and qualify,
except that the initial terms of the members must be staggered with the initial term noted on the
appointment.

The committee is a public body, and its members are subject to the South Carolina Ethics Act, as
amended, and must perform their duties in accordance with its provisions.

The committee must conduct its business in accordance with the South Carolina Freedom of
Information Act.

The committee must recuse themselves from any vote in which they have a conflict of interest including, but
not limited to, any vote affecting or providing funding for the acquisition of interests in land?:

A. on land owned or controlled by the board member, the board member's immediate family, or an entity
the board member represents, works for, or in which the member has a voting or ownership interest;

B. on land contiguous to land described in item (1) of this subsection; and

C. by an eligible trust fund recipient that the board member represents, works for, or in which the member
has a voting or ownership interest.

If Applicable SECTION 7. GREENBELT ADVISORY COMMITTEE DUTIES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES

The duties and responsibilities of the Green Belt Advisory Committee are to:

A. Review and recommend to County Council interests in land to be acquired based on the
adopted program criteria and scoring system;

B. Review program operations including the application process that includes a measurable scoring
system based on adopted program criteria.

C. Submit to South Carolina Department of Revenue, Council approved program criteria and
application process for acknowledgement.

D. Perform such other duties as may be assigned by County Council.

SECTION 8. PROCUREMENT TYPES AND MINIMUM APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS.

The Jasper County Greenbelt Program (JCGP) will focus its efforts on the following conservation
procurement types: purchasing property fee simple and/or purchasing conservation easements each to
future the goals of creating passive greenspace, creating active greenspace, protecting natural resources,
protecting agricultural or heritage landscapes, and protecting scenic corridors®.

Applications from eligible applicants will be reviewed by staff for completeness, including a review of
provided due diligence and recommendation of final procurement. Jasper County qualifies as an applicant.
The minimum application requirements for procurements within Jasper County are as follows:

3 Verbatim from SC Conservation Bank
4 Verbatim from referendum



A. Applications for conservation easement procurements shall require a minimum 25% match.

B. Applications for fee simple county owned procurements shall require public access/use and may
require a match.

C. Applications for fee simple "other government" owned procurements may require public access/use
and may require a match.

Where an eligible applicant® seeks a JCGP grant to acquire fee title to land, it must demonstrate both the
expertise and financial resources to manage the land for the purposes set forth in its application. Where an
eligible applicant seeks a JCGP fund grant to acquire a conservation easement, it must demonstrate both the
expertise and financial resources to manage and enforce the restrictions placed upon the land for the
purposes set forth in its application.

An application must not be submitted to the board without the written consent of the owner of the interest in
land identified.

Further description of fee simple or easements can be provided here. See examples®:

Conservation easements will typically be purchased in areas designated "rural land", although there
may be instances where Conservation easements may be appropriate for purchase in other zoning
designations. Generally, one or more of the following apply:

There are conservation values in or on the property to be preserved.

b. Development of the property would result in adverse impacts to the environment or
public infrastructure serving the property.

c. The character of the property and its surrounding area would be threatened by
proposed or possible future development.

d. The owner wishes to retain ownership of the property.
e. Public access to the property is not required or desirable.
Fee simple interests shall be applicable in all areas of the county, including those designated as

"rural land". Generally, properties considered for fee purchase are those where the property owner(s)
are willing to sell in those instances where one or more of the following apply:

a. There are conservation values in or on the property to be acquired and the owner is
only willing to sell all of their interest in the property.

b. Public access to the property is required or desirable.

c. Development of the property for public access, active recreation and/or passive
recreation use is desirable.

d. Development of the property would result in adverse impacts to the environment or
public infrastructure serving the property.

SECTION 9. APPLICATION PROCESS AND DEADLINES
A. The Greenbelt Committee (GC) will process applications from eligible applicants on a quarterly
cycle. The quarterly application deadlines are as follows:
a. January 31

5 Borrowed from Charleston County
6 Modified from Beaufort County Rural and Critical Land Preservation Program



b. April 30
c. July 31
d. October 31

B. Once an application cycle has closed, Jasper County staff will have 70 days to determine if the
submitted application is complete. If the application is not complete, the applicant will have /0 days
to provide the additional information to be considered for that application cycle. The GC will meet
to consider complete applications no later than 45 days after each quarterly deadline.

Policy Questions: who reviews for completeness (staff or contractor?) and how is completeness
defined? Will due diligence be required at the time of application or before closing? Do you want
committee review after each quarterly deadline?

C. The GC reserves the right to amend the quarterly deadlines at the beginning of each year to best
meet the requirements of the program, however, it shall remain a quarterly application cycle.

Policy Questions: Is this the role of County Council? The Greenbelt Committee?

D. Upon written support of both the Chair and Vice Chair of the Greenbelt Committee, or a majority
of the Committee, an application can be submitted and reviewed outside of the quarterly cycle,
however, this shall only be considered in instances where "time is of the extreme essence" and
documented as such.

SECTION 10. REQUIRED APPLICATION TYPES, COMPONENTS, AND MEASURMENT
SCORING SYSTEM.

A. Each procurement type shall have its own application and scoring rubric as deemed appropriate
by staff. The GC shall approve each application type and publish them for applicants.
Applications shall consist of a combination of questions and requested information to
adequately score and rank using a systematic measurable approach. To accomplish this, all
application types shall consist of the following components:

a. numerical values from defined conservation and financial criteria for each application.
The benefits and associated numerical values will be established by the GC.

b. The narrative provided by the applicant.

c. consistency with relevant overarching master plans (e.g., Comprehensive Plans, State
Wildlife Action Plan, Natural Resources plan, etc.) which governmental jurisdictions
have adopted.

B. These components shall remain intact unless amended by GC/County Council.

SECTION 11. MINIMUM PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS BY APPLICATION TYPE
AND/OR LOCATION.

A. For all applications located in other governmental jurisdictions, a governmental jurisdictional
letter of support or opposition shall be required at the time of application. At minimum, other
governmental jurisdictions shall consider their relevant overarching master plans that have been
adopted.

B. The Greenbelt Committee will evaluate the merits of each application by evaluating
conservation and financial criteria. Applications for conservation easements and fee simple
procurements shall consider, at minimum, the following as a part of the application review and



consideration:

Examples follow:

a.

b.
c.
d

o

.

Public access and/or public benefit.

Proximity and/or connectivity to existing protected properties.

Proximity and/or connectivity to potential future protected properties.

Conservation and/or expansion of intact natural habitats, agricultural and/or heritage
landscapes, scenic corridors.

Consistency with adopted plans including the Comprehensive Plans, existing zoning,
Degree of urgency for the project in terms of protection of resources and/or real estate
market.

The extent to which the acquisition will result in the reduction of vehicle miles traveled
and reduce the need for future roadway improvements

Importance of the project in achieving multiple local, state and/or federal environmental
goals and objectives.

The extent to which matching funds will be available for applications.

SECTION 12. SECTION 12. METHOD OF PROGRAM AND PROCEDURES
The following procedures shall be followed in evaluating Greenbelt procurements:

A. County Staff (or whomever) Receipt and Review of Applications:

a.
b.

Applications for participation in the JCGP shall be submitted to County staff.

County staff, upon determining completeness of the application, shall review and provide
a ranking and recommendation to the GC based on the adopted program criteria and
scoring rubric.

B. Review, Recommendation, and Action to Proceed with Due Diligence and Acquisition Negotiations:

a.

GC shall review and make recommendations whether to engage in due diligence and
acquisition negotiations based upon staff scoring and recommendation.

C. Review, Recommendation and Action to Proceed with Acquisition:

a.

Based on the due diligence and the acquisition negotiations, staff shall make any necessary
revisions to the original scoring and recommendation to the GC.

D. The GC. shall review and make recommendations whether to approve funding for acquisitions.

E. The GC recommendations will be presented to County Council for final consideration.

SECTION 13. DUE DILIGENCE

Due diligence may be requested before the final grant to acquire the real property interest and therefore funding
required for due diligence may be awarded to the applicant. If the applicant already has the required due
diligence, they may request acquisition funding only.

Regardless, any project will be subject to all due diligence being satisfactorily completed, reviewed and
approved. All due diligence shall be reviewed by the appropriate county staff before being sent to Greenbelt
Committee and County Council for action. Due diligence shall include, but may not be limited to:

A. An appraisal of the value of the interest being acquired prepared by a member of the appraisal
institute (MAI), or other appropriately licensed or certified South Carolina Appraiser as identified
by the SC Conservation Bank.

B. A boundary survey completed by a South Carolina Registered Land Surveyor.



C. A phase I environmental assessment by a qualified environmental consulting firm. In instances
where the phase I report so indicates, a phase Il environmental assessment including a plan for any
remediation, by the seller or purchaser, is required for the property to address the concerns to the
satisfaction of the county.

D. A title search, title opinion, and/or title insurance commitment with only normal title exceptions.

SECTION 14. MENU OF OTHER ITEMS

A. No interest in land acquired by an eligible applicant with greenbelt funds may be extinguished,
sold, transferred, assigned, alienated, or converted to a purpose or use other than that set forth
in the grant award, without securing:

a. A finding of fact by staff that the land no longer exhibits the characteristics that
qualified it for acquisition with funds from the greenbelt fund; and

b. Super majority vote of the county council’.

B. Funds from the greenbelt fund may not be used to acquire interests in lands or other interests in
real property through the exercise of any power of eminent domain or condemnation
proceeding®.

C. The provisions of this article must not be construed to eliminate or unreasonably restrict
hunting, fishing, farming, forestry, timber management, or wildlife-habitat management, as
regulated by the laws of this state, upon lands for which interests in lands are obtained pursuant
to this ordinance. These and other traditional and compatible activities may be conducted,
where appropriate, upon lands preserved with greenbelt funds.

D. In order to ensure proper planning and efficiency in projects funded through the proceeds of the
sales tax, and to provide that these projects bring the greatest benefit to the county, a
comprehensive greenbelts study shall be undertaken by a selected party, and a recommended
plan issued to County Council, which shall include the following elements, and any other
elements requested by Council, including’:

a. Feedback and priorities from local conservation and historic resource partners,
stakeholders;

b. An inventory of potential priority greenbelt parcels in the county.
A forecast of greenbelt needs over the next 25 years in the county.

d. Greenbelt parcel selection criteria, with consideration given to the system employed by
the South Carolina Conservation Bank.
Once completed, the comprehensive greenbelt plan should be reviewed and revised every five
years.

E. The bank and eligible applicants receiving monies from the fund shall retain all records of
acquisition of interests in land with funds including, but not limited to deeds, title documents,
contracts, surveys, inventories, appraisals, title insurance policies, environmental assessments, and
closing documents.

SECTION 15. EFFECTIVE DATE; SEVERALBILITY
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon third reading.

7 Recommended in Charleston and Beaufort County to help ensure fee simple projects are sold for development at a
later date.

8 Recommended in Charleston and at the SC Conservation Bank

® Modified from Charleston County, could be completed by a consultant with committee review or staff or combination



If any provision of the Ordinance or its application to any circumstance is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, such holding shall not affect other provisions of this Ordinance which can be
given effect without the invalid provision or application. To this end, the provisions of this Ordinance
are severable.

Adopted this XX of YY 2025.

COUNTY COUNCIL OF JASPER COUNTY

First Reading: Date / Vote

Second Reading: Date / Vote

Public Hearings: Date / Vote

Third and Final Reading: Date / Vote






Jasper County Greenbelt
Committee

Committee Meeting May 30 2025
9am Hardeeville City Hall



GREENBELT PROGRAM FLOWCHART

Mo P
Application
v v
: Site Visit Stadf
Stalf Review  --ooomieees 3 Due Diligence ot Scoring e Recormaandetion
KL Comervton Prarmty Madul 1024
Yes
-
Applicant is responsible for: Program is responsible for:
- project narrative « Application form Councll Vote =, SOUTH W CAROLINA

= due diligence {e.g. = Scoring rubric :
appraisal, survey, phase 1 . CONSERVATION

Due diligence

ESA, title work) reimbursement® y e ——BANK
= gasement document for « Grant agreement or PSA® #

recarding « Council resalution
= baseline documentation = Wiring funds Closing

report for recording = Annual report and audit



WHAT IS A CONSERVATION
EASEMENT?

Conservation Easements are:
* voluntary
* permanent

* legally binding agreements between a landowner and
a qualified holding organization (land trust)

* recorded at the Register of Deeds Office

Property can be privately or publicly owned. In either case,
the conservation easement limits development or some uses
of the property to protect the natural resources —
sometimes called conservation values — of the property.

Protecting these resources (e.g. water quality, fish and
wildlife habitat, scenic value, open space, and farmland)
benefits not only the private landowner, but the public as
well.

Each conservation easement is unique: matched to the
property, with terms that reflect a balance between
protecting the land and the objectives of the landowners.

[ Proposed Boundary
| Parcel Boundaries
[0 private Protected
B state Protected
B Federal Protected
B Local Government
U Developed Areas

5
SavamnahiN YRR B,

.g Broad River Corridor

Land Protesvios | Tebruary n3e




BENEFITS FOR A LANDOWNER

* Peace of mind knowing the land will remain
protected forever. Conservation Easements remain
in force even after the land has changed ownership.

* Possible direct financial compensation from grants
(local, state, federal, private) as applicable

* Possible tax reductions in local property taxes (the
property’s assessed value may be reduced by the CE
since it restricts the property’s development value)..

* Possible tax deductions: The donation of a
conservation easement may qualify as a charitable
contribution, allowing the donor to take a federal
income tax deduction for the value of the
contribution. The Internal Revenue Code 170
outlines requirements to qualify for a tax deduction.

St Helena Island, Beaufort County



PERMITTED RIGHTS

* Every easement document outlines the basic

rights the landowner of the conserved property
still keeps. Examples:

* the right to build homes, barns, sheds;
* right to grow and sell timber,
* right to grow and sell crops,

* right to recreate and manage for fishing
and hunting, and outdoor enjoyment

» W,

" : . ':"- \‘
.~ L3
: 2 54 )
: ; vaﬁ
“ S
y M L) e
-, -
10 . <
: .
-

R NS v

7.5 PR
= S0
— PP
“-—rt

Nemours Wildlife Foundation, Beaufort County



RESTRICTED RIGHTS

* Every easement document outlines the basic rights the landowner of the conserved property
gives up.

* Examples: right to sell sand/dirt, right to commercial uses like storefronts, rights to
develop industrial uses.

s

L . ’

3 »
L
‘e 3
T ol

=

Riverswamp, Colleton County



ANNUAL EASEMENT MONITORING

* Once the easement is recorded, the land trust is legally responsible for ensuring

your property’s conservation values are protected forever. This is called
Stewardship.

* This means they must monitor and enforce the standards in the conservation
easement but also so much more — land trusts also provide resources and
support to the conservation landowner to ensure that the conservation
values of the property continue to exist grow over time.

* Properties are monitored once a year

* Reports are generated to document any issues observed, changes to the
property and/or boundary encroachments and to establish an ongoing record
of the property’s condition and use over time.



SIMPLIFED EASEMENT PROCESS

o

> wihe

Interested landowner

Site Visit with Land Trust
Easement terms mapped out
Appraisal

Grant applications and/or tax
advice

Final easement recorded
Stewardship — forever.

[ Proposed Boundary
|| Parcel Boundarfes
[0 Private Protected
B state Protected
B Federal Protected
B Local Governmsent

00 Developed Areas

He
Savarmnao N R By

.G. Broad River Corridor

Land Protesvios | Tebruary n3e




LOCAL CONSERVATION EASEMENT EXAMPLES

Glover Plantation

* Protected in 2012

* 2,026.64 acres

* Ducks Unlimited

e Grant award: $405,328

SOUTH W CAROLINA

CONSERVATION

BANK

hg YR v
1" Wy ‘B o LA TR, :
: # : 1 : .

{ kel
.‘L ”

. s -i. 4 - :
| M1 9 | bl ( }
SN o S .DUCKS UNLIMITED

Huguenin Family (Roseland)

* Protected 2002-2023

* 958 Acres

* Lowcountry Land Trust
* Donated easement

@ LAND TRUST



LOCAL CONSERVATION EASEMENT EXAMPLES

Good Hope Gregorie Neck

* Protected in 2008 * Protected 2024

e 2,000 acres * 4,409 Acres

e Lowcountry Land Trust * Open Land Trust

* Donated * Grant Award: $9 million

3 @ LAND TRUST

TheNature @
; Conservancy -

SOUTH W CAROLINA

CONSERVATION

BANK

.

-;;\« o |

_ﬁ.-;..v.'”’\%t.' ;Y ¥ P -\
~ YRLS W




SIMPLIFED FEE PROCESS

A

hd

Interested landowner

Site Visit with Buyer
Appraisal + Due Diligence
Grant applications + partner

funding secured

Fee purchase
Stewardship — forever.

[ Proposed Boundary
|| Parcel Boundarfes
[0 Private Protected
B state Protected
B Federal Protected
B Local Governmsent

100 Developed Areas
Savamn




Coosawhatchie

COOSAWHATCHIE WMA Ry -1

Purchased by SCDNR in 2023-2024 N\
Opened to the Public Sept 1 2024 \
10,570 acres OPEN SPACE

Grant Awards: $50m total; $32.5m (state) TheNature y
Conservancy &% |  Tommy Star

R\

B & - ':l\
@Closed (10,570 Acres)
EPending (1,992 Acres)

Rivers

‘J Lands (13,100 Acres)

P 4 . . g Gty Ea / (\—V _ .
HCOOSAWHATCHIED - - M (fj ] s
B Wikl LLaringomint Ase & Hertage Presnrd N Y OWA - Mt Repose s e
T L — ¥y -3 ' W : ) < y !
= M z 0 : ’ ' g :,_ "' c : , “'_v ’ ;: 1 ‘ » :‘ )
| VRA ) : , - : '
- v U 4 p “ ) ‘\.\_\' — ' . . / .
~ 2 , e = v / ’f~-'.-‘ ™ g R ‘ L- J"// - Ori¢ !




Savamnah Rlvn Jand 2R Savannah Rwﬂ axJ

MEYER LAKE

* Purchased by SCDNR in 2024 |
* Not yet open to the public T - W7

LOWCOUNTRY . Nwildlife Refuge

* 972 acres LAND TRUST
* Grant Awards: $3.4m

- o
AR b 4

WO
o,
.Zja 3; "s-_}(b
- <.;,__;;>\ t}@

A

v
‘w.’
-
Qavannah 3
Rmonal Wildlife i
ot
& D)
3
4
& n
- Maoyer Lake Tract
0 ~. 25 5 Miles A Savannah, GA B LLT Protected
: y 4 T Omer Private Protocted

Created: €. Taylor | 2/26/2020 B Putsc Lands

Local Protected Lands: Meyer Lake Tract

Created by Lowcountry Land Trust for presentation purposes. Refer to conservation casement, legal description(s),
and plat(s) for full terms, Boundary from modied 2017 Jasper County Parcels. SC Private Protected 2019, THC
Public Lands 2019, and ESRI Topography shown.




.

. -

k }lf ) 0:00/0:30




ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

* Open Land Trust: www.openlandtrust.org

e SC Land Trust Network: www.scltn.org

e SC Conservation Bank: www.sccbank.sc.gov

 Land Trust Alliance: www.
landtrustalliance.org/

New River, Jasper County


http://www.openlandtrust.org/
http://www.scltn.org/
http://www.sccbank.sc.gov/
https://landtrustalliance.org/land-trusts/gaining-ground/south-carolina#land-protected
https://landtrustalliance.org/land-trusts/gaining-ground/south-carolina#land-protected

N

LWoNOURAWN

Application for funding
Overview:

Name of Project:
Project Executive Summary (250-500 words):

Type of Project (select one):

Fee Simple
Conservation Easement
Boat landing

Heritage corridor

N =X X

Applicant Information:

Applicant Name:
Mailing Address:
Authorized Agent for Applicant:

a. Name
b. Title

c. Phone
d. Email

Property Information:

Landowner Name(s)
a. Isthe landowner an LLC, Limited Partnership, or any other entity?
Landowner Mailing Address
Property Address (if different from landowner address)
Describe the current uses for the subject property:
Parcel Identification Number(s)
Acreage
Current Zoning Status — *must get a zoning certificate from the county
Site Accessibility — Is the property currently accessible by a road?
Water Access — Does the subject property have direct access to water?



D. Project Budget Information

Applicant may provide quotes for due diligence/allowable costs and request for due diligence funding,
or provide recent due diligence for review and request acquisition funding.

Allowable Costs:

e Appraisal: A full appraisal report less than one year old is required prior to closing and strongly
encouraged to be included as part of the application and review process. Appraisers must be
selected from SC Conservation Bank reviewed list:
https://airtable.com/appNo73zDs1lilkZf/shrXBgAHfGwsLGIPb/tblIAqNvoQT75S)Gby

e Survey / Plat: An approved, recorded plat or boundary survey indicating the subject parcel’s
property lines is required prior to closing as it will be attached to the grant agreement.
Survey/Plat must show actual acreage and boundary lines of the property or portion of the
property being funded with Greenbelt monies, unless otherwise approved by the County.

e Environmental Survey Assessment (ESA): A Phase 1 ESA must be conducted on each greenbelt
property prior to closing. The ESA does not need to be completed during the application
process.

e Acquisition: Include the total requested for acquisition of the conservation easement or fee
purchase. Include all other funding matches received or pledged, including any in-kind match,
here.

e Note: Greenbelt funds cannot be used to pay for property taxes, deed stamps or structures.
Allowable costs incurred by the applicant during the application process will not be reimbursed
if the project is denied.

Provide a project budget using the table below and in narrative form:

Budget overview (250-500 words):

Cost Category Cost Notes/Description
Due Diligence Costs

Appraised value (CE or Fee as
applicable)

Partner Funds Received/Pledged
Partner Funds Applied for
Landowner donation

Other

Total Due Diligence Request:
Total CE/Fee Acquisition Request:




E. Project Narrative: (rec. 500-1000 words)

Note: Applicant to provide a project narrative about the costs, benefits, conservation values, and long-
term protection of the project. Applicant may describe the project generally and/or refer to project
scoring criteria and expand on specific categories that will be reviewed and scored.



F. Applicant Agreement
You are requesting Sxx.xx in greenbelt funds.

l, . the authorized agent, hereby certify to the best of my knowledge that this
application is a true and accurate portrayal of the site proposed for acquisition as well as the proposed
land uses and development under the Jasper County Greenbelt. | also understand that applications
missing information or any of the attachments may be deemed incomplete and deferred until the next
funding cycle.

Authorized Agent Signature Date Signed
Name Title
Witness Signature Date Signed

Name Title



Project Scoring Criteria (points may change)

Each project will be reviewed using the following criteria and the associated score applied. NOTE: Each
item must include a description of how this project meets the particular elements of that criteria.

1. Natural Resource Criteria ( total points)

Protection of Natural Resources and Ecosystem Values - Max 20 points, select all that apply

N unique or important wildlife habitat; (2 points)

N  presence of any rare or endangered species; (2 points)

N potential for conservation of a relatively undisturbed or outstanding example of an ecosystem
native to South Carolina and of importance to Jasper County; (2 points)

N potential for conservation of riparian habitats, wetlands, water quality, watersheds of significant
ecological value, critical aquifer recharge areas, estuaries, bays, or beaches; (2 points)

N protection of outstanding geologic features; (2 points)

N  protection of unique historical or archaeological significance; (2 points)

N protection of productive forestlands, farmlands; (2 points)

N presence of forestlands or farmlands which are located on prime soils, in microclimates or have
strategic geographical significances; (2 points)

N the value of the proposal for the conservation of an area for public outdoor recreation,
greenways, or parkland; (2 points)

N  potential for conservation of a larger area or ecosystem already containing protected lands, or

as a connection between natural habitats or open space that are already protected (2 points)
Scenic Protections — Max 5 points

N  Degree to which the project would protect scenic viewsheds from public roads or waterways,
with additional scoring emphasis given to designated scenic roads and rivers.

Protection of wildlife habitat (Choose one) - Max 5 points
https://www.dnr.sc.gov/species/index.html

N Protects wildlife habitat of endangered or threatened species - 5 points
N Protects wildlife habitat of any species - 2 points
N No wildlife habitat protection - 0 points

Historical and cultural features (Choose one) - Max 5 points

X Recognized historically/culturally significant lands, properties listed on the National Historic
Register, or land containing structures, structure remains, earthworks, artifacts, etc. of historical
or cultural significance - 5 points

Documented historical event occurrence - 4 points

Oral/anecdotal tradition of historical occurrence - 2 points

==



I

2.

No historical or cultural significance - 0 points

Public Benefit Criteria ( total points)

Threat of Loss - Max 5 points

N
N
N

Protects land under imminent threat of loss to development - 5 points
Project poses unique opportunity not likely to present itself again - 3 points
Not immediately threatened - 1 point

Consistent with Adopted Plans (Choose All that apply) - Max 5 points

XX

State Conservation Bank Plan - 2 points

County/Municipal Comprehensive Land Use Plan - 1 points

Jasper County Open Space Plan - 1 points

Other - 1 points (please cite plan: )

Addresses public access and use — Max 5 points

N

X

Greenspace with full public access (open daily during daylight hours; may close for holidays) - 5
points

Greenspace with partial public access (land manager restricts days/hours of week) - 2 points
Greenspace with limited public access (access by invitation only at least once annually - 1 points
No public access - 0 points

Level of Public Support (Choose All that apply)-Max 6 points

N Support Letters or Emails from Individuals or Grassroots Organizations - 3 points
N  Favorable Results of Public Meeting/Survey - 2 points
N  Support Letters/Emails from Regional/National Advocacy Organizations - 1 points
N No documented public support - 0 points

3. Funding Criteria ( total points)

Funding and leveraging — Max 15 points

Applicant must show that the project provides a unique value opportunity in that it protects land at a
reasonable cost; scoring will be based on the degree to which the proposal leverages trust funds by
including funding or in-kind assets or services from other governmental sources, from private or
nonprofit sources, or charitable donations of land or conservation easements,

HE=EX

Highly leveraged where >80% project costs provided by project partners (15 points)
Highly leveraged where >50% project costs provided by project partners (10-14 points)
Leveraged where >30% project costs provided by project partners (5-9 points)
Minimally leveraged where <30% project costs provided by project partners (1-4 points)

Return on Investment (Choose All that apply)-Max 6 points



N Provides recreation and/or tourism income - 1 points

N Provides economic benefit (such as timbering, farmland) - 1 points

N Provides public health benefit - 1 points

N Provides public services such as resiliency, natural infrastructure and resistance to flooding - 1
points

N  Provides ecological services (such as purification of air and water; decomposition of

N  wastes; soil and vegetation generation and renewal; pollination of crops and natural vegetation;

groundwater recharge through wetlands; seed dispersal; greenhouse gas mitigation; and
aesthetically pleasing landscapes) - 1 points
N Other (such as property will remain on the tax rolls) - 1 points

Project Management (max 5 points)

Applicant must demonstrate its expertise and financial resources to manage the land and improvements.
For conservation easements, applicant must demonstrate their expertise and financial resources to
enforce restrictions placed on the land.

Applicant possesses financial expertise

X
N  Applicant does not have financial expertise



GREENBELT PROGRAM FLOWCHART

Mo
FEI T LI LI O LI OO >  Refinement
Application :
Staff Review oo > Site,viSit ...... » Scoring
Due Diligence
Applicant is responsible for: Program is responsible for:
« project narrative » Application form
« due diligence (e.g. = Scoring rubric
appraisal, survey, phase 1 = Due diligence
ESA, title work) reimbursement®
- easement document for « Grant agreement or PSA*
recording « Council resolution
» baseline documentation « Wiring funds

report for recording = Annual report and audit

Staff
Recommendation

Yes
H
w

Council Vote

Yes

Closing



Agenda
ltem #7/



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER

RESOLUTION R-2025-49

A RESOLUTION
OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

TO AUTHORIZE THE JASPER COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A
SURRENDER OF PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND TRANSITION
AGREEMENT WITH ITS FIRST ADDENDUM BY AND BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY,
JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF, AND JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION

REGARDING ANIMAL SERVICES AND RELATED MATTERS
WHEREAS, Jasper County has previously entered into an Intergovernmental
Agreement with Beaufort County (IGA) which, among other things, provides for
temporary assistance with staffing and operating its animal shelters by Beaufort County,
through its Animal Services Department and partner organizations, replacing the Jasper
County Animal Rescue Mission (JARM) as the animal shelter operator and service

provider; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the orderly transfer of possession of the
premises used as an animal shelter at 401 Carter’s Mill Road, Jasper County, South
Carolina (the Premises) and the most efficient disposition of the personal property
located at the Premises which belong to JARM, a document entitled “SURRENDER OF
PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND TRANSITION AGREEMENT WITH
ITS FIRST ADDENDUM BY AND BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY, JASPER COUNTY
SHERIFF, AND JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION (Agreement and Addendum) has
been negotiated and prepared for adoption and execution by the respective Parties, with
a specimen copy being attached as Exhibit “A” hereto, which addresses the relative

responsibilities of the Parties and payment for certain items; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the IGA with Beaufort County, physical

control of the animal shelter began on August 1, 2025, and after an initial assessment, it



appears the best interests and welfare of the animals may be served by a temporary
closure of the facilities at the Premises, with housing to be provided at Beaufort County’s
facilities while a more permanent solution is finalized, which may include either a Jasper

County replacement facility or a joint venture facility with Beaufort County; and

WHEREAS, Jasper County Council finds, after public hearing, that it is in the
best interest of the citizens and residents of Jasper County for the County Council to
authorize the execution of the Agreement and First Addendum with the Jasper County
Administrator authorized to execute the Intergovernmental Agreement on behalf of
Jasper County, as well as exploring with Beaufort County the feasibility of a joint venture
facility and in the interim, the housing of animals at the Beaufort County facility while

the more permanent solution is finalized.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Jasper County Council in
Council duly assembled and by the authority of the same:

1. Jasper County Council adopts the foregoing premises as findings, and further
finds that it is in the best interest of the County and its citizens, and approves the
attached specimen SURRENDER OF PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND
TRANSITION AGREEMENT WITH ITS FIRST ADDENDUM BY AND BETWEEN
JASPER COUNTY, JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF, AND JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE
MISSION (Agreement and First Addendum) for execution by the County Administrator
on behalf of Jasper County, with allowance granted to make any such grammatical or

non-substantial edits as the County Attorney may recommend prior to execution.

2, That County Council authorizes the payment to Jasper County Animal Rescue
Mission the total sum of $70,533.00 as detailed in the First Addendum, representing
$42,200.00 for personal property and $28,333.00 for services and operational
reimbursement, with payment to be made from the funds appropriated for operation of
the animal shelter in the 2026 County Budget, Department 090, Line Item 5065; and the
County Administrator is directed to take such other and further actions as may be

recommended by the County Attorney and/or the Chief Financial Officer, including but



not limited to preparing an amendment to the 2026 Budget Ordinance in due course, if

such should be necessary or advisable.

3. The County Administrator is authorized to engage in discussions with Beaufort
County to determine whether on a temporary basis, it is desirable to process and house
animals from Jasper County at the existing Beaufort County facilities rather than the
facilities located at 401 Carter’s Mill Road in Ridgeland while a more permanent solution
is finalized, as well as exploring with Beaufort County the opportunities to enter into an
agreement for a joint venture that could include construction of a facility in Beaufort

County to accommodate Jasper County animals

4. This Resolution shall take effect upon approval by Council, with the
Intergovernmental Agreement to be effective upon the final party thereto executing and

delivering the Intergovernmental Agreement to the other parties.

John A. Kemp
Chairman of Jasper County Council
ATTEST:

Wanda Giles
Clerk to Council

Adopted:

It is required that the following Exhibit be attached:
SURRENDER OF PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND TRANSITION
AGREEMENT WITH ITS FIRST ADDENDUM BY AND BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY,
JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF, AND JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney.

David L. Tedder Date






EXHIBIT “A”

SURRENDER OF PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND
TRANSITION AGREEMENT WITH ITS FIRST ADDENDUM BY AND
BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY, JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF, AND JASPER
ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION



SURRENDER OF PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND
TRANSITION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY, JASPER
COUNTY SHERIFF, AND JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION

WHEREAS, Jasper County Animal Rescue Mission (JARM) has previously leased from
Jasper County certain premises used as an animal shelter at 401 Carter’s Mill Road,
Jasper County, South Carolina (the Premises), and is still in possession of the Premises

although the formal lease has expired; and

WHEREAS, JARM has remained in possession for the purposes of providing animal

shelter and animal control purposes to Jasper County; and

WHEREAS, Jasper County and Beaufort County have entered into an Intergovernmental
Agreement by which Beaufort County will assist with animal control and shelter needs in
Jasper County through utilization of its resources, including its Animal Services

Department; and

WHEREAS, the Jasper County Sheriff provides animal control enforcement and related
services by virtue of State statutes and County ordinances, and is entering into this

Agreement in furtherance of those authorities and responsibilities; and

WHEREAS, as part of the provision of services by Beaufort County, it is necessary and
desirable for Jasper County and/or the Jasper County Sheriff to take possession of the
Premises and provide for its operation under the auspices of Jasper County and/or the
Jasper County Sheriff to facilitate the implementation of the Intergovernmental

Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to transition in an orderly fashion from JARM providing the
traditional animal control and shelter functions to utilization of Beaufort County
resources and assistance to provide Jasper County and the Jasper County Sheriff with
animal control intake, medical treatment, and sheltering of animals, it is necessary and
desirable to agree on a process by which to transfer possession of the animal shelter
premises from JARM while continuing to provide for the and protection of animals

already housed at the animal shelter and in the custody of JARM;



NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by Jasper Animal Rescue Mission (JARM), Jasper
County (County), and the Jasper County Sheriff (Sheriff) as follows:

1.

Physical possession and occupancy of the animal shelter located at 401 Carter’s
Mill Road, Jasper County, South Carolina (the Premises), will be given to the
County by JARM on (or before if otherwise agreed) at 9:00 a.m. Friday, August 1,

2025.

Prior to or contemporaneous with the transfer of possession, JARM shall provide
a schedule/inventory of its personal property located on or within the Premises,
specifying 1) which personal property items thereof will be removed prior to the
August 1 transfer date, 2) which personal property items will remain on the
Premises for the temporary use by the County, the Sheriff, or Beaufort County and
its/their employees, agents, and affiliate organizations (collectively and
individually, as the context requires, the New Animal Service Provider) engaged in
animal control and shelter operations for a period not to exceed 30 days to
accommodate the substitution or replacement of such equipment by the New
Service Provider, ensuring for the uninterrupted care of the animals at the shelter;
and 3) personal property items which have been identified by JARM and the New
Service Provider for purchase by the New Animal Service Provider from JARM

upon mutually agreeable pricing.

Prior to the transfer of possession, medical supplies, including any regulated
Schedule drugs located on site will be inventoried, and arrangements made for
either the purchase by the New Service Provider or their removal from the

Premises, all of which is to be in compliance with State and Federal requirements.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of possession, JARM shall provide the
Sheriff and/or Beaufort County Animal Control the digitized medical records (the
Shelter Love database) for the animals being released by JARM to the New Animal
Service Provider, as well as the appropriate documents evidencing the transfer of

ownership and control of the animals being released by JARM to the New Animal



Service Provider, including but not limited to such evidences of surrender of the
animal to JARM and the assignment of same to the New Animal Service Provider.
In the event the data transfer requires technical and/or software purchase for
conversion and transfer, either directly from the provider or by purchase of the
database license from JARM, Jasper County agrees to reimburse upon invoice
from Beaufort County such sums as may be necessary to accomplish the transfer,

not to exceed $12,000.00.

. Items which have been identified for temporary use will be removed by JARM on
a mutually agreeable schedule to be devised on or before August 15, 2025, with
such removals to occur during normal business hours, Monday through Friday,

unless otherwise mutually agreed subsequent to this Agreement’s execution.

. Prior to or as soon as practical to the transfer of possession on August 1, 2025, the
County will take appropriate steps to have the utilities serving the Premises
transferred from JARM to the County, including making arrangements for a
telephone number to be associated with the animal shelter, either by transfer of
the present number used by JARM for the shelter of obtaining a new phone

number separate and distinct.

. The County and JARM agree and acknowledge the Premises are being surrendered
in an “as-is” condition, and at this time there are no claims for property damage by
either against the other. Both parties agree to take reasonable steps to minimize
and disturbance or damage to the Premises incident to the removal of any property

identified in Paragraph 5 above.

The parties hereto agree to undertake reasonable efforts to publicize on their
respective websites and social media sites information regarding the transfer of
possession and service responsibilities in an effort to minimize disruptions in the

provision of these animal care services.



9. Each party to this Agreement (which, in the case of JARM, shall mean its officers
and the members of the Board, and in the case of the County, its Council Members,
Administrators and Department Heads) agrees, during the Term of this Agreement
and thereafter, to refrain from Disparaging (as defined below) the other party or
parties, or any of their directors, officers, agents, representatives or employees,
either orally or in writing. Nothing in this paragraph shall preclude any party from
making truthful statements that are reasonably necessary to comply with
applicable law, regulation or legal process, or to defend or enforce a party's rights
under this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, "Disparaging" means
making remarks, comments or statements, whether written or oral, that impugn
the character, integrity, reputation, abilities of the person being disparaged, or of

the practices and procedures of the parties.

In witness whereof the parties here to have caused this Agreement to be

executed as of this day of , 2025.

JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE
MISSION

WITNESSES AS TO

JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION
By:

, Chairman

SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE



WITNESSES AS TO
JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF

JASPER COUNTY SHERIIF

WITNESSES AS TO
JASPER COUNTY:

Chris Malphrus
Sheriff

JASPER COUNTY

Andrew Fulghum
County Administrator



FIRST ADDENDUM TO SURRENDER OF PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE,
TRANSFER AND TRANSITION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN JASPER
COUNTY, JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF, AND JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE
MISSION

WHEREAS, Jasper Animal Rescue Mission (JARM), Jasper County (County), and the
Jasper County Sheriff (Sheriff) have contemporaneously entered into a SURRENDER OF
PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND TRANSITION AGREEMENT
(Agreement) by which the possession of the Jasper County Animal Shelter (Shelter) and
operations of the animal shelter was transferred from JARM to Jasper County and the
Sheriff, who have entered into a separate Intergovernmental Agreement with Beaufort
County to operate the Shelter on a temporary basis while a more permanent arrangement
is negotiated and implemented; and

WHEREAS the Agreement provided for a listing of equipment and other personal
property that was to be either sold or donated to Jasper County to facilitate the operation
of the Sheler, as well as property that was to ultimately be removed by JARM (see
paragraph 2 of the Agreement); and

WHEREAS, the attached EXHIBITS describe with particularity those items and the price
for each, as applicable; and

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to further address the costs of operation of the Shelter by
JARM for the period prior to the date of surrender of possession of the Premises,
determined and agreed to be the one month of July, 2025, being $28,333.00,
representing one-twelfth (1/12) of $340,000.00 annual funds appropriated by Jasper
County for Fiscal Year 2025-2026; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the parties to memorialize in this FIRST ADDENDUM TO
SURRENDER OF PREMISES, EQUIPMENT USE, TRANSFER AND TRANSITION
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY, JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF,
AND JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION (First Addendum) such listing, pricing,
timing for removal, payment for services and related matters;

NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed by the Parties hereto that the following Exhibits setting
forth the disposition of the personal property at the Shelter (and pricing, as applicable)
are approved, as well as the amount of compensation for the services of JARM in
operating the Shelter prior to the surrender of possession; and

FURTHER AGREED that Jasper County will take formal action by separate Resolution
and/or Ordinance of Jasper County approving the Agreement and this Addendum, and
directing the payment to JARM 1) of the sum of $42,200.00 for the purchase price of the
items being sold to Jasper County or the New Service Provider as detailed on Exhibit A-



1, and 2) the sum of $28,333.00 for the services rendered by JARM prior to the surrender
of the Premises; and

IT IS FURTHER AGREED that JARM will take such official actions as are necessary to
deliver a Bill of Sale and/or such other documentation as may be necessary or desirable
to effect the Agreement and Addendum.

In witness whereof the parties here to have caused this Agreement to be

executed as of this day of , 2025.

JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE

MISSION
WITNESSES AS TO
JASPER ANIMAL RESCUE MISSION
By:
, Chairman
JASPER COUNTY SHERIIF
WITNESSES AS TO
JASPER COUNTY SHERIFF
Chris Malphrus
Sheriff
JASPER COUNTY
WITNESSES AS TO
JASPER COUNTY:
Andrew Fulghum

County Administrator




EXHIBIT A-1

PROPERTY BEING SOLD
18 - European Kennels @ 900/ea. $16,200.00
14 - 4X8 Holding Kennels @ $400/ea. $5,600.00
Lot of HDPE Dividers $5,000
Lot of Stainless Steel Puppy Kennels $6,000.00
1 3-bowl Stainless Steel Sink $600.00
1 Stainless Steel Grooming Sink $500.00
1 Shorline Scale $300.00
1 12,000BTUH Portable A/C Unit $800.00
1 8'X20' Conex Box (Storage) $1,700.00
Fencing Services by Hilton Head Fence at the facility $5,500.00

TOTAL $42,200.00



EXHIBIT A-2
PROPERTY BEING DONATED BY JARM

6 VHF Radios for onsite communication valued at $500.00

6 Landline Cordless phone set.

All plastic carriers and any other material/supplies located in Conex box #2
All wire crates and any other material/supplies located in Conex box #1
Artificial Turf that was recently placed in outside Puppy Pen valued at $800.00
Metal Dividers that were installed in Dog Isolation valued at $800.00

2 Plastic Deck Boxes used to house blankets for the Winter months.

1 Push lawn mower, working.

2 Pressure Washers, 1 working, 1 unknown.

Several brand new cooling fans for the facility.

3 brand new Dog Igloo Houses valued at $250/ea.

Renovations to 3 rooms within the building valued at $2,500.00

3 Office Desks and associated file cabinets.

Any food left in the Food Shed.

Any material or supplies left in the EQuipment Shed.

Any material/supplies left in the White Shed.

Any cleaning supplies left at the facility.

Any medications left at the facility.



EXHIBIT A-3
PROPERTY BEING REMOVED BY JARM

3 computers and 1 printer/scanner.

2 - drawer SAFE in Manager's Office



Agenda
ltem #8



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER
Resolution Number R-2025-53

A RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL DECLARING THE
HARDEEVILLE DISTRICT APPOINTED POSITION AT THE COUNTY
AIRPORT COMMISSION TO BE VACANT.

WHEREAS, in accordance with Jasper County SC Code of Ordinances Chapter 2

Article IV Sec 2-78 (b) (8), members of boards, commissions, and special

committees may be removed at any time by the County Council for cause; and

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2025, the Jasper County Council discussed the position
of Mr. Steven Alston as the Hardeeville District commissioner on the Airport

Commission in Executive Session as permitted by the Freedom of Information Act

SC Code 30-4-70 (a) (1);

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Jasper County duly
assembled and by the authority of the same.

Section 1. That Mr. Steven Alston is removed as the Hardeeville District
commissioner on the Airport Commission in accordance with Section 2-78(b)(8) of

the Jasper County Code of Ordinances.

Section 2. The County Council declares the Hardeeville District commission seat on

the Airport Commission to be vacant.

Section 3. If any section, clause, paragraph, sentence or phrase of this resolution, or
application thereof any person or circumstances must, for any reason be held to be
invalid or unconstitutional, the invalid section, clause paragraph, sentence, phrase or

application shall no way affect the remainder of this resolution: and is hereby



declared to be the intention of the County Council that the remainder of this
resolution would have passed notwithstanding the invalidity or unconstitutionality
of any section, clause paragraph, sentence or phrase thereof.

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

John A. Kemp, County Council Chair

Attest:

Wanda Giles, Clerk to Council
Resolution R-2025-53
Adopted: August 25, 2025

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by Jasper County Attorney,

Lawrence Flynn, Interim County Attorney Date



Agenda
ltem #9



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER
Resolution Number R-2(025-54

A RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL DECLARING THE
JASPER COUNTY AT-LARGE APPOINTED POSITION AT THE
LOWCOUNTRY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS TO BE VACANT.
WHEREAS, in accordance with Jasper County SC Code of Ordinances Chapter 2

Article IV Sec 2-78 (b) (8), members of boards, commissions, and special

committees may be removed at any time by the County Council for cause; and

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2025, the Jasper County Council discussed the position
of Mr. Danny Lucas as the At-Large Jasper County representative on the

Lowcountry Council of Governments in Executive Session as permitted by the

Freedom of Information Act SC Code 30-4-70 (a) (1);

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Jasper County Council duly

assembled and by the authority of the same,

Section 1. That Mr. Danny Lucas is removed as the At-Large Jasper County
Representative to the Lowcountry Council of Governments in accordance with

Section 2-78(b)(8) of the Jasper County Code of Ordinances.

Section 2. The County Council declares the Jasper County At- Large position to the

Lowcountry Council of Governments to be vacant.

Section 3. If any section, clause, paragraph, sentence or phrase of this resolution, or
application thereof any person or circumstances must, for any reason be held to be

invalid or unconstitutional, the invalid section, clause paragraph, sentence, phrase or

Page 1 of 2



application shall no way affect the remainder of this resolution: and is hereby
declared to be the intention of the County Council that the remainder of this
resolution would have passed notwithstanding the invalidity or unconstitutionality

of any section, clause paragraph, sentence or phrase thereof.

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:

John A. Kemp, County Council Chair

Attest:

Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council
Resolution R-2025-54
Adopted: August 25, 2025

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by Jasper County Attorney,

Lawrence Flynn, Interim County Attorney Date

Page 2 of 2



Agenda
ltem #10



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF JASPER
Resolution Number R-2025-55

A RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNCIL REGARDING THE
HARDEEVILLE DISTRICT APPOINTED POSITION AT THE

AIRPORT COMMISSION

WHEREAS, in accordance with Jasper County SC Code of Ordinances
Chapter 2 Article IV Sec 2-78 (b) It is the policy of the county council to
appoint the best qualified candidate to boards and commissions and to
ensure that the membership of boards, commissions and committees are
promptly filled. Equally it is the policy of the county that membership on
boards, commissions and special committees will reflect to the greatest
extent practical, the ethnic, gender and age composition of the county as

a whole.

WHEREAS, on August 18, 2025, the Jasper County Council discussed the
position of the vacancy on the Airport Commission in Executive Session as
permitted by the Freedom of Information Act SC Code 30-4-70 (a) (1).

WHEREAS, The Jasper County Council desires to appoint Mr. Chad Scott
as the Hardeeville Representative to the Airport Commission in
accordance with Section 2-78 of the Jasper County Code of Ordinances.
Mr. Chad Scott will serve in the capacity of this appointment and finish the
remaining Hardeeville District term. The term will end 12/31/2025 or until

replaced.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Jasper County Council

duly assembled and by the authority of the same, resolves to appoint

Page 1 of 3



Mr. Chad Scott to the Airport Commission as the Hardeeville District
Representative this day of , 2025.

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:
John A. Kemp, County Council Chair

Attest:

Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to
Council

Resolution R-2025-55

Adopted: August 25, 2025

Page 2 of 3



Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by Jasper County Attorney,

Interim County Attorney Date

Page 3 of 3



% CITIZEN BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH:

Request for Appointment (§ or Re-Appointment { )
Please print or type

COMMITTEE: Airport Commission

RECOMMENDED BY: Joseph Arizil.b

NAME:Chad Thomas Scott ~
FIRST MiDDLE LAST

HOME ADDRESS: 149 Shady Oak Circle Hardeeville, S.C. 29927

TELEPHONE: 843-280-5048
HOME BUSINESS CELL

EMAIL ADDRESS: cscott.cs7&@gmail.com

EMPLOYED By: Gulfstream Aerospace Coorporation

ADDRESS: 500 Gulfstream Rd Savannah, G A 31402

OCCUPATION: Aircraft Coordinator

EDUCATION; High School

BOARDS, COMMITTEES, CIVIC CLUBS, ETC:
USE BACK OF SHEET IF NECESSARY

OTHER ACTIVITIES:
USE BACK OF SHEET IF NECESSARY

COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICT:_Har geeville

ARE YOU A REGISTERED VOTER?_Yes

IN WHAT PRECINCT DO YOU VOTE?Levy

DO YOU HAVE ANY INTEREST IN ANY BUSINESS THAT HAS, IS OR WILL DO BUSINESS WITH THE COUNTY OfF
JASPER OR THE ENTITY FOR WHICH YOU HAVE BEEN NOMINATED? _ No IF SO, PLEASE LiST ON BACK
OF SHEET.

| HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THE BOARDS AND COMMITTEE ORDINANCE #07-40, THE FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION ACT AND A COPY OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES RELATED TO THE BOARD OR
COMMISSION THAT | AM VOLUNTEERING TO SERVE ON AND | AGREE TO UPHOLD AND ABIDE THE
RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE BEST OF MY ABILITIES. | UNDERSTAND THAT LAW AND CONSTITUTION OF SOUTH
CAROLINA PROVIDE FOR APPOINTMENTS BY COUNTY COUNCIL BECAUSE IT IS ELECTED BY THE PEOPLE.
COUNCIL IS THUS ANSWERABLE TO THE PEOPLE AND BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS ARE ANSWERABLE TO
THE COUNCIL. THE AMERICAN SYSTEM OF CHECKS AND BALANCES THUS ENCOURAGES AND ENABLES
ADMINISTRATION WHILE CONST RAINIAIER. ANTEES FOR CROSS PURPOSES WITH COUNCIL. [ FURTHER

1

AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE-\ (LES AND\REGULATIONS OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL,
¢ ¢ 3

APPLICANTS SIGNATUR ] - Y
DATE: 07/18/2025 =% A ~

RETURN TO TISHA L. WILLIAMS, ACTING CLERK TO COUNCIL
JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

.0, BOX 1149

RIDGELAND, SC 29936

(843} 717-3696

tiwilliams@jaspercountysc.gov



Agenda
ltem #11



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF JASPER
ORDINANCE # 0-2025-19

AN ORDINANCE OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

To amend and add a new Subsection to the Jasper County SC Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 26 Taxation, Article | In General.

WHEREAS, The Jasper County Council should periodically review County

Ordinances for relevance and adjustment; and

WHEREAS, it has come to Council’'s attention that certain penalties
available to the County against defaulting tax sale bidders for failure to follow

tax sale procedures are in need of updating; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Jasper County Council duly

assembled and by the authority of the same:

SECTION 1. Chapter 26, Taxation, Article |, In General, being Code
Sections 26-1 through 26-4, is hereby amended by inserting and adding a

new Section 26-4 as follows, and amending Section 26-1 as follow:

Sec. 26-4 Penalties for Defaulting on a Tax Sale Bid.

In accordance with §§ 12-51-60 and 12-51-70 of the Code of Laws of
South Carolina, 1976 (as amended), upon the failure of a successful
bidder at the delinquent tax sale to pay the full amount of the bid made
on the day of the sale, the defaulting bidder is liable to the County the
sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) to be collected by the
Delinquent Tax Collector in the name of the taxing authority; and

further, the defaulting bidder, whether a natural person or an entity
1



making the bid, shall not be allowed to participate in a Jasper County
tax sale for 1) the later of the next two delinquent tax sales or two
calendar years, and 2) the penalty sum is paid in full. The prohibition
on a defaulting bidder participating in a subsequent tax sale applies
not only to the bidder if he or she be a natural person, but also to an
entity owned or controlled in whole or in part by the person, and in the
event the defaulting bidder be an entity, to affiliated or subsidiaries of
the entity.

Section 26-1 Penalties, Fees and costs for delinquent taxes.

Penalties, fees and costs shall be as set forth in the S.C. Code of
Laws, 1976 (as amended), including § 12-45-180 and §12-51-40, to
include the necessary and actual costs incurred in the levy,
execution, collection, seizure, and sale of the property, as

applicable.

SECTION 3. Sections 26-4 Assessment of Aircraft and 26-5 Reduction
in value of a boat and its motor for the purpose of property taxation of the
Jasper County Code of Ordinances are re-numbered as new Sections 26-5

and 26-6, respectively.

SECTION 4. Provisions of ordinances previously adopted by County
Council, which are not consistent with the restrictions and requirements

of this Ordinance 0-2025-19 are deemed superseded.

SECTION 4. If any section, clause, paragraph, sentence or phrase of
this ordinance, or application thereof any person or circumstances should,

for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the invalid section,
2



clause paragraph, sentence, phrase or application shall no way affect the
remainder of this ordinance; and it is hereby declared to be the intention of
the County Council that the remainder of this ordinance would have passed
notwithstanding the invalidity or unconstitutionality of any section, clause

paragraph, sentence or phrase thereof.

SECTION 5. This ordinance must take effect upon approval by Council.

John A. Kemp, Chairman
Attest:

Wanda Giles, Clerk to Council
Ordinance 0-2025-19

First Reading: 06.30.25
Public Hearing: 07.21.2025
Second Reading: 07.21.2025
Third Reading:

Adopted:

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by Jasper County Attorney

Interim County Attorney Date:




Agenda
ltem #12



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF JASPER

RESOLUTION R-2025-56
A RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL

WHEREAS, Jasper County SC, is a member of the Southern Lowcountry
Regional Board (SOLOCO), a regional think tank that identifies the
problems and opportunities that face the entire southern low country, as
defined by the members and regardless of municipal or county
boundaries.;

WHEREAS, There are childcare and early learning agencies in our
community that provide services to working class parents;

WHEREAS, Jasper County SC and those interested service providers,
who have interest in a partnership with the SC Department of Social
Services, a pilot demonstration project using the Tri-Share funding
model being employed in other locales;

WHEREAS, Childcare and Early Learning in South Carolina is in crisis,
with too many working-class families unable to afford or find quality
Childcare and Early Learning, with the result that

too few South Carolina children (36%) reach kindergarten and first grade
with the development and skills necessary to undertake a successful
lifetime of learning and education;

WHEREAS, The crisis in Childcare and Early learning has an
adverse effect on workforce availability and results in an estimated
$1.4 billion loss to the South Carolina economy.

WHEREAS, Increasing the availability and affordability of high-
quality Childcare and Early Learning will enhance the programs and
goals of the SC Department of Commerce and Department of
Education;

WHEREAS, There is a useful and innovative Childcare and Early
Learning supplemental funding model called Tri-Share that is being
successfully employed in other locales to expand the availability and
affordability of Childcare and Early Learning, enables tax dollars to be
spent more efficiently and effectively, and which appears to be readily
adaptable for use in South Carolina;



NOW THEREFORE, be resolved that: Jasper County SC as a member of
SOLOCO resolves and requests the Beaufort County Legislative Delegation
and the Jasper County Legislative Delegation undertake those steps
necessary to enable, fund and ensure that the South

Carolina Department of Social Services, with the support of the
Department of Commerce and the Department of Education, will
establish and conduct a Childcare Demonstration

Project utilizing the Tri-Share funding model, in Beaufort and Jasper
Counties and such other counties as may be appropriate, with such
demonstration project to be organized and managed to increase the
availability, affordability, and quality of programs offered by South
Carolina Childcare and Early Learning providers.

Adopted this the 25th day of August

dJohn A. Kemp
Chairman
Attest:

Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council

Reviewed to form and draftmanship by the Interim Jasper County Attorney



	df1642f1-e3a3-46cb-9887-e8044721b66f.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35
	Slide 36
	Slide 37
	Slide 38
	Slide 39

	45626490-7656-4137-9f4a-094ab9e15b82.pdf
	Jasper County Engineering Services
	03717a44-3ba6-4419-8aa5-b66d6f1ddcbd.pdf
	Subject:
	Overview of Program Scope and Fee Context
	Breakdown of Key Services Included
	Fee Structure and Staffing
	Comparison to Other Counties
	Conclusion

	db021052-e69b-4540-9afe-f69845f1d3e1.pdf
	EXHIBIT A - Scope of Services
	EXHIBIT B-1 - Jasper County RFQ
	Progam Manager LOTST Program RFQ Final
	sale tax info
	Maps 3 2025
	Maps 3 2025
	Progam Manager LOTST Program RFQ Final
	Ord sales tax

	EXHIBIT B-2 - ICE SOQ
	EXHIBIT C - Schedule
	Exhibit C SCHEDULE

	EXHIBIT D_Fee Proposal
	EXHIBIT E_Hourly Rates


	47f5c33b-8094-4046-92c1-bbadf315b81d.pdf
	103dc026-f1bb-41e5-8884-86a714f84013.pdf
	2c7b54cd-7de3-4c85-a6f9-47e9a2f76baf.pdf
	Slide 1: Jasper County Greenbelt Committee
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: WHAT IS A CONSERVATION EASEMENT? 
	Slide 4: BENEFITS FOR A LANDOWNER
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: ANNUAL EASEMENT MONITORING
	Slide 8: SIMPLIFED EASEMENT PROCESS
	Slide 9: LOCAL CONSERVATION EASEMENT EXAMPLES
	Slide 10: LOCAL CONSERVATION EASEMENT EXAMPLES
	Slide 11
	Slide 12: COOSAWHATCHIE WMA
	Slide 13: MEYER LAKE
	Slide 14
	Slide 15



	6504d71a-8620-425a-86fb-febd8c458391.pdf
	3cf36910-c6d3-4a63-bde7-6b1c15f1af33.pdf
	NOW THEREFORE, be resolved that: Jasper County SC as a member of SOLOCO resolves and requests the Beaufort County Legislative Delegation and the Jasper County Legislative Delegation undertake those steps necessary to enable, fund and ensure that the South



